
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET

TUESDAY, 9 JULY 2019 AT 12.00 PM

EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Jane Di Dino, Democratic Services Tel 9283 4060
Email: jane.didino@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above.

Membership

Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (Chair)
Councillor Steve Pitt (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Dave Ashmore
Councillor Suzy Horton
Councillor Darren Sanders
Councillor Jeanette Smith

Councillor Lynne Stagg
Councillor Matthew Winnington
Councillor Rob Wood
Councillor Lee Hunt

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted.

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interests 

3  Record of Previous Decision Meetings - 11 and  17 June 2019 (Pages 5 - 
18)

A copy of the record of the previous decisions taken at Cabinet on 11 and 17 
June 2019 are attached. 

RECOMMENDED that the records of decisions of the Cabinet meetings held 
on 11 and 17 June 2019 are approved as correct and signed by the Leader.

Public Document Pack



2

4  Additional appointments to Outside Bodies (Pages 19 - 20)

The Cabinet is asked to consider additional appointments to outside bodies for 
the 2019/20 municipal year, where vacancies still exist following Cabinet of 11 
June 2019.  The list of nominations received from the Conservative Group is 
attached.

5  City of Sanctuary (Pages 21 - 32)

Purpose.
The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with information about the 
Portsmouth City of Sanctuary agenda, it's implications for Portsmouth, the 
expectations and associated resource implications upon the Council as a 
supporter of this initiative. The report also seeks the advice of members on 
how we should respond to this agenda. 

RECCOMENED that the Cabinet: 
Cabinet is recommended to: 
1. Note that there is local appetite for Portsmouth to become a 

recognised City of Sanctuary and that Portsmouth City Council has 
already openly pledged support for the agenda. 

2. Agree that it is important that the Council responds to this agenda as 
one body. 

3. Agree that the cost of establishing the scheme at £16,000 in 2019/20 
for coordinating this activity and making sure the Council fulfils its 
obligation the City of Sanctuary are funded by a contribution from the 
Environment & Community Safety portfolio reserve. 

6  Southsea Coastal Scheme (Pages 33 - 36)

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for authority to be delegated to The 
Director of Regeneration to award the Construction contract for the Southsea 
Coastal Scheme (the Scheme) and to inform members of the submission of the 
Schemes’ Full Business Case to the Environment Agency in Autumn 2019, based 
on the current designs. 

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet delegate authority to the Director of 
Regeneration to enter into the Construction contract for the Southsea 
Coastal Scheme, subject to prior approval by the Procurement Gateway 
Board.

7  Merger of Coroner Areas in Hampshire (Pages 37 - 66)

Purpose.
To provide background information on, and seek an agreement in relation to, 
the appropriate merger of Coroner services with Hampshire County Council or 
the Isle of Wight.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet:
1. Approve option 1 to pursue a merger of coronial areas in Hampshire.



3

2. Delegate to the Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services 
the management of the merger process.

8  Youth Offending Team Strategic Youth Justice Plan (Pages 67 - 94)

Purpose
To share with the Cabinet details of Portsmouth Youth Offending Team's (PYOT) 
Annual Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2019/20 (Appendix 1) and seek approval for 
that Plan. 

RECOMMENDED that Council approve the plan and priorities set out 
within it.

9  The City Council's Response to the Aquind Proposal (Pages 95 - 110)

Purpose.
The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with information about the 
proposal by Aquind Ltd to develop an electricity interconnector and to outline 
what some of the implications for Portsmouth might be. The report also seeks 
the advice of members on how we should respond to this proposal. 

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet:
1. Note that Aquind are seeking to develop an electricity Interconnector 

between the UK and France with a converter station in Lovedean. 
They are proposing to "land" the high voltage DC (HVDC) electricity 
cable at Eastney and run it up through Portsmouth to the converter 
station at Lovedean.

2. Note that despite representations from Portsmouth City Council that 
the Aquind proposal should be determined by the relevant local 
planning authorities (including Portsmouth City Council), the 
Government has decided that the proposal was a 'Nationally 
Significant Infrastructure Project' that should be determined by the 
Secretary of State through theDevelopment Consent Order process.

3. Seek the support of Full Council to reinforce the Cabinet's objection 
to the route of the HVDC cable whilst also working constructively 
with Aquind and other stakeholders. 

4. Agree that the Council responds to this proposal in a coordinated 
way and where possible works with neighbouring councils on any 
common approaches.

10  Health and Care Operating Model (Pages 111 - 142)

Purpose.
Portsmouth City Council (PCC) and NHS Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning 
Group (PCCG) have continued to develop and deliver successful integrated 
working across health and care for the City, as described by the shared Health 
& Care Portsmouth programme of work. During 2018/19 the two organisations 
took significant steps to integrate key statutory functions, establishing a single 
operating model for the planning and delivery of Health & Care Portsmouth. 



4

The purpose of this paper is to update on progress of this Health & Care 
Portsmouth operating model since proposals were adopted by the PCCG’s 
Governing Body and the Portsmouth Health and Wellbeing Board in 
November and approved by PCC's Cabinet in February 2019.

Based on the learning gained from implementing the operating model and in 
response to the call from the Cabinet and Governing Body to seek further 
opportunities for deeper integration, this paper also sets out the benefits case 
and options to achieve this. 

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet:
a. Note the progress so far on the integration of PCC and PCCG 

functions in support of the Health and Care Portsmouth operating 
model

b. Agree the proposals for further integration set out at section 13 of 
this report, including the preferred option for integrating of PCCG 
Accountable Officer and PCC Chief Executive functions. 

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media 
during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting nor records those 
stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue.

Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other difficulties 
occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's website.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785  

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


 
 

 
1 

 

CABINET 
 
RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Tuesday, 11 
June 2019 at 3.00 pm at the Guildhall, Portsmouth 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors Steve Pitt 
Dave Ashmore 
Suzy Horton 
Darren Sanders 
Jeanette Smith 
Matthew Winnington 
Rob Wood 
Lee Hunt 

 
51. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Lynne Stagg. 
 

52. Declarations of Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of members' interests. 
 

53. Record of Previous Decision Meeting - 25 March 2019 (AI 3) 
 
RESOLVED  that the record of decisions of the previous Cabinet 
meeting held on 25 March 2019 were approved as a correct record, to be 
signed by the Leader. 
 

54. Annual Appointments to Outside Bodies (AI 4) 
 
The nominations which had been received were considered and appointments 
were made are published on a separate schedule. 
 

55. Representation to the Minister for Children regarding "Strengthening 
Families" funding for Children's Social Care (information item) (AI ) 
 
Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson, as Leader, had written to challenge the 

government's criteria which penalised local authorities, like Portsmouth, which 

had been rated as "Good" by Ofsted.  Councillors Rob Wood as Cabinet 

Member for Children and Families and Councillor Suzy Horton as Cabinet 

Member for Education, were both grateful for the letter being sent to stress 

the continued need for investment in preventative measures at Portsmouth 

and minister had recently visited and been impressed by inclusion at local 

schools.  Councillor Winnington, as Cabinet Member for Health, Wellbeing 

and Social Care, added that work was also taking place with families where 

parents were alcohol dependent, which should be built on. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

The information report was noted. 

 
56. Water Quality Issues in the Solent Catchment Area and Planning 

Decisions (AI 6) 
 
Sim Manley, Development Manager, presented the report which set out the 

implications of the advice received from Natural England and the work taking 

place with them and with PUSH to find solutions. The legal advice received 

was that decisions should not be issued on proposals which have an 

overnight stay and for the need for proposals to be 'nitrate neutral'.  The report 

set out the lobbying and other measures being suggested to mitigate this 

restriction. 

Cabinet members were concerned that government departments were giving 

contradictory advice at a time when housing targets were being set for the 

city's development.  Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson, as Leader, was taking 

this up with the Local Government Association (LGA) and had written to the 

two Secretaries of State to address this.  Cabinet Members were also mindful 

of the Council's resolution on Climate Emergency.  Councillor Sanders, as 

Cabinet Member for Housing, was aware of the concern of local landlords 

who wished to develop. Councillor Winnington raised public health matters 

regarding water quality for swimming and farming and fisheries implications 

that needed broader work with partners and neighbouring local authorities. 

It was noted that this report was also being brought to the attention of the 

Planning Committee the following week. 

 
The Cabinet: 

(1) Noted the issues covered in the report, in particular the 
implications for the authority and determination of planning 
applications; 

(2) Endorsed the actions and mitigations proposed in sections 3.9 - 
3.13 to respond to this issue. 

 
57. D-Day 75 Commemorations (information) (AI ) 

 
At the conclusion of the meeting Councillor Jeanette Smith, Cabinet Member 

for Resources, wished to ensure that the gratitude of the Cabinet was placed 

on record for the excellent work by the Events Team and all staff involved in 

making the commemorations so momentous. 

Councillor Lee Hunt, as Cabinet Member for Community Safety, also praised 

the work and support of the emergency services. 

The Leader and Deputy Leader had received very positive feedback from 

members of the public and the Leader of the Council would be writing to thank 

staff on behalf of the Cabinet. 

 
 

Page 6



 
3 

 

The meeting concluded at 3.32 pm. 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE 
Leader of the Council 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

Portsmouth Adoption Panel 3 years 1 nominee  (for 

appointment by the 

Panel)

Jennie Brent (19/6/18)

Jennie Brent

Motiv8 (Registered Charity) Annual 1 observer Steve Pitt (19/6/18) Steve Pitt

Education Advisory Board Annual Cabinet Member for 

Education, 

spokespersons and 

Chair of Education, 

Children & Young 

People Scruitny Panel

Suzy Horton                                                                         

Hannah Hockaday                                                   

Tom Coles                                                             

Neill Young                                            

(All 19/6/18)

Suzy Horton

Tom Coles

Terry Norton

(3 x spokespersons)

Plus Chair or ECYP Panel = Frank 

Jonas

Elementary Education Act Trust 

board

Annual 4 (These usually 

include the Cabinet 

Members for Education 

and Children & 

Families).

2 or 3 meetings p.a. - dates are set as 

required.nothing yet set for later in year as 

trustees are asked their availability

Suzy Horton                                                        

Hugh Mason                                                                  

Hannah Hockaday                                                                   

Neill Young                                                                                                             

(All 19/6/18)

Suzy Horton

Hugh Mason

Rob Wood

(+ vacancy)

Standing Advisory Council for 

Religious Education

4 years 
*(Only 1 of the 4 

places up for renewal 

which under SACRE 

constitution should 

be a Cllr)

Cllr Suzy Horton                                                                

Maria Cole                                                                                   

*Ryan Brent  (No longer a 

Cllr)

Taki Jaffer                                                                                  

Cllr Tom Coles

Aspex Visual Arts Trust 

(Registered Charity and 

Company)

Annual 1 (observer)  Steve Pitt (10/2018)

Steve Pitt

Baffins Community Association 

(Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Darren Sanders (19/6/18)

Darren Sanders

Buckland Community 

Association (Registered Charity)

Annual 2 Jason Fazackarley                                                       

Leo Madden                                                                                     

(Both 19/6/18)

Jason Fazackarley

Leo Madden

City of Portsmouth Sports 

Council

Annual 3
4 times/yr - 11 July , 10 Oct , 9 Jan 2020

Steve Pitt (19/6/18)                                                                          

Scott Payter-Harris  

(19/6/18)                                                 

1 vacancy

Steve Pitt

(2 vacancies)

Cosham Community Association 

– Management Committee 

(Registered Charity)

Annual 1
Cosham Community Centre is now owned 

and managed by Portsmouth City Council - 

the association ended 31/12/18.

Hannah Hockaday (19/6/18)

(vacancy)

C
u

lt
u

re
 L

e
is

u
re

 &
 S

p
o

rt
C

u
lt

u
re

 L
e

is
u

re
 &

 S
p

o
rt

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

P
age 9



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

Duke of Edinburgh Award 

Scheme – Hampshire Forum 

(Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Steve Pitt (03/08/2018)

Chris Attwell

Eastney Area Community 

Association (Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Jennie Brent (19/6/18)

Jennie Brent

Farlington Marshes Management 

Committee

Annual 4

14 Nov at 2pm - usually lasts an hour

Hugh Mason (19/6/18)                                           

Simon Bosher (19/6/18)                                           

Steve Pitt (19/6/18)                                       

Ken Ellcome  (6/7)

Hugh Mason

Steve Pitt

+ 2 vacancies

Fratton Community Association Annual 1 Dave Ashmore (6/7/18)                         
Dave Ashmore

Hampshire Archives Trust - 

Annual Meeting

Annual 1 Appropriate PCC officer 

(19/6/18)

PCC

(officer)

Hampshire Countryside Access 

Forum 

3 years 1 Vacancy held.
Vacancy

International Boatbuilding 

Training College Portsmouth

Annual 1 Alicia Denny (19/6/18)
Rob Wood

Kings Theatre Trust Ltd 

(Charitable Company)

Annual 2 Hugh Mason                                                                

Luke Stubbs                                                                         

(Both 19/6/18)

Hugh Mason  plus vacancy 

Landport Community 

Association (Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Yahiya Chowdhury 

(19/6/18)
Claire Udy

Maritime Archaeology Trust 

(formerly Hants & Isle of Wight 

Trust for Maritime Archaeology).

Annual 1 Matthew Winnington 

(19/6/18)
Matthew Winnington

Mary Rose Trust (Registered 

Charity and Company)

Annual 2 nominations (for 

Trust approval) + Lord 

Mayor ex oficio

Rob Wood                                           

Jason Fazackarley                                                    

Lord Mayor                                                       

(All 19/6/18)

Rob Wood

Jason Fazackarley

& Lord Mayor ex officio

Milton Village Community 

Association (Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Ben Dowling (19/6/18)

Ben Dowling

New Theatre Royal Trust 

(Registered Charity and Company)

Annual 1 Will Purvis (19/6/18)

Will Purvis

Overlord Embroidery Trust 

Liaison Committee

Annual Cabinet Member for 

Culture, Leisure & 

Sport + 2 others.

usually just one annual meeting in September 

at D-Day Story but date will be decided once 

reps are known - it usually includes the 

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure and 

Sport

Steve Pitt                                                    

Frank Jonas                                                           

Judith Smyth                                                    

(All 19/6/18)

Judith Smyth

Steve Pitt

(1 vacancy)

C
u

lt
u

re
 L

e
is

u
re

 &
 S

p
o

rt
C

u
lt

u
re

 L
e

is
u

re
 &

 S
p

o
rt

P
age 10



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

Paulsgrove Community 

Association (Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Claire Udy (6/7/18)

Claire Udy

Peter Ashley Activity Centre 

Management Committee 

(Registered Charity)

Annual 1 Lee Mason (19/6/18)

(vacancy)

Portsmouth Royal Dockyard 

Historical Trust

Annual 1 can be a non 

Councillor

Alicia Denny (19/6/18)
Rob Wood

Stacey Community Centre 

Management Committee

Annual 1 Darren Sanders (19/6/18)
Darren Sanders

Stamshaw & Tipner Community 

Centre Association (GMC)

Annual 1 Leo Madden (19/6/18)

Leo Madden

West Paulsgrove Scout & 

Community Association

3 years 1   Not necessarily an 

elected member.
Meeting every two months,the next meeting 

is agreed at each meeting, starting at 7.30. 

next meeting will be 25/04/2019

Vacancy held.

(vacancy)

Standing Conference on 

Problems Associated with the 

Coastline (SCOPAC)

Annual 1 Hugh Mason (19/6/18)                                                     

Hugh Mason

LGA Coastal Issues Special 

Interest Group

Annual 1 Hugh Mason
Hugh Mason

Portchester Crematorium Joint 

Committee

Annual 2 Cabinet Members Dave Ashmore                                              

Jeanette Smith (19/6/18)

Steve Pitt

+ Jeanette Smith

Portsmouth Plastic Free 

Coastliines Steering group

Annual 1 Councillor Will Purvis (19/6/18)
Will Purvis

Project Integra Strategic Board Annual 1 + deputy Dave Tompkins (6/7/18)

(vacancy for deputy)

Dave Ashmore

Graham Heaney (deputy)

Solent Sea Rescue Organisation Annual 1 Lee Mason (19/6/18)
Lee Hunt

Southern Inshore Fisheries & 

Conservation Authority (formerly 

Southern Sea Fisheries Cttee)

Annual 1 Matthew Winnington 

(19/6/18)
Matthew Winnington

Southern Regional Flood & 

Coastal Committee

Annual 1 Hugh Mason (2015)
Hugh Mason

Trading Standards South East 

Limited (known as TSSE) Infdefinite 1 member or officer

Officer representative 

(19/6/18) Member vacancy/officer

Portsmouth Disability Forum 

(Registered Charity and Company)

Annual 2 Jennie Brent                                                                                    

Vacancy from Oct 18                              
Cal Corkery

Suzy Horton

H
e

a
lt

h
, 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 &

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

C
u

lt
u

re
 L

e
is

u
re

 &
 S

p
o

rt
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

S
a

fe
ty

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

P
age 11



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

Portsmouth Fostering Panel 3 years 1 Once a month - 

9th April, 23rd April, 14th May, 31st May, 

11th June, 9th July, 13th August , 10th 

September, 8th October, 12th 

November,10th December 2019

(Vacancy)

H
o

u

s
in

g Lord Mayor of Portsmouth’s 

Coronation Homes - Board

ex officio 1
meet every 4-6 weeks

Lord Mayor (19/6/18)
The Lord Mayor

Fratton Big Local Annual 1 Fratton Ward 

Councillor
May 7th, June11th , July 2nd, August 6th, 

September 10th, October 1st, November 5th ( 

Away Day), December 3rd 

Meeting held in Fratton Community Centre 

12.00noon -2.00pm.

Dave Ashmore (full 

member)

Tom Coles (deputy)   

19/6/18 Dave Ashmore

Tom Coles (deputy)

Hampshire & Isle of Wight Local 

Government Association

Annual 3 • 14 June 2019 (Annual) – HCC

• 27 September 2019 – Rushmoor BC

• 29 November 2019 – Havant BC

Meetings Held Quarterly

Lee Mason (19/6/17)

Judith Smyth (19/6/18)

Gerald Vernon-Jackson 

(6/7/18)

Judith Smyth

Gerald Vernon-Jackson

(1 vacancy)

Improvement & Efficiency South 

East (IESE)                         LGA 

representative

Annual 1 Darren Sanders (19/6/18)

Darren Sanders

Improvement & Efficiency South 

East (IESE)                         LGA 

representative - Non Exec 

Director

ongoing 1 Lee Mason (19/6/18)

Rob Wood

Port Advisory Board On-going 1 ex-officio (Cabinet 

Member for PRED or 

Port responsibility) + 5

Plus deputies if 

required

There are 4 meetings a year and they are held 

every quarter.

Ben Dowling (ex-officio)

Hugh Mason

Gerald Vernon-Jackson

Donna Jones

Frank Jonas

Judith Smyth                                                                                                                                   

(19/6/18)

Judith Smyth

Hugh Mason

Gerald Vernon-Jackson

Steve Pitt

+ vacancy

Public Service Board Ex officio 

for the 

Leader.

1
No further meeting dates as merging with 

other board.

Gerald Vernon-Jackson (ex-

officio as Leader) 19/6/18 Gerald Vernon-Jackson

PUSH (Partnership for Urban 

South Hampshire) Joint 

Committee 

Annual 1 + 1 deputy Gerald Vernon-Jackson 

with Ben Dowling as deputy
Gerald Vernon-Jackson with Steve 

Pitt as deputy

PUSH Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee

For time 

being

1 + deputy 
6pm at Fareham BC

Judith Smyth (full)                                                                                            

No deputy.

Judith Smyth

vacancy for deputy

H
e

a
lt

h
, 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 &

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

P
age 12



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

SIGOMA (Special Interest Group 

of Municipal Authorities admin 

by the LGA)

Annual 1 + deputy the full schedule of 2019/20 Member 

meetings will be set at the July Full meeting 

and AGM (which is the next one) . The annual 

meeting takes place at the LGA annual 

conference Bournemouth this year over 2-4 

July

Lee Mason (19/6/18)

(vacancy for deputy)

Member vacancy/officer rep for 

deputy

St Thomas's Cathedral Council Annual 1 Gerald Vernon-Jackson
Chris Attwell

William Shepherd Charity & 

Elizabeth Mary Claypitt Charity

Not stated

2

Churchwarden and the vicar 

of St Mary's Church Churchwarden and vicar

Building Control Partnership Annual 1 Ben Dowling (member rep)

Claire Upton-Brown (officer 

rep)

Steve Pitt (member rep)

Head Of Planning (officer rep)

Hampshire Buildings 

Preservation Trust – Annual 

Meeting (Registered Charity)

Annual 1 14/6 vacancy held.

Vacancy

Minerals and Waste 

Development Framework 

Members’ Steering Group

Annual Ex officio for Cabinet 

Member PRED.

Ben Dowling (ex officio) 

19/6/18 Gerald Vernon-Jackson

PATCH Ltd (Registered Company) Annual Up to 3 Rob Wood  (19/6)                                                    

Ryan Brent (if he is willing 

to continue) 19/6/18 

Tom Wood (6/7/18)

Cal Corkery

Tom Wood 

Chris Atwell

Solent Forum Annual 1 Ben Dowling (3 Aug 18) Ben Dowling

Tourism South East (Registered 

Company)

Annual 2 The date for this year’s meeting has yet to be 

finalised but they hope that it will be 26 

September 2019.

Steve Pitt                                                                               

Scott Payter-Harris
Steve Pitt

1 vacancy

European City Twinning 

Committee

3 years 5 including the Leader 

and Lord Mayor + 2 The committee meets once every 2 months 

approximately. 

Jeanette Smith 

(representing the Leader)

Lynne Stagg                                               

Yahiya Chowdhury

Claire Udy                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Jo Hooper

Lord Mayor (ex-officio)

The Lord Mayor (ex officio)

Jeanette Smith

Lynne Stagg

+ Claire Udy 

+ vacancies

Haifa/ Portsmouth Friendship 

Committee

2 years 5 Hugh Mason                                                 

Frank Jonas                                               

Lee Mason

+ 2 vacancies

Tom Coles

Hugh Mason

Dave Ashmore

Jeanette Smith

+ 1 vacancy

P
R

E
D

P
age 13



A
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 b
o

d
y

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

B
o

d
y

P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
o

in
te

e
s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

te
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts

P
R

E
D

South East Employers Annual 1 + 1 deputy.  Note: 

that PCC used to be 

able to appoint 2 reps 

and 2 deputies.

Jim Fleming (19/6/18)                                                                                             

Stephen Morgan (19/6/18)                                         

Darren Sanders - deputy 

(6/7/18)

1 deputy vacancy

Darren Sanders

Stephen Morgan (deputy)

National Parking Adjudication 

Service Management Committee - 

now known as Parking & Traffic 

Regulations Outside London 

(PATROL)

Ex officio 

Cabinet 

Member 

for T&T

1
The joint committee meetings are held 

annually in July in London. The next meeting 

will be held on Tuesday 16 July and papers 

will be sent to those members who confirm 

attendance

Lynne Stagg (ex officio)

Lynne Stagg

Solent Transport Joint 

Committee (formerly known as 

Transport for S Hants - Joint 

Cttee

Annual 1                                   

Normally Cabinet 

Member for T&T.

Lynne Stagg 

Lynne Stagg

Transport Liaison Group Annual 3 ex officio ( Cabinet 

Member + group 

spokespersons)

Lynne Stagg                                                       

Simon Bosher                                               

Yahiya Chowdhury 

i) Graham Heaney

ii) Lynne Stagg (Cabinet Member)

iii) Simon Bosher

3 =  T&T Cabinet Member and 

spokespersons

T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

P
age 14



 
 

 
1 

 

CABINET 
 
RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Monday, 17 
June 2019 at 1.00 pm at the Guildhall, Portsmouth 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors Steve Pitt 
Dave Ashmore 
Suzy Horton 
Lee Hunt 

 
58. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 

 
These had been received from Councillors Lynne Stagg, Matthew Winnington, 
Jeanette Smith, Darren Sanders and Rob Wood. 
 

59. Declarations of Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of members' interests. 
 

60. Forward Plan Omission (AI 3) 
 
With regards to the item relating to the Significant Property Acquisition, the 
Cabinet noted: 

(1) The omission to the Forward Plan for June 2019 

(2) The publication of the omission notice. 

 
61. Significant Property Acquisition (AI 4) 

 
Tom Southall, Assistant Director, Property & Investment, presented his report 
and it was reported that Chris Ward, Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer 
would be making a full presentation to Council at the meeting later in the day.  
Paragraphs 3.7 to 3.10 of the report set out the importance of the site and its 
influence on the economic development of the city.   Chris Ward stressed that 
this would be a long term regeneration asset for 35 years plus. 
 
Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson, as Leader, reiterated that this would be a 
long term decision, taken for the economic development of the city, so he 
wished to add an addition recommendation to set up a cross-party board for 
its governance.   
 
Councillor Steve Pitt, Deputy Leader, agreed that this was a long term 
strategic asset that needed discussion at full Council, and which would benefit 
the north of the city as well as the whole city.  Councillor Dave Ashmore 
agreed that council influence was important for the future of this site, including 
consideration of the environmental impacts and infrastructure there. 
 

Page 15



 
2 

 

The Cabinet approved DECISIONS (1) & (2) 
 
(1)  Subject to the approval of the City Council of the 
recommendations (3) below, that delegated authority be given to the 
Director of Regeneration and the Director of Finance & Section 151 
Officer, taking advice from the City Solicitor, and in consultation with the 
Leader of the City Council to approve the completion of the acquisition 
of Lakeside North Harbour. 
 
(2) That a cross-party board be established as the governing entity to 
oversee the overall strategic management of the asset. 
 
The Cabinet RECOMMENDED to Council: 
 
(3) (a) That the acquisition of Lakeside North Harbour Business 
Park be added to the Council's Capital Programme and financed by 
borrowing, subject to: 
 
i) The satisfactory completion of the outstanding due diligence 
 
ii) A financial appraisal (based on the completed due diligence) 
being approved by the Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer which 
demonstrates that the total financial impact and financial risks are 
affordable and manageable by the Council over the longer term. 
 
(b) That the following Treasury Management Limits be approved: 
 
i) That the authorised limit for external borrowing be increased to 
£807m 
 
ii) That the operational boundary be increased to £777m 
 
(4) That the Council notes that the following urgent decisions have 
been taken by the Chief Executive in accordance with Standing Order 58 
of the Council's Procedure Rules in order that advance treasury 
management preparations could be made for the transaction should the 
Council approve the acquisition: 
 
i) That the investment counter party limit for Barclays Bank Plc has 
been temporarily increased to £100m 
 
ii) That the sector limit for investments in money market funds has 
been temporarily increased to £104m. 
 
(5) Note that in approving the temporary changes to the treasury 
management limits, no obligation to acquire the property has been 
entered into and no long term financial liabilities have been incurred. 
The changes simply enable the Council to accumulate the necessary 
funding in a risk managed and cost efficient manner and have funds 
available should the transaction be approved, the risks are considered 
negligible. 

Page 16



 
3 

 

 
 
The meeting concluded at 1.10 pm. 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE 
Leader of the Council 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



� ���� ��� ��� �� 	 
 ��
��� �� 	 � 
�� �� �� �
��� �
 
 ��� 
���� ���� �� 

� �
��� �
� � �
�� ���� 
��
�
�� ��� �
� ��������� � ���� �� �
�� �  ��� �
�! ��
���� 
 ��� ���� ���� ��  ��� �
�! �" 	����# $ % & % ' ( ) * + # , - . ) ( / 0 ' 1 . ( 2 * - 3 (4 0 ) * , 5 6 6 7 8 9 : ; < = > ? 7 @ 9 A B C D E < @ <7 @ 7 8 9 9 A > 6 F 9 7 G < D E <H 8 I > 6 < D J < K I < ; @ L ? ;M G 7 F 8 D > ? 6 8 6 GH E > 9 G ; < 6 N O 8 K > 9 > < @ P 7 Q A R ? ; D ? 6R 7 S E J 8 @ ? 6R 8 6 6 8 E R ? F T 8 G 8 AU < > 9 9 V ? 7 6 SW 5 9 9 X Y Z [ Z X \ ] ^ - _ + ` 0 * ( 0 '` - a b c ) 3 0 'd 0 4 e 0 0 ,f g h ) . ) ' . + i 2 % * * + j 0 * ( 0 ' ) ' , c ) ( ( b % k 1 ( l / ' 3/ ' . * % ) 3 % ( 0 m no / ( + 0 p q 0 * ( 3 & 0 - ( b ^ r 0 * ( 3o 0 - ' . / $ 5 6 6 7 8 9 s P D < = < : > D D W X Y Z [ Z X \ ]P F ? D D : 8 A D < ; t R 8 ; ; > @W X Y Z [ Z X \ ]X = 8 F 8 6 F A ^ ( % h % q / ( (f u h ) . ) ' . / % 3 i ^ . 0 ( ( q ) + ( % * v ` ) * * / 3w ) * $ / ' a ( 0 ' c ) * 3 b % 3 c ) ' ) a % & % ' (o 0 & & / ( ( % % 5 6 6 7 8 9 B R 7 S E J 8 @ ? 6 W X Y Z [ Z X \ ]P > K ? 6 x ? @ E < ; W X Y Z [ Z X \ ]P D < = < : > D D W X Y Z [ Z X \ ]y < 6 M 9 9 F ? K < W [ Z z ] ` - a b c ) 3 0 '^ ( % h % q / ( (g u h ) . ) ' . / % 3 2 % * * + j 0 * ( 0 '` ) & r 3 b / * % o 0 - ' ( * + 3 / , % 1 . . % 3 3w 0 * - & s A < 8 ; @ X { 8 F 8 6 F A E < 9 G | } ) . ) ' . + ~ % ' % , / . ( ^ k ) ' '� / ' a 3 2 b % ) ( * % 2 * - 3 ( � ( ,W H E 8 ; > D 8 I 9 < H ? K � 8 6 A ] 5 6 6 7 8 9 � R 7 S E J 8 @ ? 6� 7 T < P D 7 I I @W x ? D E X Y Z [ Z X \ ] ` - a b c ) 3 0 ' r $ - 3 h ) . ) ' . + � - l % ^ ( - 4 4 3� h % * $ 0 * , # & 4 * 0 / , % * + 2 * - 3 (� / ) / 3 0 ' o 0 & & / ( ( % % 5 6 6 7 8 9 H 8 I > 6 < D J < K I < ; L ? ;H 7 9 D 7 ; < � � < > @ 7 ; < NP � ? ; D � � ? D E < ; @ | P D < = < : > D DO ; 8 6 T � ? 6 8 @� 7 G > D E P K A D EW 5 9 9 X Y Z [ Z X \ ] � - , / ( b ^ & + ( b^ ( % h % q / ( (f � h ) . ) ' . + i w * ) ' l � 0 ' ) 3q % ( % * 1 3 b $ % + 1 . ( / h / ( + o % ' ( * %c ) ' ) a % & % ' ( o 0 & & / ( ( % %W � < S > @ D < ; < G H E 8 ; > D A ] 5 6 6 7 8 9 X � < < J 8 @ ? 6 W X Y Z [ Z X \ ] f h ) . ) ' . + i c ) ( ( b % k 1 ( l / ' 3` ) & r 3 b / * % � � 3 $ % 0 p e / a b ( � 0 . ) $� 0 h % * ' & % ' ( 1 3 3 0 . / ) ( 5 6 6 7 8 9 s � < < J 8 @ ? 6 � � 7 G > D P K A D E �� < ; 8 9 G { < ; 6 ? 6 � 8 F T @ ? 6 � - , / ( b ^ & + ( b � % * ) $ , } % * ' 0 ' � ) . l 3 0 ') ' , h ) . ) ' . + � % % c ) 3 0 'q � ^ ` � h % * h / % k � ^ . * - ( / ' +o 0 & & / ( ( % % O ? ; D > K <I < > 6 S X � G < � 7 D A � 7 G > D E P K A D E W L 7 9 9 ]U ? G < � 7 D A | � - , / ( b ^ & + ( bh ) . ) ' . + p 0 * , % r - ( + � - l % ^ ( - 4 4 3� 
�� 
� q 0 * ( 1 , h / 3 0 * + ~ 0 ) * , � 6 t S ? > 6 S X < � t ? L L > F > ? W H 8 I > 6 < DJ < K I < ; L ? ; : � M � ? ;: ? ; D ; < @ � ? 6 @ > I > 9 > D A ] � �: 9 7 @ G < � 7 D > < @ > L; < � 7 > ; < G x < 6 � ? � 9 > 6 S W < � t ? L L > F > ? ]R 7 S E J 8 @ ? 6� < ; 8 9 G { < ; 6 ? 6 t � 8 F T @ ? 6� ? 6 6 8 � ? 6 < @O ; 8 6 T � ? 6 8 @� 7 G > D E P K A D EW X Y Z [ Z X \ ] � - , / ( b ^ & + ( b` - a b c ) 3 0 '� % * ) $ , } % * ' 0 ' v � ) . l 3 0 '^ ( % h % q / ( (g u h ) . ) ' . + � 0 ' ' ) � 0 ' % 3 ) ' , w * ) ' l � 0 ' ) 3
 �" � ��
� 
� ���
�� ����

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



� ���� ��� � ¡ �¢ £ ¤ ¥¦§�©̈ �¢ £ ª §«� �¢ �¨ ¬§«­� ®§ ¤ ¦̄¡ §«��̈ ���� �� §§¬ «§°̄� «§¢ ª «§­� �̄¬± §�«§¬§�� ¥�� ­§¬ ²³́µ¶·µ̧¹ � ���� �� ¦§�� ¬ º ¥¡� �§�» �̄§³́µ̧ ¤ �¦� �¥�� ��¬¨ �« º ¥¡� �§�» ¯¼ £³́µ̧½ ¾ ¿ À Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ç È É Ê Æ Ä Ä Æ Ä ËÅ À Ì Ì Æ Ç Ç Â Â Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù Ô Õ Ú Û Ü Ï Ý Ï Ð Ù Ï ÑÐ Õ Ù Ý Þ Ñ Ù ß Ð Î Þ Ñ à á â Ï Ð Õ Ï Û Û Ï ã ä Ô Û Üå Ñ Ï æ Ñ Ï Ò Ï Õ Û Ô Õ Ú Û Ü Ï Ý Ï Ð Ù Ï Ñ çÝ Î Õ Õ Ï ã Û Ð Ú Úè Ð Ü Ô Î Ð é Ü Þ ê Ù Ü Ø Ñ Îé × Ð Ô Ñ Ï ë Ù Îâ Þ ì Þ Þ æ Ï ÑÝ Þ Ñ Ù ß Ð Î Þ Ñ å Ï í î Þ ï ï Ô Ö Ô Þ ç É ð Â ñ À ¿ ò ó Ã È À ¿ ô Â õ À ö ö Æ ÷ Æ À øù Â Ã Ä Â Ç Ç Â ú Ì Æ Ç ðñ È Ä Ä Â ú Ç Ã Ë Ëû Å ü Ã Æ ¿ Â ý ò Èû þ Ã ÷ Ã Ä ÷ Æ Â ÿ ñ Æ Ä ò Ã ú È Ì Â ÿñ Â Â ó Ã ÿ À Ä� Ã Æ ö Ã � � À ¿ Ç ÿ Ì À ¾ Ç ð � ¿ Æ Â Ä ò ÿ ð Æ ÁÅ À Ì Ì Æ Ç Ç Â Â á Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó ì Ø Ú Ü ß Ð Ò Þ Õ� Ñ Ð Õ � â Þ Õ Ð ÒÝ Ï Ï ß Ð Ò Þ Õà á � Ð Ö Ð Õ Ö Ô Ï Ò É À Ì Å À ü Â ÿ� ¾ Ë ð ó Ã ÿ À Ä� Ã þ Â � ÿ ð Ì À ¿ Âù Â Ã Ä Â Ç Ç Â ú Ì Æ Ç ðû 	 þ Ã ÷ Ã Ä ÷ È ó Ã Ç Ç ð Â Ê � Ç 
 Æ Ä ÿÉ À ¾ ¿ Æ ÿ Ì ú À ¾ Ç ð ½ Ã ÿ Ç � Õ Õ Ø Ð × á ã Û Ï � Ï � Ô Û Û 
 ã Ö Þ Û Û � Ð Î Û Ï Ñ îì Ð Ñ Ñ Ô Ò ú Ç Â þ Â � Æ Ç Ç ô 	 þ Ã ÷ Ã Ä ÷ È ø ú ÷ À Ç Ç � Ã È Ç Â ¿ � � Ã ¿ ¿ Æ ÿª±��

Page 20



 

1 

 
Agenda item:  

 

Title of meeting: 

 

 

Cabinet 

 

Date of meeting: 

 

Subject: 

 

9 July 2019 

 

Portsmouth City of Sanctuary 

Report From: 

 

David Williams, The Chief Executive 

  

Report by: 

 

Caroline Hopper, Strategy Unit 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Key decision: 

 

No 

Full Council decision: No 

 

 

 

1. Purpose of report 

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with information about the 

Portsmouth City of Sanctuary agenda, it's implications for Portsmouth, the 

expectations and associated resource implications upon the Council as a 

supporter of this initiative. The report also seeks the advice of members on 

how we should respond to this agenda.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Cabinet is recommended to: 

2.1.1 Note that there is local appetite for Portsmouth to become a 

recognised City of Sanctuary and that Portsmouth City Council has 

already openly pledged support for the agenda.   

2.1.2 Agree that it is important that the Council responds to this agenda as 

one body. 

2.1.3 Agree that the cost of establishing the scheme at £16,000 in 2019/20   

for coordinating this activity and making sure the Council fulfils its 

obligation the City of Sanctuary are funded by a contribution from the 

Environment & Community Safety portfolio reserve.  

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

2 

 

 

3. Background 

3.1 City of Sanctuary is a national movement, traditionally focused on enabling 

asylum seekers and refugees, fleeing violence and persecution, to be better 

understood, welcomed, safe and supported by local services and communities. It 

is underpinned by a charter, based upon three key principles:  

 

 Learn (what is means to seek sanctuary);  

 Embed (take positive action to be welcoming); and,  

 Share (develop a culture of best practice and advocacy).  

 

3.2 Established in 2005, with the support of Sheffield City Council and over 100 

local community organisations, Sheffield became the UK’s first ‘City of Sanctuary’. 

This status was achieved through a collective commitment to welcome and 

inclusion, development of a range of community cohesion activities, a programme 

of awareness raising and advocacy, and development of befriending services.  

 

3.3 In February 2019 the British Red Cross in partnership with ArtReach 

approached Portsmouth City Council seeking:  
 

 Endorsement of 'Portsmouth City of Sanctuary'; 

 That the council actively seek ways of including and supporting those 

seeking sanctuary within their usual activities; 

 That the Council be a supporter of Portsmouth City of Sanctuary; 

 That the Council support Portsmouth City of Sanctuary to practically 

establish the agenda through sustainable governance and 

communication platforms. 

 

3.4 This city's aspiration is to build work streams of action in respect of a broader 

range of people (asylum seekers, refugees, veterans, the homeless, and those 

suffering domestic abuse and hate crime) across the public, private, education and 

voluntary sector - making it a truly cross cutting agenda, relevant to a number of 

directorates within the Council.   

 

3.5 Portsmouth City of Sanctuary launched on 19th June 2019 with the support of 

more than eighty local organisations, including endorsement from Portsmouth City 

Council. Locally the agenda is in its infancy, and the Council needs to consider 

how best to meet its own support pledge, whilst supporting the local aspirations in 

a way that is sustainable.  

 

Page 22



 

3 

3.6 Prior to the Council's organisational endorsement of the agenda, several 

services areas within PCC's directorate of Children, Families and Education had 

already individually engaged with Portsmouth City of Sanctuary; having identified 

it as complementary to their own business as usual activities. No work has yet been 

undertaken internally in respect of the pledge principles of learn, embed and share. 

Given the broad reach of the agenda in Portsmouth, the Council needs to consider 

how to best move forward in an organised approach to enable benefits to be 

maximised and reduce duplication of effort.  

 

4. Timeline 

June 2019  

PCC Endorse Portsmouth City of Sanctuary Launch. 

Portsmouth City of Sanctuary Launch, PCC support social media coverage, 

Portsmouth News coverage (feature article) focuses on the Veteran element.   

July- Sept 2019  

Proposed - PCC assigns a strategic lead to this agenda who will bring 

together relevant departments and drive forward pledged commitments.  

Proposed - PCC supports movement to develop sustainable governance 

structures. 

Sept 2019 - April 2020  

Proposed - PCC review of own organisational policy, business as usual 

activity and communication to align with City of Sanctuary vision and 

principles.  

 

5. Implications for Portsmouth 

5.1 The City of Sanctuary agenda provides support for marginalised people within 

Portsmouth but also provides opportunity for Portsmouth to be seen by residents, 

investors and visitors (including UK and International students) as an attractive and 

caring destination and place to live. The positive consequences of this narrative for 

the local economy and local authority are yet to be fully fiscally considered.  

 

5.2 It is likely that there will be many benefits associated with increased partnership 

working. More tangibly this agenda holds the potential to reduce demand on core 

services over time through increased community capacity and through the 

development of more efficient support pathways. However getting this right will require 

appropriate internal capacity in the first instance to establish the necessary policies 

and processes and engagement frameworks. There is also potential for increased 

talent acquisition in areas of need such as teaching and health services. This would 

also require coordination to ensure potential benefits are maximised.  

Page 23



 

4 

 

5.3 Whilst there is potential for reduced demand if this agenda is implemented 

effectively, highlighting the needs of vulnerable members of society holds the potential 

for increased demand on core service in the short term. There is also a potential for 

increased public awareness to convert into increased political pressure upon the local 

authority to manage issues, such as street homelessness and veterans mental health, 

managing this enquiry would impact some service areas. These dis-benefits would be 

short lived with internal capacity in place to ensure benefit realisation.  

 

5.4 There is a potential for negative reputational damage if the Council is publically 

perceived to be inadequately supportive of the agenda or not meeting the 

commitments we have made.  

 

5.5 Ensuring sufficient capacity to maximise beneficial and mitigate negative 

consequences associated with the agenda will have resource implications. There are 

options for ensuring all work required is undertaken effectively: backfill of existing 

strategic capacity, re-prioritising capacity within relevant service areas, and utilisation 

of existing resources within the HIVe, or combination of these. Reprioritising capacity 

to achieve the activity stated within the timeline in Section 4 has been estimated to 

cost approximately £16,000 (1 day per week strategic management and co-ordination 

for a period of 9 months).  Resource may also be needed to develop wider stakeholder 

engagement, city wide partnerships and/or governance structures (although HIVe 

could support this work).  

 

 

6. Reasons for recommendations 

 

6.1 Portsmouth City of Sanctuary is an agenda with significant local interest. It will 

require capacity to maximise the benefits associated with this agenda and ensure a 

coherent and efficient organisation response. Without such capacity there is a risk of 

duplicated effort, missed opportunity, sustained increased demand on services, and 

organisational reputational damage.   

 

7. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 

 

7.1 A preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and reviewed by 

PCC Access & equality advisor.  

 

8. Legal Implications/City Solicitor comments  

 

8.1 There is no immediate legal implications arising from this report.  

Page 24



 

5 

 

9. Director of Finance and Information Services comments 

 

9.1 The cost of the resource required to establish the activity and place the scheme 

on a 'firm footing' outlined in paragraph 4 will be funded from the 

Environment & Community Safety portfolio reserve. As mentioned in para 

5.3, there is the potential for the scheme to reduce demand and costs to the 

Council in the future. 

 

 

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

 

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 

material extent by the author in preparing this report: 

 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 

Appendices: 

 

None.  

 

Signed by: 

 

 

 

 

……………………… 

DAVID WILLIAMS 

Chief Executive 

Portsmouth City Council 

 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � 	 � � 	 
 
 � 
 
 � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � � 	 
 
 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 
 � � � 
 � � � � � �� � � � � � � 
 � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
� � � � � � � 	 � �� � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � 

� 	 � 	 � � � � � � 	 � �� � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � 
 ! " # $ % & ! ' ( & ) ! * ' ) ' & # ) % ! $ $ % * ! + % # ( , - ! ) % ( ) ' # . ( % & # ) ' + % ' * - # / ) 0

� � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 
 � � � 
 � � 	 
 � � 
 � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� 1 � � � � � � �2 � � 	 � � � 
3 � � � 
 � � � � � 4 � � 
 � � 2 	 � � � � 	 � 

� 1 � 
 � � � �5 � � � � � � � � 
 � �

★ 4 � 	 � � � �
Page 27



� � � � � � � � � � 3 � � � 
 � � � � � 6 
 4 � � 
 � � 2 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � �7 8 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � � 
 
 � 	 � 
 � � � 97 � 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � � 
 97 2 � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 
 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
 9 	 � � �7 : � � � � � � � 
 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � �� � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � �3 � � � 
 � � � � � 4 � � 
 4 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 	 � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 
 
 �� � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 ; 	 
 
 � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 
 � 	 � � � � � 
 �
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 
 � 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � � < � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � 
 �� � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � �� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 
 3 � � � 
 � � � � � 4 � � 
 � � 2 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � 	 � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � 
 � �� � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � �
� � �

★= � 
 	 � � � � � 

★> 	 � �
★2 � 1
★? � � � � � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � �
★2 � 1 � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � �
★> � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
★3 � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � 

★@ 	 � � � 	 � � A � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � �
★B � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � � � � 

★

Page 28



B � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 1 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � C � � � � � 
 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � 
 � @ 	 � 
� � � � 
 � � � 1 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � 	 � � � C � � � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � D
� � 	

� � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � �� � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � � 
 � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 	 � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 
 �
� � �

★= � 
 	 � � � � � 

★> 	 � �
★2 � 1
★? � � � � � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � �

★2 � 1 � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � �
★> � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
★3 � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � 

★@ 	 � � � 	 � � A � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � �
★B � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � � � � 


★

3 � � 	 
 � 	 � � � � � � � � � 1 � � � 1 � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 
 
 � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � � � 
 � � �
Page 29



� � � 5 � � � � � � �= � 
 	 � � � � � 

No direct > 	 � �
No direct 2 � 1
No direct ? � � � � � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � �
No direct 2 � 1 � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � �
No direct > � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
No direct 3 � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � 

No direct @ 	 � � � 	 � � A � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � �
No direct B � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � � � � 

No direct 


 � 
 5 �
★E � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � 
 � � 	 � � � 
 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � F G H I G J H K L J I � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 M � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
 � 	 � � E � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 M � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � �� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 	 � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � �N � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � E � � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 
 E � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
 � � 2 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 
 
 � 	 � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � �� � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � � 	 
 � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � 	3 4 4 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 	 4 � � 
 O � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � � � � � � 
 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 
 	 � � � � � � �� 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � �� � � 
 � � � � � 
 	 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 3 � � � 
 � � � � � 4 � � 
 � � 2 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � � �� 1 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � 
� � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � �? � � 	 3 � � � 
 � 	 � ; � � � � 
 
 A � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � < Page 30



3 	 � � 
 @ 	 
F G H I G J H K F G FP I � F Q � G F P JE 3 � � 	 
 � � � 	 � � 	 � � � 
 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � 
 � � 	 � � O � � � � � � � � � 	 � �
 � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � �� � � � � � � � � � F G H I G J H K L J I � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 M � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �E 3 � � 	 
 � � � 	 � � 	 � � � 
 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � 	 � 
� � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � 
 M � � 
 � � � �

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 

Agenda item:  

  
Title of meeting:  
 

 Cabinet Meeting  
 

Subject: 
 

Southsea Coastal Scheme  

Date of meeting:  
 

 9th July 2019 

Report by: 
 

 Director -Regeneration 

Wards affected: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Full Council 
 

 St Thomas, St Jude, Eastney and Craneswater 
 
No 
 
No 

 

 
1. Purpose  

  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for authority to be delegated to 

The Director of Regeneration to award the Construction contract for the 
Southsea Coastal Scheme (the Scheme) and to inform members of the 
submission of the Schemes’ Full Business Case to the Environment Agency 
in Autumn 2019, based on the current designs. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1    For Cabinet Members to delegate authority to the Director of Regeneration to 

enter into the Construction contract for the Southsea Coastal Scheme, subject 
to prior approval by the Procurement Gateway Board. 

           
3. Background Information 

 
3.1 The Southsea Coastal Scheme is a significant investment in the infrastructure         

of the City to reduce the risk of coastal flooding and erosion at Southsea. The 
Scheme covers 4.5km (2.8miles) of coastline from the Royal Garrison Church 
to Eastney Barracks. The Scheme is designed to protect over 8,000 
properties, 700 businesses, multiple heritage sites and key infrastructure from 
the risk of coastal flooding. Approximately 4,000 of these properties are at risk 
of direct inundation from flooding. The seafront, along with Southsea 
Common, is a focal point for recreation and tourism and is hugely important 
for the City as an asset and functioning flood defence. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 
 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

3.2       The Scheme has completed the Principal Design stage and public consultation 
                       moving forward as agreed with the submission of a major planning application 
                       at the end of June 2019. 

  
3.3   Using the Principal Design, the team has begun a fully OJEU compliant 

procurement process to appoint a Construction Contractor. A short-listing 
process has been completed and 3 bidders have been invited to tender for 
the contract, they are, Van Ord, Bam Nuttall and Boskalis, three 
internationally recognised coastal flood defence contractors. 

 
3.4     Appointment of the Construction Contractor will allow a Full Business Case to 

be completed and submitted to the Environment Agency for approval to 
release funding for construction from central government.  

 
3.5    The construction contract has been written with a number of break clauses 

which limit financial commitment and allows the Council to terminate should 
either the funding not be made available from central government, or the 
costs of construction for a frontage is not demonstrating Best Value. 
Appointment of this contract is important to allow Early Contractor 
Involvement (ECI) work with the Designers to identify savings for the Scheme. 
This is critical for progression of the Scheme to construction in 2020. 

 
4.       Reasons for Recommendation 
 
           The appointment of a construction contractor will allow Full Business Case 

completion and submission within the ambitious timescales of the project 
driven by the Environment Agency Capital programme.  

 
4.1  This authorisation allows for Early Contractor Involvement works to be 

undertaken between the Contractor and Design supplier. 
  
4.2    The appointment will identify savings and allow construction to commence in 

2020 reducing the risk of flooding in Southsea. 
 
 
5.        Equality Impact Assessment   
 
5.1      An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken for the scheme at 

Principal Design stage and further assessments will be undertaken during the 
Detailed Design process.    

    
 
6.       Legal Implications 
 
          The delegation sought is sensible and the legal implications limited in that the 

functional decision to commit to contract is, as per the report to vest with the 
appropriate Director. 

 
 

              

Page 34



 
 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

7.        Director of Finance's comments  
  
7.1 The cost of appointing the contractor will be met from the Southsea Coastal 

defence capital scheme previously approved by Full Council. There will be no 
financial or contractual commitment to continue into construction until the Full 
Business Case has been approved by HM Treasury and Central Government 
Funding has been awarded. (See 3.5). 

 
7.2 The cost of procurement will be met from the approved capital programme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
…………………………………………………………………… 
Signed by:- Tristan Samuels - Director Regeneration 
 
Appendices: 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

Nil  

  

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ 
deferred/ rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  Councillor Gerald Vernon - Jackson, Leader of the Council 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Agenda item:  

Title of meeting: 
 

Cabinet Decision Meeting 

Date of meeting: 
 

9th July 2019 

Subject: 
 

Merger of Coroner Areas in Hampshire 

Report by: 
 

Director of  Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services  
and City Solicitor 
 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council 
decision: 

No 

 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 

To provide background information on, and to seek an agreement in relation to, 
the appropriate merger of Coroner services with Hampshire County Council or 
the Isle of Wight. 

 
2. Recommendations 
  

That the Cabinet:  
 

2.1 Approves the option 1 to pursue a merger of coronial areas in Hampshire. 
 

2.2 Delegate to the Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services the 
management of merger process. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Local Authority management of the Portsmouth and South Hampshire 

Coroner Service was transferred to Portsmouth City Council from Hampshire 
County Council from 1st April 2015.   

 
3.2 In Hampshire there are 4 Coroner areas Central, Southampton and the New 

Forest, Portsmouth and South East Hampshire, North East Hampshire and the 
Isle of Wight.  The retirement of the Portsmouth and South East Senior coroner, 
Central/Southampton and New Forest and the North East Senior coroner posts 
present an opportunity to amalgamate all the services and improve the 
effectiveness, efficiency and economy for all parties.   

 
3.3 Hampshire County Council and Portsmouth City Council consulted with The 

Chief Coroner on 7th February 2019 and discussed a proposed merger.  The 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

options comply with the recommendation in The Chief Coroner's Guidance No 
14 - Merger of Coroner areas' which states: 

 "…the number of Coroner areas should be reduced in order to create sensibly 
sized coroner areas, taking into account the numbers of reported deaths, 
geographical sized and types of Coroner work in the area.  In many cases 3,000 
- 5,000 reported deaths would be an appropriate number, although smaller or 
larger areas may in places be appropriate."   

 
3.4 The decision from this Cabinet meeting will be included in the business case to 

the Chief Coroner and Lord Chancellor. 
 
3.5 Options 
 
3.6 Option 1: Hampshire Coroners Service. 

Merger incorporating the following coronial areas:- 
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire, Southampton, Central and New Forest, 
North East Hampshire. 

 
3.7 Option 2: Portsmouth City Council and the Isle of Wight Coroner Service  
 Merger incorporating the following coronial areas:- 
 The City of Portsmouth and the Isle of Wight. 
 
3.8 Both merger options will:- 

 Positively review the needs of the bereaved ensuring they are prioritised and 
met through the service operating under unified processes and procedures. 

 Not impact on current service delivery 

 Provide better resilience and allow the coronial service to better deal with 
fluctuations in demand,  

 Ensure retained local justice 

 Provide a consistent and streamlined service to meet the needs of bereaved 
families without adversely impacting on quality 

 Accord with national policy and guidance in the context of a move towards larger 
coronial areas. 

 Streamline existing processes for all partners, ensuring consistent delivery 
within the County and Hampshire Police service. 

 Ensure the consistent and best use of the existing Coroner software (WPC).  

 Improve outcomes including inquest timeliness.  

 Provide staffing continuity across service area (managing sickness/caseload 
managed via WPC elsewhere within the area). 

 Increase available support should mass fatality occur, there will be more staff in 
the area to cope as well as an increase in shared resources 
(hospitals/pathologists etc.) 

 Make better and consistent technology at inquest. 
 
 

3.9           The cost of the Coroners service to PCC in 2018/19 was £728,400 (after 
recharging HCC for deaths occurring outside of PCC in the SE Hants area). 
 
The financial implications of the two options are as follows: 

Page 38



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

3.9.1  Hampshire Coroner Service - based upon 2018 activity, the proposed merged 
area will deal with approximately 7,800 deaths per annum. There will be a 
saving at Senior Coroner level as the revised structure with one senior and two 
area coroners replaces the existing structure of Senior Coroners in each area. 
This saving will be shared across the merged region. In addition the business 
plan indicates a number of other potential savings arising from economies of 
scale, improved buying power and other initiatives which have yet to be fully 
quantified but a prudent estimate of £25,000 to PCC is indicated. 

                As indicated in the business plan, the future charging methodology for the new 
coronial area has yet to be agreed. Historically the recharge of costs to HCC 
under the existing arrangement has been based on place of recorded death so 
for Portsmouth this will include non-resident deaths in QA hospital.  The first 
table in the business plan records PCC as having 58.9% of the Portsmouth & 
SE Hants Coronial area costs in 2018/19. At current levels of demand for the 
service, a revised methodology based upon population or residence has the 
potential to reduce the cost share to PCC. 

 
3.9.2  Portsmouth & Isle of Wight Coroner Service - in this model HCC take back 

responsibility for the SE Hants area so, based upon 2018 levels of demand for 
the service, the merged area would deal with approximately 2,500 deaths per 
annum. The financial impact of the proposed revised structure of one Senior 
Coroner and a part time Area Coroner together with savings from economies of 
scale and improved buying power indicate a potential saving to PCC of 
approximately £15,000.  

                PCC would also seek to review the existing charging mechanism for deaths in 
QAH with HCC. 
 

  
4. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 
 

 An equality impact assessment is not required for this report as the 
recommendations do not have a potential negative impact on any of the 
protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010.  
 

5. Legal comments 
The report accurately refers to the relevant Guidance. Given the retirements of 
the relevant Senior Coroner's within Hampshire this is an apposite time to 
consider area mergers.  
Both business cases offer savings which will in due course expose any 
participating Coronial area to the potential considerations of staff loss 
(redundancy), merger (staff TUPE) and lease surrender or grant depending 
upon what court or administrative function is retained or dispensed with.  This 
said neither option exposes colleagues upon an immediate basis and any such 
plans would be subject to compliance with the TUPE duties and the need to fully 
consult all involved.   

   
  

Page 39



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

6. Director of Finance comments 
6.1           The 2019/20 budget for the current Coroners service in PCC is £862,000. The 

proposed merger options indicate that savings from a revised structure, 
economies of scale and better buying power will be shared across participant 
authorities through a revised charging mechanism. The scale of the saving to 
PCC will depend upon the final methodology agreed. 

 
 
 
……………………………………………… ……………………………………………… 
 
Signed by:  Signed by:  
Stephen Baily Peter Baulf 
Director of Culture, Leisure and  City Solicitor 
Regulatory Services  
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Proposed Hampshire Coroner Service 
Appendix 2 Proposed Portsmouth and IOW Coroner Service  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

2009 Coroner's and Criminal 
Justice Act 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/cont
ents  

Guidance No.14 Mergers of 
Coroner Areas 

https://www.judiciary.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2013/09/guidance-no14-mergers-
of-coroner-areas.pdf  

Cabinet report 6/11/14 
Management and location of 
Coroners Service 
to within PCC 

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/g
2395/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Nov-
2014%2013.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10  

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/  
 
 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
Leader on behalf of the Cabinet 

Page 40

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/contents
https://www.judiciary.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/09/guidance-no14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf
https://www.judiciary.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/09/guidance-no14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf
https://www.judiciary.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/09/guidance-no14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/g2395/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Nov-2014%2013.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/g2395/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Nov-2014%2013.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/g2395/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Nov-2014%2013.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


15-12-2015 

 1 

ALTERATION OF CORONER AREAS UNDER SCHEDULE 2 OF THE CORONERS 
AND JUSTICE ACT 20091 

MINISTRY OF JUSTICE BUSINESS CASE TEMPLATE FOR MERGERS 
 
 
NAMES OF CORONER AREAS THAT ARE PROPOSING TO MERGE 
 

 Portsmouth & South East Hampshire 

 Isle of Wight 
 
PROPOSED NAME OF NEW AREA  
 

 Portsmouth & IOW 
  
INFORMATION ON AREAS THAT PROPOSE TO MERGE 
 
 

Coroner area 
 

Portsmouth & South 
East Hampshire 

Isle of Wight 
 

Portsmouth and Isle of 
Wight 

Geographical area covered 
 

Portsmouth, Havant, 
Fareham, Gosport, 
Petersfield 

Isle of Wight 
Portsmouth City and the 
Isle of Wight 

Local authority/ 
authorities that fund(s) 
coroner area and % 
 

Hampshire County 
Council 39% / 
Portsmouth City Council 
61% (17/18) 

Isle of Wight Council 
Portsmouth City Council 
and Isle of Wight 

Relevant authority 
(formerly lead authority) 
 

Portsmouth City Council Isle of Wight Portsmouth City Council 

Police Force(s)  
 
 

Hampshire Police Hampshire Police Hampshire Police 

Transport links 
 
 

A27, A3,A3(M), M275 
Portsmouth and 
numerous local stations 
Ports for international 
cruise and freight and 
ferry services  

The Solent - cross 
Solent ferries/cross 
channel ferries/cruise 
liners/freight vessels 

ALL 

Major hospitals  
 
 

1 (Queen Alexandra 
Hospital) 

1 (St Mary's Hospital 
- acute) 

ALL 

Prisons in area 
 
 

none 
HMP Isle of Wight 
HMP Albany 

ALL 

Other state detention 
facilities  
 

none none none 

Courtrooms/ 
inquest venues 
 

1 (Portsmouth) 1 (Isle of Wight) ALL 

Office/staff accommodation 
– location and capacity 
 

Civic Offices, Guildhall 
Square Portsmouth.  
Office suite for 6, court 
and jury room 

Seaclose Offices. 1 
general office for 2 
officers, inquest room 
for 1 officer, office for 
HMC and as 
interview room. 

ALL 

Employer of coroner’s 
officers’  
 

Portsmouth City Council Isle of Wight Council Portsmouth City Council 

Name of senior coroner  David Horsley Caroline Sumeray  

                                                 
1
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/schedule/2 

Page 41



15-12-2015 

 2 

Coroner area 
 

Portsmouth & South 
East Hampshire 

Isle of Wight 
 

Portsmouth and Isle of 
Wight 

Number of area coroners 
 

 0 0 1 (part-time) 

Number of assistant 
coroners  
 

4 1 2 

Number of coroner’s 
officers  
 

4.5 (4.04 FTE) 2.5 6.5 

Number of administrative 
support staff  
 

1.5 (1.5 FTE) 2 3.5 

Number of deaths reported 
in 2018/19 
 

2,643 835 3,478 

Inquests held in 2018/19 289 120 409 

Post mortem rate as % of 
reported deaths in the 
previous calendar year 

40% 53% 40% 

 

 IOW to provide map of the area showing the current position and the position 
in the event of a merger. Both maps should show details of for instance 
inquest venues, hospitals, prisons and transport links. 

  

Page 42



15-12-2015 

 3 

 

 PCC Map of existing and the proposed position (no changes) 

 
 
SENIOR CORONER APPOINTMENT 
 

 Why are you seeking a merger now (ie which area’s senior coroner is 
stepping down, when and why)?  

o This merger is proposed to follow national policy established by the Chief 
Coroner to merge smaller coronial areas and to replace part time and acting 
Coroners with full time equivalents with a much larger case load.  

o Senior Coroner David Horsley has announced his intention to retire at the end 
of October 2019. At present his coroner’s jurisdiction comprises of 
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire. Portsmouth City Council are the lead 
local authority for this area, with Hampshire County Council providing funding 

Page 43



15-12-2015 

 4 

for the number of deaths which occur within the South East Hampshire 
boundaries.  

o The proposal is to merge the Portsmouth area with the Isle of Wight. 
o The proposed merger provides an opportunity to create a larger district 

comprising of one local authority lead coroner’s jurisdiction and to reduce the 
number of Senior Coroners.  

 How do you propose to appoint the senior coroner for the new merged area – 
(i.e. does the relevant authority propose to appoint one of the senior coroners 
from the affected areas or to hold an open competition)?  

o The recommendation is for the existing two coroner areas to be merged into a 
single area.  The merged area will require one full time Senior Coroner who 
will be supported by one part-time area coroner and assistant coroners as 
required. Appointment will be made in line with Guidance 14 - Merger of 
Coroner Areas.  

 

 Are all affected senior coroners aware of and content with this approach? 
o IOW HMC is aware of the changes pending in Portsmouth and will need to be 

provided with the details of any proposals - as part of the consultation process  
o PCC HMC is aware and content with the proposals.   

 
IMPACT OF PROPOSED MERGER ON SERVICE DELIVERY 
 

 What will be the impact of the proposed merger on service delivery?  
o The merger will have a positive impact on service delivery. 
o There will be better resilience and allow the coronial service to better deal 

with fluctuations in demand. 
o Use of the WPC (caseload management system) will be more consistent and 

best utilised.  
o Staffing continuity across service area will benefit from greater resilience, 

sickness/caseload managed via WPC from elsewhere within the area. 
o Local justice will be retained 
o There will be an improved responsiveness to future demand 
o Improved outcomes, including improved inquest timeliness and performance. 
o An increase in available support should mass fatality occur, more staff in the 

area to cope, more resources already shared (hospitals/pathologists etc) 
o A more consistent and better use of technology at inquests 
o The harmonisation of working practices and policies which should generate 

efficiency savings and bring economies of scale.   
 

 Will additional coronial or administrative support be provided in the new area? 
(eg. will additional coroners need to be recruited or will workloads be 
increased/redistributed etc? How will additional caseloads be managed?) 

o The merged area will deal with approximately 2,500 deaths per annum. 
o In order to provide resilience and support to the Senior Coroner, it is intended 

to hold an open competition to appoint a part time Area Coroner.  
o It is expected that the existing officers and administration staff provided by 

IOW will TUPE to be employed by PCC following a consultation process. 
 

 What will be the impact of the merger on associated services – such as post-
mortem examinations, and mortuary provision? 

o In the first instance there will be a positive impact in that a standard 
consistent approach will emerge leading to greater efficiency, economy and 
outcomes 

Page 44



15-12-2015 

 5 

o It is envisaged that secondary benefits will as also be gained by obtaining 
efficiencies from aggregating the various supply chains into one.  

o Body storage and post mortem facilities are currently based at two NHS 
hospitals across the proposed merger area in Queen Alexandra Hospital 
(Portsmouth) and St Mary's Hospital (Isle of Wight).  There will be no change 
in the location of these post mortem examinations or mortuary provision.   

 

 How will the relevant local authority administer the new coroner area?  
o Portsmouth City Council proposes to be the relevant local authority for the 

new coroner area.   They will provide financial and HR support for the new 
coroner area. 
 

 How will administrative governance be achieved between the relevant local 
authority and other funding local authorities?  

o The Isle of Wight Council and Portsmouth City Council already have an 
established working relationship and on approval of the merger, both 
authorities will enter into legally binding agreements that clearly set out the 
provision of the service, accountability, responsibilities, monitoring 
arrangements and financial arrangements.   

 
 

 How will the affected local authorities manage budgets? 
o Budgets will be managed on a full open book accounting basis, where costs 

are split between the member authorities based on the existing formula based 
on case load. 

o Regular recharges of proportionate costs to be levied (quarterly as a 
maximum). 

o Any existing contractual arrangements currently in place with Isle of Wight 
Council will be managed by Portsmouth City Council upon merger and when 
these come to an end, it is hoped that new procurement of services will 
achieve economies of scale and create financial savings which will benefit 
both authorities.  

 
 
 
IMPACT OF MERGER ON THOSE WORKING IN / WITH THE SERVICE  
 

 What will be the impact of the merger on: 
Coroners (eg. will the workloads of the Senior Coroner, Area Coroner (if 
applicable) and assistant coroners be effected? Will all existing assistant 
coroners transfer to the new area? Are the current assistant coroners all 
currently working and being trained? Do they or will they all have the Chief 
Coroner’s recommended 15 days a year of work?)  
o The Senior Coroner in the merged area will manage a moderate 

workload, equivalent to the existing Portsmouth and SE Hants area, albeit 
over an increased geographical area.  It is proposed that a part time Area 
Coroner will be appointed to provide valuable support and local 
knowledge to the Senior Coroner. 

o Reduced out of hours disruption (shared between Senior and part-time 
Area Coroner) 

o Increased resilience as the IOW assistant Coroner is due to retire in 2019. 
 

Coroners’ officers 

Page 45



15-12-2015 

 6 

o Coroner officers in Portsmouth are employed by PCC with some on police 
terms and conditions.  Coroner officers in IOW will TUPE to be employed 
by Portsmouth City Council.  Staff will remain in their current locations.   

o Increased support and resilience.  As the service continues to improve 
digitally, working across different locations will be straightforward and 
acceptable, resulting in an equality of workload distribution across both 
areas.  Use of IT will support the Coroner's Officers and aid closer 
working and communication with colleagues. 

  
Other staff in the coroner’s offices 
o Team leader is employed with PCC terms and conditions 
o Back office support of the PCC coroner service - finance, HR, Payroll, 

payments and income - unaffected.  HCC support service will increase. 
o Needs IOW addition 
o Court hearings would remain at Portsmouth and IOW, any existing court 

support staff will continue to support the Senior Coroner in these locations 
when the court is sitting 
 

Pathologists  
o Post mortems would continue to take place in Portsmouth and IOW 

hospitals so there will be no impact on pathologists.  The merged area will 
provide further resilience in the IOW. 

 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS OF MERGER 
 

 What will be the impact of the merger on resources in terms of: 
Costs of delivering the service – existing costs and predicted costs for 
amalgamated area (see tables in Annex A which may assist with this)  
o Increased buying power may produce better value contracts in areas 

including toxicology and funeral directors (removals);  
o A potential opportunity to retain pathologist services. 
o The consistent approach from a single Senior Coroner directive will 

potentially make savings in contracts such as histology.  
o A single unified service will increase resilience, and streamline processes 

and procedures. 
 

Accommodation for staff - none. 
 

Inquest accommodation 
o Each area already contains a court/inquest venue which will be 

retained.  There will be increased flexibility in availability and a choice 
of location for inquests. 
 

IT  
o Both Portsmouth City Council and the Isle of Wight currently use 

WPC. Discussions will be held with this provider to unify the contracts 
and for the systems to merge, allowing all staff and Coroners to see 
cases for the entire merged area. Potential to reduce licence costs 
 

Post mortem examination costs (including transport and storage) for 
each area.   

o Deceased persons will continue to be removed to mortuaries in 
Portsmouth and IOW so the transport and storage arrangements are 
not expected to change, other than any contracts being  transferred to 
the lead Authority  

Page 46



15-12-2015 

 7 

o Post mortem examinations will continue to be held within the hospital 
trusts using hospital pathologists.  

o Better technology will reduce the expert and witness expenses 
o Improved methods of working and streamlining of processes will 

improve timeliness, reduce costs and result in efficiency savings 
across the service. 

 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Are you aware of any legal issues that need to be resolved before a merger 
can go ahead (in addition to the Lord Chancellor making an order under 
Schedule 2 of the 2009 Act)?  If so please give details. 

No 
 
VIEWS OF THOSE AFFECTED BY MERGER 
 

 Do all affected local authorities support the merger?  Please provide details. 
 

 Have the local authority councillors / cabinets approved the merger?  Please 
provide details.  

o Initially this paper will drive approval at PCC.  
o IOW would seek LA approval after consultation has taken place. 

 

 What is the view of affected coroners and their staff?  
o Views will be collected as part of the consultation process and this element 

will be updated at that point.  
 

 How will bereaved people be affected by the merger – eg travelling to 
inquests, being able to contact coroners’ offices?  

o There will be a positive impact on the families of the deceased with increased 
accessibility to the service and the courts. 

 

 Have you sought the views of other affected stakeholders - such as police 
authority and constabulary, hospitals, prisons, GPs, faith groups and funeral 
directors?  Please provide details.  

o Views will be collected as part of the consultation process and this element 
will be updated at that point 

 

 What are the views of other stakeholders?  
o Views will be collected as part of the consultation process and this element 

will be updated at that point 
 

 What impact will the merger have in terms of disability, gender and racial 
equality? None 

 
RISKS AND MITIGATING ACTIONS 
 

 Please provide details of any risks identified and mitigating action (to be) 
taken. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S) 
 

Page 47



15-12-2015 

 8 

 Please describe other options considered, in addition to the proposed merger, 
and the advantages and disadvantages for each option. 

 
Alternative Option - Portsmouth City Council merges with Hampshire County Council 
 
Advantages include a positive impact on service delivery, standardisation of 
processes, increased service resilience and harmonisation of working practices from 
a service led by one Senior Coroner, efficiency savings and economies of scale.  
 
 
CONTACT WITH THE CHIEF CORONER’S OFFICE / MINISTRY OF JUSTICE / 
CONSULTEES 
 

 Have you had previous discussions with the Chief Coroner on the proposed 
merger?  (This is a requirement before MoJ can formally consult on the 
merger.)  Please provide details of the discussion. 

 

 Have you had previous contact with MoJ on the proposed merger?  Please 
provide details. 

o PCC received a letter from MoJ in December 2018 proposing a merger of the 
4 existing Hampshire County Coroner areas.  A meeting was held on 7th 
February 2019 at the Royal Courts of Justice between the Chief Coroner, 
Ministry of Justice, Senior Coroners and representatives from both Hampshire 
County Council and Portsmouth City Council. The Chief Coroner, along with 
representatives from MoJ expressed their support for a merger of the four 
existing coronial areas.   

 

 Are you happy for this business case in its entirety to be sent to all 
consultees?  If not please provide details. 

 

 Please list consultees for the consultation on the proposed merger – the 
organisation’s name and the most appropriate email address - at Annex B.  
MoJ will remove email addresses from Annex B before sending the business 
case to consultees. 
 

 

 Further information on the merger process is available in the form of Chief 
Coroner guidance at:  http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf.  

 
  

Page 48

http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf
http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf


15-12-2015 

 9 

Annex A 
Resource implications of the merger 

 
Table A: Details of current Senior Coroners and Area Coroner/s (if applicable) in 
each existing coroner area 

 

Position (eg 
Senior 
Coroner, 
Area 
Coroner) 

First name Surname Current 
salary 
(including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions) 

Long Inquest 
Payments (if 
applicable) 
or other 
additional 
payments  

Proposed 
salary in 
amalgamate
d area (if 
applicable) 
(including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions)  

Senior Coroner 
- Portsmouth 
and South East 
Hampshire 

David Horsley 

2018/19:  
£157,400 

2018/19  - none 

New Senior 
Coroner and 
part time Area 
Coroner salary 
to be agreed by 
the LA 

2017/18:  
£144,870 

2017/18: - none 

Senior Coroner 
- Isle of Wight 

Caroline Sumeray 

2018/19: 
£35,800 

2018/19: 
£74,000 

2017/18: 
£35,500 

2017/18: 
£80,605 

Page 49



15-12-2015 

 10 

Table B: Office costs  
 

Category Portsmouth & 
South East 
Hampshire 

Isle of Wight  

Fees for Assistant Coroner(s) 

£41,000  £1,100 

The 
appointment of 
an Area 
Coroners will 
reduce the use 
of Assistant 
Coroners  

Salary costs of Coroner’s 
officer(s) (including National 
Insurance and pension 
contributions) 
 

£162,500  £76,200 £238,700 

Salary costs of administrative 
staff (including National 
Insurance and pension 
contributions)  
 

£41,400  £2,500 £43,900 

Staff and Inquest 
accommodation  
 £45,000  £19,000 £64,000 

IT costs  

£17,100  £16,000 £33,100 

Post mortem/Pathologist 
costs etc £770,300  £387,100 £1,157,400 

Other costs? 
£21,400  £30,800 £52,200 

 
 
  

Page 50



15-12-2015 

 11 

 
Annex B 

 
List of consultees  

 
[Please include: 
 

- All effected Senior Coroners, Area Coroners and Assistant Coroners in the 
areas in question; 

- relevant local authority contacts from all neighbouring coroner areas (MoJ can 
assist with this if necessary);   

- all MP’s with constituencies within the effected coroner areas; 
- pathologist contacts; 
- representatives of local funeral directors within the effected coroner areas; 
- representatives from hospitals and/or prisons within the area; 
- the Chief Coroner (MoJ will have the relevant contact details) 
- local police contacts(MoJ can assist with this if necessary and will include a 

national ACPO contact as standard)) 
 

Organisation  
 

Email address (please note these will be 
removed when business case is sent to 
consultees) 

David Horsley (Senior Coroner) David.horsley@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Robert Stone (Deputy Coroner) Robert.stone@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Samantha Marsh (Assistant Coroner) Samantha.marsh@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Lincoln Brookes (Assistant Coroner) Lincoln.brookes@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Steven Lewsley (Team Leader) Steven.lewsley@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

David Gregory (Coroners Officer) David.gregory@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Karen Hamilton (Coroners Officer) Karen.hamilton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Karen Hyde (Coroners  Officer) Karen.hyde@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Sophie Simpson (Coroners Officer/Admin 
Assistant) 

Sophie.simpson@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Lisa John (Coroners Officer) Lisa.john@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Lorraine Porter (Superintendent 
Registrar) 

Lorraine.porter@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Portsmouth City Councillors fullcouncil@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

PCC Pathologists  

Hampshire Constabulary  

Hampshire Fire Service  

South Central Ambulance Service  

Stephen Morgan MP Portsmouth South stephen.morgan.mp@parliament.uk 

Penny Mordaunt MP Portsmouth North penny.mordaunt.mp@parliament.u 

David Williams  PCC Chief Executive  David.williams@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Stephen Baily Director of Culture and 
Regulatory Services (PCC) 

Stephen.baily@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

Association of Chief of Police Officers 
(ACPO) 

 

Community Safety Team PCC CommunitySafety@Portsmouthcc.gov.uk  

Portsmouth NHS Trust, Queen 
Alexandra Hospital (QAH) 

 

Bereavement Services Manager (QAH)  

Dignity Funeral Services  

Barrells Funeral  Services  

Page 51

mailto:Samantha.marsh@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
mailto:David.williams@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
mailto:Stephen.baily@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
mailto:CommunitySafety@Portsmouthcc.gov.uk


15-12-2015 

 12 

Faith and Equality Groups  

West Sussex Coroner Service hm.coroner@westsussex.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 52

mailto:hm.coroner@westsussex.gov.uk


15-12-2015 

 1 

ALTERATION OF CORONER AREAS UNDER SCHEDULE 2 OF THE CORONERS 
AND JUSTICE ACT 20091 

MINISTRY OF JUSTICE BUSINESS CASE TEMPLATE FOR MERGERS 
 
 
NAMES OF CORONER AREAS THAT ARE PROPOSING TO MERGE 
 

 Central Hampshire  

 Southampton and New Forest 

 North East Hampshire 

 Portsmouth and South East Hampshire 
 
PROPOSED NAME OF NEW AREA  
 

 Hampshire  
 
INFORMATION ON AREAS THAT PROPOSE TO MERGE 
 

 Please provide key details in the table as follows: 
 

Coroner area 
 

North East 
Hampshire 
(Basingstoke) 

Portsmouth & 
South East 
Hampshire 

Central, 
Southampton 
& New Forest 

Hampshire 

Geographical area 
covered 
 

Basingstoke, 
Alton, Fleet, 
Farnborough, 
Aldershot 

Portsmouth, 
Havant, 
Fareham, 
Gosport, 
Petersfield 

Southampton, 
New Forest, 
Winchester, 
Eastleigh, 
Andover, 
Romsey 

All areas from left 
columns 

Local authority/ 
authorities that 
fund(s) coroner 
area and % 
 

Hampshire 
County Council 
100% 

Hampshire 
County Council 
41.1% / 
Portsmouth City 
Council 58.9% 
(18/19) 

Hampshire 
County Council 
56.8% / 
Southampton 
City Council 
43.1% (18/19) 

Hampshire Council, 
Southampton City 
Council, Portsmouth 
City Council 
% to be agreed 

Relevant authority 
(formerly lead 
authority) 
 

Hampshire 
County Council  

Portsmouth City 
Council 

Hampshire 
County Council   

 
Hampshire County 
Council 

Police Force(s)  
 
 

Hampshire 
Police 

Hampshire 
Police 

Hampshire 
Police 

 
Hampshire Police 

Transport links 
 
 

M3, A31, A339, 
A33, A34. 
Basingstoke 
train station, 
plus numerous 
local train 
stations. 
Farnborough air 
facility and 
Blackbushe 

A27, A3,A3(M), 
M275 
Portsmouth and 
numerous local 
stations 
Ports for 
international 
cruise and 
freight and ferry 
services  

M3, M27, A34, 
A303, A31, 
Southampton 
Central train 
station, 
Southampton 
Parkway, 
Winchester train 
station, plus 
numerous local 

All links from left 
columns 

                                                 
1
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/schedule/2 

Page 53



15-12-2015 

 2 

Coroner area 
 

North East 
Hampshire 
(Basingstoke) 

Portsmouth & 
South East 
Hampshire 

Central, 
Southampton 
& New Forest 

Hampshire 

private airport train stations. 
Southampton 
Airport. 
Southampton 
Docks with 
cruise terminal. 

Major hospitals  
 
 

1 (North 
Hampshire 
Hospital) 

1 (Queen 
Alexandra 
Hospital) 

2 (University 
Hospital 
Southampton 
and Royal 
Hampshire 
County Hospital) 

 
All hospitals from 
left columns 

Prisons in area 
 
 

none none HMP Winchester 
 
HMP Winchester 

Other state 
detention 
facilities  
 

1 (Parklands 
Hospital) 

none 

Antelope House, 
Woodhaven, 
Melbury Lodge 
(MH Facilities) 

 
All from left columns 

Courtrooms/ 
inquest venues  
 
 
 

1 (Basingstoke 
Law Courts 
hired room) 

1 (Portsmouth) 1 (Winchester) 

 
Basingstoke 
(registration rooms) 
Portsmouth 
Winchester 
 

Office/staff 
accommodation – 
location and 
capacity 
 

1 (Basingstoke - 
room in 
registration 
office for 3 staff). 
A court room is 
hired in law 
courts for 
inquests. 

Civic Offices, 
Guildhall Square 
Portsmouth.  
Office suite for 
6, court and jury 
room 

1 office in 
Winchester for 
11 incl Senior 
Coroner. 2 small 
inquest rooms 
and use of 
Council 
Chamber for 
larger inquests 

 
Winchester and 
Portsmouth 
(Basingstoke Office 
to close) 

Employer of 
coroner’s officers’  
 

Hampshire 
County Council 
plus CO 
currently 
employed by 
Senior Coroner 

Portsmouth City 
Council 

Hampshire 
County Council 

 
Hampshire County 
Council  

Name of senior 
coroner  
 

Andrew Bradley David Horsley Grahame Short 
 
To be appointed 

Number of area 
coroners 
 

0  0 0 
 
2 

Number of 
assistant coroners  
 

3 4 4 
5 

Number of 
coroner’s officers  

1 4.5 (4.04 FTE) 4 
 
9.5 

Page 54



15-12-2015 

 3 

Coroner area 
 

North East 
Hampshire 
(Basingstoke) 

Portsmouth & 
South East 
Hampshire 

Central, 
Southampton 
& New Forest 

Hampshire 

 

Number of 
administrative 
support staff  
 

1 (0.6FTE) 2 (1.5 FTE) 5 (4.81) 

6 (two admin in 
Central have been 
promoted to CO to 
cover vacant 
positions) 

Number of deaths 
reported in the 
previous calendar 
year 
 

1,456 2,643 
Central: 1493 
Southampton & 
NF: 2205 

 
 

7,797 

Inquests held in 
the previous 
calendar year 
 

163 289 
Central: 174 
Southampton & 
NF: 236 

 
862 

Post mortem rate 
as % of reported 
deaths in the 
previous calendar 
year 

31% 40% 
Central: 33% 
Southampton & 
NF: 36% 

 
Average 35% 

 

 It would be helpful if you would also attach maps of the area showing the 
current position and the position in the event of a merger. Both maps should 
show details of for instance inquest venues, hospitals, prisons and transport 
links. 

 
 
 

Page 55



15-12-2015 

 4 

SENIOR CORONER APPOINTMENT 
 

 Why are you seeking a merger now (ie which area’s senior coroner is 
stepping down, when and why)? 

This merger is proposed to follow national policy established by the Chief Coroner to 
merge smaller coronial areas and to replace part time and acting Coroners with full 
time equivalents with a much larger case load.  

On the retirement of Senior Coroner for Southampton and New Forest Keith 
Wiseman in April 2014, Mr Grahame Short who was the existing appointed Senior 
Coroner for Central Hampshire became Acting Senior Coroner of this jurisdiction in 
addition. Hampshire County Council is the relevant local authority for these two 
jurisdictions, with Southampton City Council funding a percentage based on the 
number of deaths falling within its boundaries.  

Senior Coroner Andrew Bradley has announced his intention to retire at the end of 
June 2019. At present, his jurisdiction of North East Hampshire is a part time 
jurisdiction. Hampshire County Council is the relevant local authority for this area, 
providing full funding.  

Senior Coroner David Horsley has announced his intention to retire at the end of 
October 2019. At present his coroner’s jurisdiction comprises of Portsmouth and 
South East Hampshire. Portsmouth City Council are the lead local authority for this 
area, with Hampshire County Council providing funding for the number of deaths 
which occur within the South East Hampshire boundaries.  

The proposal is to merge Central Hampshire, Southampton & New Forest, North 
East Hampshire and Portsmouth and South East Hampshire. 

The proposed merger provides an opportunity to create a larger district comprising of 
one local authority lead coroner’s jurisdiction and to reduce the number of Senior 
Coroners.  

 

 How do you propose to appoint the senior coroner for the new merged area – 
(i.e. does the relevant authority propose to appoint one of the senior coroners 
from the affected areas or to hold an open competition)? 

 
Upon the retirement of Andrew Bradley from the North East Hampshire jurisdiction, it 
is intended for Hampshire County Council to appoint Grahame Short as Acting 
Senior Coroner.  
 
The total caseload for Central Hampshire and Southampton and New Forest is 
c.3500 deaths per annum, therefore with the addition of North East Hampshire at 
c.1500 deaths per annum, the total of deaths would rise to c.5000.  
 
In order to provide resilience and support to Mr Short, whilst a merger of the larger 
area is considered upon Mr Horsley’s retirement in October 2019, Hampshire County 
Council would seek both the Chief Coroner and the Ministry of Justice’s approval to 
appoint an acting Area Coroner in this interim period.  
 

Page 56



15-12-2015 

 5 

In May 2019, since the business case for a merger has been in discussion, Mr Short 
has also announced his intention to retire at the same time as Mr Horsley; at the end 
of October 2019. 
 
On discussion with the Ministry of Justice and the Chief Coroner’s Office, Hampshire 
County Council has decided to proceed with the recruitment process to appoint a 
new Senior Coroner to cover three jurisdictions of North East Hampshire, Central 
Hampshire and Southampton and New Forest, with a view to become Senior 
Coroner of the whole merged area when the statutory instrument has been agreed.  
 
A further open competition will be held to appoint two area coroners for the merged 
areas with the approval of the Chief Coroner and the Ministry of Justice.  
 
 

 Are all affected senior coroners aware of and content with this approach? 
 
All three Senior Coroners are aware of this approach and have agreed that a merger 
of the four jurisdictions is a sensible and pragmatic approach in order to provide a 
consistent and more efficient service for the residents of Hampshire.  
 

 
IMPACT OF PROPOSED MERGER ON SERVICE DELIVERY 
 

 What will be the impact of the proposed merger on service delivery?  
 
The merger will have a positive impact on service delivery. 
 
Processes and procedures will become standardised across the merged jurisdiction 
under leadership from one Senior Coroner. Harmonisation of working practices and 
policies should generate efficiency savings and bring economies of scale.   
 
It is recognised that Hampshire is a large county and therefore it is intended to 
continue to serve its residents by continuing to hold inquests in Basingstoke, 
Winchester and Portsmouth.  
 
 

 Will additional coronial or administrative support be provided in the new area? 
(eg. will additional coroners need to be recruited or will workloads be 
increased/redistributed etc? How will additional caseloads be managed?) 

 
The merged area will deal with approximately 7,800 deaths per annum based on the 
last calendar year Ministry of Justice Return (2018).  
 
A new Senior Coroner for the three Hampshire County Council jurisdictions will be 
appointed following an open competition with a view to becoming the Senior Coroner 
for the entire merged jurisdiction.  
 
In order to provide resilience and support to the Senior Coroner, it is intended to hold 
an open competition to appoint two full time Area Coroners.  
 
Hampshire County Council provides coroners officers and administrative support to 
three areas at present. It is expected that the existing officers and administration staff 
provided by Portsmouth City Council will TUPE to be employed by HCC following a 
consultation process. 

Page 57



15-12-2015 

 6 

 
The Senior Coroner in Basingstoke currently privately employs one coroner’s officer 
and discussions are being held with HR in order to move this role under HCC.  

 

 What will be the impact of the merger on associated services – such as post-
mortem examinations, and mortuary provision? 

 
Body storage and post mortem facilities are currently based at four NHS hospitals 
across the county in North East Hampshire County Hospital (Basingstoke), Royal 
Hampshire County Hospital (Winchester), University Hospital Southampton, and 
Queen Alexandra Hospital (Portsmouth). 
 
Body removals will continue to these four hospitals. 
 
Post mortems will continue to be carried out at these hospitals. 
 
Due to the existing close working relationships of Coroners across all areas and the 
unification of Hampshire under one police force and ambulance provider, a new 
Sudden Death policy will be implemented on May 1st 2019 which anticipates a 
reduction in deceased persons being removed to mortuaries. This is estimated to be 
reduced by 20% therefore reducing mortuary storage costs, removal fees and staff 
time.  
 

 

 How will the relevant local authority administer the new coroner area? 
 
Hampshire County Council proposes to be the relevant local authority for the new 
coroner area and therefore be responsible for full administration including the 
appointment of Senior and Area Coroners and employment of coroner’s support staff. 
 
Discussions are currently being held to decide the best charging method. 
 

 How will administrative governance be achieved between the relevant local 
authority and other funding local authorities?  

 
Hampshire County Council, Southampton City Council and Portsmouth City Council 
have already established a good working relationship given the funding 
arrangements that currently exist. 
 
On approval of the merger, all three local authorities will enter into legally binding 
agreement that clearly sets out the provision of the service, accountability, 
responsibilities, monitoring arrangements and financial arrangements.   
 
 

 How will the affected local authorities manage budgets? 
 
Hampshire County Council will be the relevant local authority for the merged area 
and therefore will take responsibility for effectively managing the overall budget.  
 
Existing contractual arrangements currently in place with Portsmouth City Council will 
be managed by Hampshire County Council upon merger and when these come to an 
end, it is hoped that new procurement of services will achieve economies of scale 
and create financial savings which will benefit all three authorities.  
 

Page 58



15-12-2015 

 7 

 
IMPACT OF MERGER ON THOSE WORKING IN / WITH THE SERVICE  
 

 What will be the impact of the merger on: 
o Coroners (eg. will the workloads of the Senior Coroner, Area Coroner 

(if applicable) and assistant coroners be effected? Will all existing 
assistant coroners transfer to the new area? Are the current assistant 
coroners all currently working and being trained? Do they or will they 
all have the Chief Coroner’s recommended 15 days a year of work?)  

 
 
Due to the scale and average number of deaths for the merged area, it is proposed 
for the Senior Coroner to be supported by two full time area coroners.  
 
All existing assistant coroners would transfer to the new area giving a total of 5, as 
two assistants already work in both Portsmouth and South East and in Central and 
Southampton. The current assistant coroners are all currently working and being 
trained and all work the minimum of 15 days per year.  
 

o Coroners’ officers 
 
Hampshire County Council currently employs the coroner’s officers for Central 
Hampshire and Southampton and New Forest and an administrator in Basingstoke. 
There are two offices in Basingstoke and Winchester. The staff currently based in 
Winchester would remain in place, with proposals to move the existing coroner’s 
officer who will become a HCC employee from Basingstoke to the Winchester office 
 
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire coroner’s officers are employed by 
Portsmouth City Council so they therefore will TUPE to be employed by Hampshire 
County Council. Staff would remain in the offices in Portsmouth. Now that the 
coroner’s service is becoming more digital, working across different locations is made 
possible, particularly as coronial decisions and signatures are made via the electronic 
case management system (WPC).  
 

o Other staff in the coroner’s offices 
 
Court hearings would still go ahead in Basingstoke and therefore the existing 
administrator/court officer would support the Coroner in this location when court is 
sitting.  
 
Court hearings and staff would remain in place in Portsmouth.  

 
o Pathologists  

 
Post mortems would continue to take place in Winchester, Basingstoke, 
Southampton and Portsmouth so therefore the pathologists would continue as 
before. 
 

o Others? 
 
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS OF MERGER 
 

 What will be the impact of the merger on resources in terms of: 

Page 59



15-12-2015 

 8 

o Costs of delivering the service – existing costs and predicted costs for 
amalgamated area (see tables in Annex A which may assist with this)  

o Accommodation for staff 
 
It is proposed to close the office accommodation in Basingstoke and the coroner’s 
officer for this jurisdiction will be co-located with the staff based in Winchester. The 
inquests in Basingstoke are currently held in the law courts, however they will now be 
heard in ceremony rooms in the Registration building. Both of these changes will 
incur savings.  
 
There will be savings in terms of Coroners salary due to a reduction from three 
Senior Coroners to one Senior with two Area Coroners. There will also be a reduction 
in use of Assistants who sit at a daily rate, particularly for long inquests.  
 
Having one team under the leadership and guidance of one Senior Coroner will 
provide resilience along with streamlined processes and procedures. 
 
When contracts reach the point of renewal, the larger merged jurisdiction will provide 
economies of scale.  
 

o Inquest accommodation 
 
Inquests will continue to be held in Basingstoke, Winchester and Portsmouth 
therefore the merger will not impact this existing service. 
 
Savings will be made, as detailed above, in holding inquests in registration ceremony 
rooms in Basingstoke, rather than in the law courts.  
 
 

o IT 
 
Both Portsmouth City Council and Hampshire County Council use the WPC case 
management system. Discussions will be held with this provider to unify the contracts 
and for the systems to merge, allowing all staff and Coroners to see cases for the 
entire merged area.  
 

o Post mortem examination costs (including transport and storage) for 
each area  

 
Deceased persons will continue to be removed to mortuaries in Basingstoke, 
Winchester, Southampton and Portsmouth so therefore the transport and storage 
arrangements are not expected to change, other than that the Portsmouth and South 
East Hampshire removal contracts and NHS trust contract will be transferred to 
Hampshire County Council.  
 
Post mortem examinations will continue to be held within the hospital trusts using 
hospital pathologists.  
 

o Any other costs / savings? 
 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 60



15-12-2015 

 9 

 Are you aware of any legal issues that need to be resolved before a merger 
can go ahead (in addition to the Lord Chancellor making an order under 
Schedule 2 of the 2009 Act)?  If so please give details. 

 
No. 
 
 
VIEWS OF THOSE AFFECTED BY MERGER 
 

 Do all affected local authorities support the merger?  Please provide details. 
 
Hampshire County Council and Southampton City Council both support the proposed 
merger. Portsmouth City Council is yet to agree pending cabinet meetings.  
 

 Have the local authority councillors / cabinets approved the merger?  Please 
provide details. 

 
As above. 
 

 What is the view of affected coroners and their staff?  
 
All three current Senior Coroners are retiring and therefore will not be affected by the 
merger. 
 

 How will bereaved people be affected by the merger – eg travelling to 
inquests, being able to contact coroners’ offices? 

 
Bereaved people will benefit from the merger in that the whole county will be 
operating under unified processes and procedures. Staff located in Winchester and 
Portsmouth will take cases for the whole merged area, which will provide better 
resilience Inquests will remain in locations where they are being held currently.  
 

 Have you sought the views of other affected stakeholders - such as police 
authority and constabulary, hospitals, prisons, GPs, faith groups and funeral 
directors?  Please provide details. 

 
Please see consultation document provided with business case. (Yet to be 
completed pending agreement of Portsmouth City Council to merger.) 
 

 What are the views of other stakeholders? 
 
See above. 
 

 What impact will the merger have in terms of disability, gender and racial 
equality? 

 
There will be no impact.  
 
RISKS AND MITIGATING ACTIONS 
 

 Please provide details of any risks identified and mitigating action (to be) 
taken. 

 
No risks have been identified at this stage.  

Page 61



15-12-2015 

 10 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S) 
 

 Please describe other options considered, in addition to the proposed merger, 
and the advantages and disadvantages for each option. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTION ONE: Coroner Jurisdictions remain the same with 
Portsmouth City Council appointing a like for like Senior Coroner 
 
Advantages: 

- Portsmouth City Council have civic pride in hosting a coroner’s service  
- Continuity of service for Portsmouth and South East Hampshire coroners 

support staff 
 
Disadvantages: 

- The retirement of the Senior Coroner for Portsmouth and South East 
Hampshire offers the opportunity for the whole of the Hampshire County 
Council Local Authority area to be coterminous with that of the coroner’s 
jurisdiction. Under the existing laws as dictated by the Coroner’s and Justice 
Act 2009, a merger of coroner areas must contain the whole of a local 
authority area or more than one local authority area. 

- Financial savings will not be made as discussed in sections above 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTION TWO:  South East Hampshire and Portsmouth City Council 
separate leaving South East Hampshire to merge with the three existing jurisdictions 
with Portsmouth City Council remaining a separate jurisdiction of itself  
 
Advantages: 

- Portsmouth would retain civic pride in hosting a separate coroner’s jurisdiction  
 
Disadvantages: 

- Portsmouth City Council area deals with 1500 per annum and therefore would 
be considered too small and would not reflect both the Chief Coroner and 
Ministry of Justice recommendations to reduce the number of small and part 
time coronial jurisdictions  

- Due to the reduction in size of the area, staff redundancies would potentially 
need to be considered by Portsmouth City Council  

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTION THREE: Portsmouth City Council merges with the Isle of 
Wight  
 
Advantages:  

- Portsmouth City Council already have an existing cross organisational 
relationship with the Isle of Wight Council 

- Portsmouth shares transport links with the Isle of Wight 
- Opportunity for savings to be made by the Isle of Wight (reduction in long 

inquest payments compared to a salaried Coroner position) 
 
Disadvantages: 

- The Isle of Wight already has an existing part time Senior Coroner who would 
need to be considered 

 
 

Page 62



15-12-2015 

 11 

CONTACT WITH THE CHIEF CORONER’S OFFICE / MINISTRY OF JUSTICE / 
CONSULTEES 
 

 Have you had previous discussions with the Chief Coroner on the proposed 
merger?  (This is a requirement before MoJ can formally consult on the 
merger.)  Please provide details of the discussion. 

 Have you had previous contact with MoJ on the proposed merger?  Please 
provide details. 

 
A meeting was held on 7th February 2019 at the Royal Courts of Justice between the 
Chief Coroner, Ministry of Justice, Senior Coroners and representatives from both 
Hampshire County Council and Portsmouth City Council. The Chief Coroner, along 
with representatives from the MoJ.  expressed their support for a merger of the four 
existing coronial areas. 

 

 Are you happy for this business case in its entirety to be sent to all 
consultees?  If not please provide details. 
 

Yes 
 

 Please list consultees for the consultation on the proposed merger – the 
organisation’s name and the most appropriate email address - at Annex B.  
MoJ will remove email addresses from Annex B before sending the business 
case to consultees. 

 Further information on the merger process is available in the form of Chief 
Coroner guidance at:  http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf.  

 

Page 63

http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf
http://www.judiciary.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/guidance-14-mergers-of-coroner-areas.pdf


15-12-2015 

 12 

 
Annex A 

Resource implications of the merger 
 
Table A: Details of current Senior Coroners and Area Coroner/s (if applicable) in 
each existing coroner area 

 

Position (eg 
Senior 
Coroner, 
Area 
Coroner) 

First name Surname Current 
salary 
(including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions) 

Long Inquest 
Payments (if 
applicable) 
or other 
additional 
payments  

Proposed 
salary in 
amalgamate
d area (if 
applicable) 
(including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions)  

Senior Coroner 
- Central, 
Southampton, 
New Forest 

Grahame Short 

2018/19: 
£159,963 

2018/19: £0 New Senior 
Coroner salary 
to be agreed by 
the LA 2017/18: 

£139,794 

2017/18: £0 

Senior Coroner 
- Portsmouth 
and South East 
Hampshire 

David Horsley 

2018/19:  
£157,400 

2018/19:  £0 

 
New Area 
Coroner salary 
to be agreed by 
the LA 2017/18:  

£144,870 
2017/18: £0 

Senior Coroner 
- North East 
Hampshire 
(Basingstoke) 

Andrew Bradley 

2018/19: 
£72,292 

2018/19: £0 

 
New Area 
Coroner salary 
to be agreed by 
the LA 2017/18: 

£76,932 
2017/18: £0 

Page 64



15-12-2015 

 13 

Table B: Office costs  
 

Coroner area 
 

North East 
Hampshire 
(Basingstoke) 

Portsmouth & 
South East 
Hampshire 

Central, 
Southampton 
& New Forest 

Hampshire 

Fees for 
Assistant 
Coroner(s) 

£0 £41,000  £27,136 

Due to the 
appointment of 

Area Coroners, it 
is expected that 

the use of 
Assistant 

Coroners will 
reduce 

Salary costs of 
Coroner’s 
officer(s) 
(including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions) 

£37,109 £162,500  £182,475 £382,084 

Salary costs of 
administrative 
staff (including 
National 
Insurance and 
pension 
contributions)  

£14,966 £41,400  £103,666 
£132,646 (minus 
x2 admin from 

Central) 

Staff 
accommodation  
 £13,433 £45,000 £15,000 

£60,000 
(Basingstoke 

office to close) 

Inquest 
accommodation 
 £980    - -    - 

IT costs  

                                    
£5,691  

                                    
£17,100  

                                    
£18,091  

£40,882 (potential 
savings to be 

made in 
amalgamated 

case management 
contract) 

Post 
mortem/Pathol
ogist costs etc £272, 395 £770,300  £814,745  £1,857,440 

Other costs? 

£5,684  £21,400  £12,415  

£39,499 (potential 
savings to be 

made with 
economies of 

scale) 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � 
 
 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � �  � ! � � � � � 	 �  � � � � " 
 � � # " 
$ � � � � � � 	 � � % � � � � ! � � & �  � $ � � � � � �� � � � � �� � �
� � � � � � � � � � ' � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � ( � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � ! � � � � � 	 �  � � � � " 
 � � ) " 
 � � * * � � � � + � � � � � � � � , � * * � � & � � � � � � � � �� � � � �" � � � � � * * � � & � � � � * � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ' � � � � � � � �- � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � 	 �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � " 
 � � ) " 
 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � .� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � 	 � � � � � / � � � � � � � � � 0 � � � � � � � � � � � * * � � & � � � .� � � � � � � � � � � � � ' � � � � �  � � 	 � & � � � � �  � * � �  � � � � � �- � " � � � � . � � � ( � * � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � ' � � 	 � � � & � � ' � � � � � * � � & � � � � . � � � ( � * � � � � � �� � �   � � � � �  � ' � � � � � �  � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �  * � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � . � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � * � � � � 	 � � � � � / � � � � �- � - � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � & � � � � � � � � " 
 � 1 ) � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � * � � � � � � � � � *' � � , � � 	 �  � � & � � � � � ' � �  � � � � � � * � �  � � 2 � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � ' � � , * � � � � � � � � � " 
 � � ) " 
 � �� � � * �  � � � , � . * � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * �  � � � � � � � ' � � , �3 � � $ �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � . � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � 4 � � � �  � * � � � � � � � � � � 	� � � � � � � * � � & � � � � � � � . � � � � 4 � � � �  � � � � & �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � / � � � � � � � / � % ' � �  �  � �� � * � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � �  � ' � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � � � . � � ! � � � � � 5 � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � ' � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � . � � / % � � � 4 �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � �

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



6

` Q ; = Q : 7 A > T H = <G < ? : ; ` : > Q A 8 < a J 8 B Q E : [ ; A P : = < ? b A @ 8 ; ? : ; F > Q K L L c\ C K C 6 D E : R 8 G Q E _ G @ Q A > : T H = < A @ = < = < < G = H ; : 9 A : Y Q 8 : < @ G ; : Q E : T H = < A @ G T Q 8 ? = Q := < ? ; : H : 9 = < Q d 9 = ; A 8 G @ = 7 : < > A : @ = < ? N 8 ? A : @ E = 9 : E = ? Q E : 8 T T 8 ; Q G < A Q O Q 8 > 8 P P : < Q 8 <Q E : ; : 9 A : Y 8 B Q E : @ Q ; = Q : 7 O B 8 ; : e = P T H : ^ Q E : R S D P = < = 7 : P : < Q N 8 = ; ? C\ C K C f D E : 8 9 : ; = H H = A P 8 B Q E A @ ; : 9 A : Y A @ Q 8 G T ? = Q : 8 < Q E : T ; 8 7 ; : @ @ P = ? : Y A Q E A < Q E :@ Q ; = Q : 7 A > T H = < Q 8 ? = Q : = < ? Q 8 P = W : > H : = ; Q E : 8 N g : > Q A 9 : @ d T ; A 8 ; A Q A : @ = < ? < : > : @ @ = ; O> E = < 7 : @ Q E = Q = ; : @ Q A H H ; : Z G A ; : ? Q 8 A P T ; 8 9 : @ : ; 9 A > : ? : H A 9 : ; O Y A Q E A < Q E : R S D\ C K C a D E : ; : 9 A : Y ? 8 : @ < 8 Q A < > H G ? : = < O > E = < 7 : @ Q 8 Q E : @ : ; 9 A > : T ; 8 9 A @ A 8 < 8 ; T 8 H A > O @ 8= < ] X F A @ < 8 Q ; : Z G A ; : ? A < Q E A @ A < @ Q = < > : Ch C K ` : > Q A 8 < a J 8 B Q E : [ ; A P : = < ? b A @ 8 ; ? : ; F > Q K L L c @ Q = Q : @ ^K i X Q @ E = H H N : Q E : ? G Q O 8 B : = > E H 8 > = H = G Q E 8 ; A Q O d = B Q : ; > 8 < @ G H Q = Q A 8 < Y A Q E Q E : ; : H : 9 = < Q T : ; @ 8 < @= < ? N 8 ? A : @ d Q 8 B 8 ; P G H = Q : = < ? A P T H : P : < Q B 8 ; : = > E O : = ; = T H = < @ : Q Q A < 7 8 G Q ^j = i k 8 Y O 8 G Q E g G @ Q A > : @ : ; 9 A > : @ A < Q E : A ; = ; : = = ; : Q 8 N : T ; 8 9 A ? : ? = < ? B G < ? : ? l = < ?j N i k 8 Y Q E : O 8 G Q E 8 B B : < ? A < 7 Q : = P 8 ; Q : = P @ : @ Q = N H A @ E : ? N O Q E : P j Y E : Q E : ; = H 8 < : 8 ;g 8 A < Q H O Y A Q E 8 < : 8 ; P 8 ; : 8 Q E : ; H 8 > = H = G Q E 8 ; A Q A : @ i = ; : Q 8 N : > 8 P T 8 @ : ? = < ? B G < ? : ? dE 8 Y Q E : O = ; : Q 8 8 T : ; = Q : d = < ? Y E = Q B G < > Q A 8 < @ Q E : O = ; : Q 8 > = ; ; O 8 G Q Ch C 6 D E : ; : = ; : < 8 8 Q E : ; H : 7 = H ; : Z G A ; : P : < Q @ Q 8 < 8 Q : d @ = 9 : Q E = Q Q E : > G ; ; : < Q T H = < E = @ N : : <> 8 < B A ; P : ? = @ P : : Q A < 7 Q E : > 8 < Q : < Q ; : Z G A ; : P : < Q @ @ : Q 8 G Q N O = ; : T ; : @ : < Q = Q A 9 : 8 B Q E : R 8 G Q E_ G @ Q A > : V 8 = ; ? Cm C K D E : I 8 ; Q @ P 8 G Q E R 8 G Q E S B B : < ? A < 7 D : = P N G ? 7 : Q B 8 ; 6 J K L M 6 J ; : B H : > Q @ Q E : R S D n @P = < = 7 : P : < Q = < ? @ : ; 9 A > : ? : H A 9 : ; O @ Q ; G > Q G ; : A ? : < Q A B A : ? A < Q E : T H = < d = < ? Q E : ; : = ; : < 8? A ; : > Q B A < = < > A = H A P T H A > = Q A 8 < @ = @ @ 8 > A = Q : ? Y A Q E Q E A @ ; : T 8 ; Q Cm C 6 D E : I 8 ; Q @ P 8 G Q E R 8 G Q E S B B : < ? A < 7 V 8 = ; ? = ; : = Y = ; : Q E = Q Q E : @ Q ; = Q : 7 A > T H = < < : : ? @ Q 8N : ? : H A 9 : ; : ? Y A Q E A < Q E : > 8 < @ Q ; = A < Q @ 8 B Q E : N G ? 7 : Q d = @ A ? : < Q A B A : ? A < Q E : T ; A 8 ; A Q O H A @ Q A < 7 d = < ?; : > : A 9 : ; : 7 G H = ; B A < = < > A = H P 8 < A Q 8 ; A < 7 ; : T 8 ; Q @ C
Page 68



o

p q o r s t u v r w x y x z t { t y | } ~ x � � x � � ~ � t � ~ z y � � t � | s x | | s t � � � z t | � � � � � � t y | � � � t � y z� � t � � � � t � � � � t � � � � y z z � x y | � x y � � x � � y z � t � � � � t { t y | � � y � x � | y t � � � � z t | � q
� � z y t � � � � � x � � � x y � ~ � � � � t � � | � � � � t � | ~ � � s � � � � t y x y � � x { � � � t � � t � � � � t � �� s � � � � t y � � x { � � � t � x y � � � � � x | � ~ y

Page 69



�

� � � � � � � � � � � �   � ¡ ¢ £ � � ¤ ¥   � ¥ ¡ � � ¥ � � ¦ ¡ ¤ ¥ � § £ ¦ ¤ ¤ � § ¥ ¨ � � � ¡ � � ¦ © � ª � � � § � � � �   ¢ « � � ¤ � ¦£ ¦ ¤ � § � ¦ � � ¬ ¤ � � ¤ ª ­ ¤ � � ¦ ¢ ¤ � � § � � « § � « ¦ § � � � ¤ � � ¥ § � « � § ¤ ®¯ � ¢ ¤ � ° ¢ ¥ ¤ � ¡ � ± ¤ § ¦ ¤ � � � ¡ ² � ¦ � ³ ´ µ ¶ · ³ ´ ¸ « « � �   � ¬ µ� � � § � ¡ � £ £ � �   ¦ ¤ � � � ¹ ¥ º ¥ � ¤ � ¢ ¤ ¦ ª � © � � � § � ¦ « « § � © �   » ¦ « « § � © �   ¦ ¥ ¦ £ � �   �   »   � � � § § �   »§ � ¼ � ¡ ¤ �   ½ ¾ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ À Á ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿
¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿ ¿± � � � �   ª ­ ®

Page 70



ÂÃ Ä Å Æ Ç È É Ê Æ Ç Ë É Ì Ë Ç Æ Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ç Ô Æ Ê Õ Ç Ö Ì Ë × Ê Å Ð Æ Ë Ç Æ Ä Ø Ò Ù Ú Ú Û Ü
 

Page 71



Ý

Þ ß à á â à á ãä å æ ç è é ê ë ì í è î ê ç ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ñÝ å ò ó ô ô õ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ý þ ÿ þ ô þ � � � õ � � � þ � � � é � í è î í � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ð ð ð ñ� å 	 è é ì í è ì é � � ç ë 
 ê � � é ç � ç í � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ï ï ð �
 å � þ � ø ó ö û þ � õ � � � õ � ó þ ù ø ö � ê ç � � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ï ð ð � �� å � õ ö � � þ ö � ü ý � ú ö ö õ � � þ ô þ ç è � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ï ï ð �� å � ÿ þ ö ÿ ý þ � ø ù � þ ö ù ø ö ô õ � û þ õ � õ ý � � è � � æ � � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ï ï ð ð  ! å ò þ � ù ú � � þ � � ô þ � � " 	 è é � ç # è $ � � ç ë 	 è é � è í $ ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï å å ä Ý% å & î � ' � è ê ( ì è ì é � ) � * î � � é � + � ç ë , î è î # � è î ê ç - ð ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï å ä �. å / � � é � * * 	 ì , , � é � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð ð ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï 0 1ä 2 å � ö ø � ö þ � � õ � õ ý � � � � 3 � 4 � ö ý ø ö ý � ý þ � Ý 2 ä % 5 ä . ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð 0 �ä ä å � 3 � 4 � ö ý ø ö ý � ý þ � Ý 2 ä  6 7 8 ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï 0 �ä Ý å � 3 � 4 � � õ � ø � õ � õ # � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï 7 0 ðú � � þ � � ý û þ � 9" ú 9 � 3 � 4 4 þ õ ô ò � é ì í è ì é � ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ï ð 7 7

Page 72



:

; < = > ? @ A B C D ? E A >F G H I J K L M N O P Q I R J S T I U G H V S W N J H I J X Y P Z [ [ \ ] S P S W P Q I H ^ P _ N O I U Y Q ` N Y U ` U ^ P Q N J S P _ ] U O P I J Y N G W ^ ` P U P S N G a S P Q b U J P G I J U c I G Y S I W ] P NO N J T ^ ` U P I U G H S T b ` I T I G P U G U G G ^ U ` _ N ^ P Q d ^ W P S Y I b ` U G W I P P S G c N ^ P e
· f N a _ N ^ P Q d ^ W P S Y I W I J g S Y I W S G P Q I S J U J I U U J I P N h I b J N g S H I H U G H O ^ G H I H
· f N a P Q I _ N ^ P Q N O O I G H S G c P I U T i j k l m N J I n ^ S g U ` I G P W I J g S Y I a S ` ` h I Y N T b N W I H U G H O ^ G H I H ] Q N a S P a S ` ` N b I J U P I ] U G H a Q U PO ^ G Y P S N G W S P a S ` ` Y U J J _ N ^ P op I g S I a N O b J N c J I W W U c U S G W P b J S N J S P S I W O N J q M Z \ r Z [ Y U G h I O N ^ G H S G b U c I W Z s P N Z t o l Q S W _ I U J ] U O ^ J P Q I J _ I U J u ` N G c b ` U G a S ` ` h I W ^ h T S P P I HS G U G P S Y S b U P S N G N O G I a c ^ S H U G Y I h I S G c S W W ^ I H h _ P Q I j N ^ P Q v ^ W P S Y I w N U J H N G P Q I J I n ^ S J I T I G P O N J b ` U G W O J N T q M q M r q Z o l Q I b J S N J S P S I WW I P O N J q M Z [ r q M U J I N ^ P ` S G I H S G T N J I H I P U S ` N G b U c I W Z \ P N q M U G H U J I e
· x N J P W T N ^ P Q j N ^ P Q v ^ W P S Y I W I J g S Y I W U J I N O O I J I H S G G N g U P S g I ` _ ] a S P Q S G J I W N ^ J Y I U g U S ` U h ` I ] U Y J N W W P Q I b U J P G I J W Q S b
·

V I ` S g I J _ N O y ^ U ` S P _ X W W ^ J U G Y I U G H z U G U c I T I G P k g I J W S c Q P { J U T I a N J | W W ^ b b N J P W } c N N H } W I J g S Y I H I ` S g I J _ ] U G H S G O N J T WN G c N S G c S T b J N g I T I G P S G H I ` S g I J _ N O b J U Y P S Y I o
·

p I H ^ Y S G c { S J W P l S T I ~ G P J U G P W ] p I N O O I G H S G c U G H F W I N O R ^ W P N H _
·

~ T h I H H S G c � U P S N G U ` K P U G H U J H W q M Z [� < � C � � � @ � A � � D � E � � � � � > ? � � > B � A A B � @ � D ? E D � � � ; � � ; �~ U J ` _ S G q M Z \ r Z [ ] x j k l x U J P G I J W Q S b z U G U c I T I G P w N U J H I W P U h ` S W Q I H U K I J g S Y I V I g I ` N b T I G P x ` U G O N ` ` N a S G c h I G Y Q T U J | S G c U c U S G W PG I a f z � x S G W b I Y P S N G W P U G H U J H W o l Q S W x ` U G Q U W h I I G W ^ Y Y I W W O ^ ` ` _ S T b ` I T I G P I H ] U G H N G c N S G c I ` I T I G P W a S ` ` h I Y U J J S I H N g I J S G P Nh N P Q W P J U P I c S Y U G H N b I J U P S N G U ` H I ` S g I J _ b ` U G W O N J q M Z [ r q M o � G b U J P S Y ^ ` U J ] b I J O N J T U G Y I J I b N J P S G c O N J x j k l Q U W h I I G J I g S W I H U G HI G Q U G Y I H ] T N G S P N J S G c T I Y Q U G S W T W O N J U W W I W W T I G P P S T I ` S G I W W Q U g I h I I G S T b ` I T I G P I H ] | I _ b N ` S Y S I W Q U g I h I I G ^ b H U P I H P N I G W ^ J IY ^ J J I G Y _ ] U G H U G I a J U G c I N O S G P I J g I G P S N G b J N c J U T T I W Q U g I h I I G H I g I ` N b I H O N J O J N G P ` S G I H I ` S g I J _ o X G S G P I J u j k l p I g S I a a S P QK N ^ P Q U T b P N G j k K S G k Y P N h I J q M Z \ Q U W b J N g S H I H U h U W I ` S G I O N J U W W I W W T I G P N O b J U Y P S Y I ] U G H b ` U G W U J I S G b ` U Y I P N J I b I U P S P P Q S W _ I U JP N P I W P S T b U Y P N O S T b J N g I T I G P a N J | o X G � G P I J G U ` x R R X ^ H S P a U W U ` W N Y U J J S I H N ^ P S G z U J Y Q r X b J S ` q M Z [ U G H Q U W Y N G O S J T I H P Q I j k lQ U W U c N N H W I G W I N O b ` U Y I o{ U Y P N J W S T b U Y P S G c N G U ` ` : G U P S N G U ` | I _ b I J O N J T U G Y I S G H S Y U P N J W Q U g I h I I G W ^ h d I Y P P N U H H S P S N G U ` W Y J ^ P S G _ ] U O O N J H I H h _ S G Y J I U W I HK I J g S Y I � I U H I J Y U b U Y S P _ ] N g I J P Q I _ I U J o X G U ` _ W S W Q U W h I I G ^ G H I J P U | I G S G J I W b I Y P N O { l ~ ] R ^ W P N H _ ] p I N O O I G H S G c ] � X R U G H k O O I G H S G c ]

Page 73



�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ � � � § � ¨ ¨ � � © � � ª « ¨ � � � � � ¬ � � � � � ¨ � � � � ­ � �   ¡ ¢ ¥ ¤   ¡ ® ¯ � � © � � ª � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � ¬ � � ° « � � « � � � � � � � ¨ � � ­ ± � ° ² � � �� � ¨ � � � � � ¨ ­ ¬ � � � ¦ � � � � ± � � � © � � � � � � � � � ¨ ­ ° � � ¦ ² � � � ° ª � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � � � � � � ¨ ­ � � � � ®´ � � � « � � ¬ � � ° ° ± � ° ² � � � ª � � � � � � � � � � ° � � � � � � ¬ � ± � µ ¶ · ¤ ¸ ¹ º � � ± � � � ¦ � � � ª � � ° � � � ° � � � � � « ¨ � � � � � ² � � ¨ � � � � ± � ° ® º ± � � » � ° � � � ¬¼ µ ¶ · � � � ¹ © © � � � � � ¬ ¼ ³ � � � � � � ¨ ­ ª � � � � � ¬ ° ± � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ½ � « ¨ � � � ¦ § � � ½ � � ¬ � � � � ¶ � � � � � ¯ ¨ � � � ¬ � � � � ¾ � � � � ¨ ­ ² ­ ¸ ¹ º ¦ · ± � ¨ � � � � °¿ � � � � ¨ · � � � � � � � ± � ¯ � ¨ � � � � � ¿ � « � � ª ² � �   ¡ ¢ £ ® ¶ « � � � � ° ° © � � À Á ª � � � ± ¨ ­ ° � � « ° ± � � � � � ¨ ­ ° � ° ± � ° ² � � � � ° � � ² ¨ � ° ± � � � � ª � � � � � � � � ± � � �� ± � � � � � � � � ° � � � ° ¦ � � � ² � Á ª � � � ± ¨ ­ ¾ � � � � � � ° � � � � � � ° � � � � � § � � ½ � � ¬ « ¨ � � � § � � ± Â � � � ¬ � � ° � � � ¯ � � � � � � � � � � � ° © � � ª ² � � ± ° � � � � � � � � � � ° Ã � � �� � « � � © � � ª ¯ � ¨ � � � Ä © � � Å ¶ � � � � ª « � � � � ª � � � « � � « � ° � ° ® º ± � ¸ ¹ º ¼ ° ¯ � � � � � � ­ ¸ � � � ¬ ¯ � � « ¨ � Ã ¯ ¸ ¯ Ä ° � ± � ª � ± � ° � ¨ ° � ² � � � � � � � ° � � � �² � � ¨ � ² � � � � � ¨ � � ½ ° § � � ± Æ Ç ¹ ¤ · ¯ · ± � � � ° ®¿ ­ ° � � ª ° © � � ­ � � � ± � � � � � ¨ � Ã ¸   ¶ Ä � � � � ° � � � � � ° ± � � � � ¨ ° � ² � � � � � � � � § � � ¦ © � ¨ ¨ � § � � ¬ ¨ � � � � � � ¬ © � � ª � ° � ¬ � � © � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Â � � � ±   ¡ ¢ £� � � � ¨ � � ¬ ° � � � � � � � ° � � � ° � � � ± � « � � Á È � ª « ° ± � � � ¸   ¶ ¯ � � � � � � ¨ ° � � � � � ¨ ª � � � ± ° ¨ � � � � ® ¶ ° « � � � � © � ± � ° ¦ � � � » � ° � � � ¬ ¸   ¶ ¯ � � ¬ � � ª ª � ± � °² � � � � « � � � � � � � � � ª « ¨ � ª � � � � � � � ¯ � � � ° ª � � � ± ¦ � � ° � « « � � � ­ � � � ¬ « � � « ¨ � � � � � ± � � ¬ ¸   ¶ � � � � ° � � � � � � ° § � ¨ ¨ � ° � � � � ° © � � ® Ç � ¬ � ¨ � � ¼ ¸   ¶ ¼ª � � � � � ¬ ° � � � ± � ¨ � Ã � � � � ­ À § � � ½ ° Ä § � � ± � � ¨ ¨ � � ¬ � � ° © � � ª � ± � É � � � � � � ¨ ¯ � � ² � � � � � ¿ � � � � � � Ã É ¯ ¿ Ä ¦ · � ª ª � � � � ­ Ç � ± � ² � ¨ � � � � � � � · � ª « � � ­Ã · Ç · Ä � � � � ± � ¨ � � � ¨ � � � ± � � � � ­ º ± � � � ¬ ± · � � � º � � ª Ã º · º Ä � � � � ° � � � � � ¨ � � � � � � � ° � ° � � � � � ° � � ° ° � � � � � © � � � � � ° � � ¨ � � � � ¬ � � � � � � ° � � � � � °� � � � � � � � � � ¨ ° � � � ½ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ®Ê � � § � � ¬ © � � ª � » � ª « ¨ � ° � © � © © � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � ¨ ° � § ± � � � � � � � � � � � � � ° � � � � � � ¬ � © � � ° � � ± � � � ¦ � ± � ¸ ¹ º ± � ° � ¨ ° � � � � � ¨ � « � � � � � � ¬ �� © � � § � � � � � � � � � � � � « � � ½ � ¬ � ° § ± � � ± ° � � © © � � � � � ¨ � � � � � � � ± � ¨ � � � � � � � � � � � � ° � « � � � � ° � � � � � � ¨ � � � � ¬ Ë
·

¿ � © � � ­ Â � « « � � ¬ Ã ² � ° � � � � § � � ½ � � � � ² ­ � ± � · � � � � » � � � ¨ ¿ � © � ¬ � � � � � � ¬ É � � § � � ½ Ä
· Ì � � © � · � � ª � ¶ § � � � � � ° ° Ã � � � ¨ � � � � ¬ ° � © � � ­ « ¨ � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � © ¨ � � � ª � � � ¬ � ª � � � Ä
·

¯ � � � ¯ � � ° ° � � � Ã � � � ¨ � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � » « ¨ � � � � ¬ � » « ¨ � � � � � � � � Ä
·

� � ¬ � ¬ � Ã © � � « � ° � Á Í � � � � ± § � � ½ � � � � � � � � ° � � � ª « ¨ � � � � � Ä ®
·

´ � � ¨ ° ¯ � � ¬ � � ª ª � Ã � � � ½ ¨ � � ¬ © � � � � � ° � � � � � ¨ ­ � � ¬ � © © � � � � � ¬ ² � ± � � � � � � Ä· � � � � � � ¨ ­ � � � � � � � � � ¨ � « ª � � � � � � « � � ¬ � � ª ª � ° � � � � ¨ � � � � � � � � � � ¬ ° ° � « « ¨ ­ � � � � » « ¨ � � � � � � � � ¦ ° � ² ° � � � � � ª � ° � ° � � � � ª � � � � � � � � � � �� ± � � ¬ � ® ¹ � ± � � « � � ¬ � � ª ª � ° § � ¨ ¨ ² � � � � � ¨ � « � � � � � � � ¬   ¡ ¢ ¥ ¤   ¡ ² � ° � � � � � ª � � ¬ � � ¬ � � ° � ¨ � � � « � � © � ¨ � � ¬ ®¶ � � � � � � � � ¨ ¨ ­ ¦ § � � ½ � � ¨ � � � � � � ² ­ � ± � ¨ � � � ¨ Î � � � � � ¶ � � � � � � � � � · � � � � � ± � ° ² � � � � � � � ¨ � « � � � � � �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ Ï ° � � ½ � � ¬ � � � � � � � � ° � � ± �� � ª ² � � � © � ± � ¨ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ ¦ � � ± � � � � � ¬ � § � � � � � ° ° � © � � ° � � ¨ � � � � ­ � ± � � � ¬ ± � � ¹ « � � Ê � ­ ± � ¨ � � � Î � � � � � ­   ¡ ¢ ¥ ¦ � � � � « � � � � � ¬ � ± �� � � ¬ � � © ° � ° ° � � � ° � � � � ¨ � ² ¨ � � � ¨ � ¬ ± � � © � ± � � ¬ � ° � � � ± � ¸ ¹ º ° � � ° � ¨ � � � ° � � � � � ± � Î ¶ · ¼ ° � � � � « � � � � ® º ± � ° § � ¨ ¨ � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ ¢ ¥ ¤   ¡� ± � � � ¬ ± � « � � � � ° ° � © � « � � � � � ¬ ° � ° ° � � � � � � � � � � ¦ � � � ² � � ¨ � � � ¬ ¬ � � � � � � ¨ � � ½ ° ² � � § � � � Î ¶ · � � � ¸ ¹ º ° � � © © � ° § � ¨ ¨ � ° ² � � ¨ � � � ¬ � �« � � � � � � ° ± � « ° § � � ± � � ± � � � � ¬ � � � ° � � � � � ° ° � � ± � ° � ± � ¹ ¯ · · ¸ � � � ± · � ª ª � ° ° � � � � � � ¿ � � � � � Ê � � � � � ° ®

Page 74



Ð

Ñ Ò Ó Ô Ô Õ Ò Ò Ö Ó × Ø Ù Õ Ú Û Ü Ý Þ Ü Ò Ü × Ò ß à Õ × á â Õ ã Õ à ä Ý å Õ Ò æ ß ã Ü æ á â Õ ç Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ è ã Ü Ô æ á æ á ß Ú Õ ã Ò Ü Ú à æ é Õ ê Ø ë å Õ Ö Õ ã ã Ü × Ø ã à Õ ã Ü Ú à ì ß × Ó Ú æ Õ Õ ã í ß îØ ã à á Ú Ü æ ß ã Ü Ò Ù Ü ã æ ß Ö å Õ Ò æ ß ã Ü æ á â Õ ç Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ Ñ Þ Ü ã Õ Ú Õ Ò Ò ï Õ Õ ð á Ú ñ ß â Õ ò ä Õ ã ó ô õ ö ÷ ë é Õ Ý é Ü â Õ Ò ß Ó ø é æ æ ß Õ Ú é Ü Ú Ô Õ Ü Ú à Õ ù Ù Ü Ú à æ é Õ ã Ü Ú ø Õß Ö ã Õ Ù Ü ã Ü æ á ß Ú ß Ù æ á ß Ú Ò Ü Ú à è Ü Ú Õ × â Õ Ú Ó Õ Ò Ü â Ü á × Ü ä × Õ Ü Ô ã ß Ò Ò æ é Õ í á æ Ý ÷ ë é á Ò á Ú Ô × Ó à Õ à ä Ó á × à á Ú ø ß Ú Õ ù á Ò æ á Ú ø ú ß á Ú æ î Þ ß ã ð á Ú ø Þ á æ é è ß ã æ Ò ò ß Ó æ éí á æ Ý í ß Ó Ú Ô á × û Ò Ý ß Ó æ é Ü Ú à Ô ß ò ò Ó Ú á æ Ý Ò Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò æ ß ò Ü ð Õ Ó Ò Õ ß Ö æ é Õ á ã Ò é Ü ã Õ à Ö Ü Ô á × á æ á Õ Ò ü Ü Ú à à Õ â Õ × ß Ù á Ú ø × á Ú ð Ò Þ á æ é á Ú æ é Õ ã Õ æ Ü á × Ò Õ Ô æ ß ã ÷ë é Õ è ê Ø ë ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ þ Õ Ü à Õ ã é Ü Ò Þ ß ã ð Õ à Þ á æ é ß æ é Õ ã Ò æ ß Õ Ú é Ü Ú Ô Õ æ é Õ ã Ü Ú ø Õ ß Ö à Õ â Õ × ß Ù ò Õ Ú æ ß Ù Ù ß ã æ Ó Ú á æ á Õ Ò Ö ß ã Ù Ü ã æ Ú Õ ã Ò é á Ù Ò æ Ü Ö Ö ÷ ÿ Úó ô õ ö ü ï å Ñ è æ ã Ü á Ú á Ú ø Þ Ü Ò à Õ × á â Õ ã Õ à æ ß ê Ø ë Ò æ Ü Ö Ö ä Ý æ é Õ × ß Ô Ü × è ã Õ â Õ Ú æ × Õ Ü à Ò ÷ ÿ Ú ó ô õ � ü Ü ú ß á Ú æ Þ ß ã ð Ò é ß Ù æ ß á à Õ Ú æ á Ö Ý ã Õ Ò ß Ó ã Ô Õ Ò æ ß æ Ü Ô ð × ÕÕ ù Ù × ß á æ Ü æ á ß Ú Þ Ü Ò é Õ × à Þ á æ é ê Ø ë Ü Ú à × ß Ô Ü × � Ü ã Ú Ü ã à ß Ò Ò æ Ü Ö Ö ÷ ë Þ ß ê ß Ó æ é æ ß Ñ à Ó × æ � ê ó Ñ � Þ ß ã ð Ò é ß Ù Ò Þ Õ ã Õ à Õ × á â Õ ã Õ à á Ú ç Ü Ú Ó Ü ã Ý ó ô õ � æ ß× Ü Ó Ú Ô é Ü Ú Ó Ù à Ü æ Õ à Ù Ü Ú î � Ü ò Ù Ò é á ã Õ ê ó Ñ è ã ß æ ß Ô ß × ü Ü æ æ Õ Ú à Õ à ä Ý Ò æ Ü Ö Ö Ö ã ß ò ê Ø ë ü í ß ò ò Ó Ú á æ Ý å Õ é Ü ä á × á æ Ü æ á ß Ú í ß ò Ù Ü Ú Ý � í å í � ü ñ Ü æ á ß Ú Ü ×è ã ß ä Ü æ á ß Ú ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ � ñ è ý � Ü Ú à æ é Õ × ß Ô Ü × ë é ã ß Ó ø é í Ü ã Õ ë Õ Ü ò ÷ Ñ à à á æ á ß Ú Ü × × Ý ü æ é Õ ê Ø ë ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ þ Õ Ü à Õ ã Þ ß ã ð Õ à Þ á æ é æ é Õ × ß Ô Ü × � Ñ è è Ñí ß î Ø ã à á Ú Ü æ ß ã Ü Ú à Ü � Ü ò Ù Ò é á ã Õ ê Ø ë ë Õ Ü ò � Ü Ú Ü ø Õ ã æ ß ã Õ â á Ò Õ æ é Õ Õ ù á Ò æ á Ú ø ê Ø ë � � Ñ è è Ñ � Õ ò ß ã Ü Ú à Ó ò ß Ö � Ú à Õ ã Ò æ Ü Ú à á Ú ø Ü Ú à à Õ × á â Õ ã� Ñ è è Ñ æ ã Ü á Ú á Ú ø æ ß Ü × × ê Ø ë ë Õ Ü ò Ü Ú à í Ü Ò Õ � Ü Ú Ü ø Õ ã Ò Ü Ô ã ß Ò Ò Ù Ü Ú î � Ü ò Ù Ò é á ã Õ ÷ � ß Ò æ ã Õ Ô Õ Ú æ × Ý ü Ü Ú û ÿ Ú æ ã ß à Ó Ô æ á ß Ú æ ß ê ß Ó æ é ç Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ ûÞ ß ã ð Ò é ß Ù Þ Ü Ò à Õ × á â Õ ã Õ à æ ß ò Ó × æ á î Ü ø Õ Ú Ô Ý Ù ã Ü Ô æ á æ á ß Ú Õ ã Ò ß Ú ä Õ é Ü × Ö ß Ö è ß ã æ Ò ò ß Ó æ é ý Ü Ö Õ ø Ó Ü ã à á Ú ø í é á × à ã Õ Ú û Ò � ß Ü ã à � è ý í � � ü æ ß á Ú Ô ã Õ Ü Ò ÕÜ Þ Ü ã Õ Ú Õ Ò Ò ß Ö æ é Õ ê Ø ë Ò Þ ß ã ð ÷ ÿ æ é Ü Ò Ú ß Þ ä Õ Õ Ú Ü ø ã Õ Õ à æ é Ü æ æ é á Ò Þ á × × ä Õ Ü à à Õ à æ ß Ü Ú Ú Ó Ü × æ ã Ü á Ú á Ú ø Ô Ü × Õ Ú à Ü ã Ò Ö ß ã ä ß æ é è ý í � Ü Ú à è í í ÷è ê Ø ë Ü × Ò ß ã Õ × Ü Ó Ú Ô é Õ à æ é Õ á ã ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ � Ò Õ ã � Õ Õ à ä Ü Ô ð ý æ ã Ü æ Õ ø Ý Ü × ß Ú ø Ò á à Õ è í í û Ò í é á × à ã Õ Ú Ü Ú à � Ü ò á × á Õ Ò Ü Ú Ú Ó Ü × û � Õ Õ à ä Ü Ô ð � Õ ä ã Ó Ü ã Ý ûÕ â Õ Ú æ á Ú ó ô õ � ÷ ë é Õ ê Ø ë Ò Õ Ô Ó ã Õ à Ü é á ø é × Õ â Õ × ß Ö Ö Õ Õ à ä Ü Ô ð Ö ã ß ò Ô é á × à ã Õ Ú Ó Ú à Õ ã Ò Ó Ù Õ ã â á Ò á ß Ú ü Ü Ú à Ü ã Õ Ü Þ Ü á æ á Ú ø Ô ß × × Ü æ Õ à ã Õ æ Ó ã Ú Ò æ ßá Ú Ö ß ã ò Ú Õ ù æ Ò æ Õ Ù Ò ÷ � Ó Ú à Ü ò Õ Ú æ Ü × × Ý ü ß Ó ã Ú Õ Þ Ò æ ã Ü æ Õ ø Ý Þ á × × Ò Õ Õ ð Ö Õ Õ à ä Ü Ô ð Ö ã ß ò Ô é á × à ã Õ Ú Ü ã ß Ó Ú à 	 ð Õ Ý 
 Ó Õ Ò æ á ß Ú Ò ü á Ú Ü â Ü ã á Õ æ Ý ß Ö Ö ß ã ò Ü æ ÒÜ Ú à Ö ß ã Ó ò Ò ü Ü Ú à ä Õ à Õ â Õ × ß Ù Õ à ß â Õ ã ó ô õ � � ó ô æ ß á Ú Ô × Ó à Õ â á Ô æ á ò Ò Ü æ á Ò Ö Ü Ô æ á ß Ú ü Ù Ü ã Õ Ú æ � Ô Ü ã Õ ã Ö Õ Õ à ä Ü Ô ð Ü Ú à Ò Õ Ú æ Õ Ú Ô Õ ã Õ â Ü × Ó Ü æ á ß Ú ÷� � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �Ñ Ò ß Ó æ × á Ú Õ à á Ú × Ü Ò æ Ý Õ Ü ã û Ò Ù × Ü Ú ü æ é Õ è ê Ø ë Ù Ü ã æ Ú Õ ã Ò é á Ù Ù ã ß â á à Õ Ò Ý ß Ó æ é ú Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ Ò Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò Ö ß ã æ é Õ è ß ã æ Ò ò ß Ó æ é í á æ Ý í ß Ó Ú Ô á × � è í í � Ü ã Õ ÜÔ ß ò Ù ã á Ò á Ú ø æ é Õ × ß Ô Ü × ê ß Ó æ é Ø Ö Ö Õ Ú à á Ú ø ë Õ Ü ò � ê Ø ë � ü ç Ó Ú á ß ã Ñ æ æ Õ Ú à Ü Ú Ô Õ í Õ Ú æ ã Õ � ç Ñ í � Ü Ú à Ñ Ù Ù ã ß Ù ã á Ü æ Õ Ñ à Ó × æ � Ñ Ñ � Ò Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò Ô ß Ú æ ã Ü Ô æ Õ àß Ó æ æ ß ë é Õ Ñ Ù Ù ã ß Ù ã á Ü æ Õ Ñ à Ó × æ ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ � ë Ñ Ñ ý � ÷ � ã ß Ü à Õ ã Ù ã Õ â Õ Ú æ Ü æ á â Õ Ö Ó Ú Ô æ á ß Ú Ò á Ú æ é Õ è í í Ü ã Õ Ü Ü ã Õ Ò Õ ã â Õ à â á Ü � Ü ã × Ý � Õ × Ù Ü Ú àè ã Õ â Õ Ú æ á ß Ú Ò Õ ã â á Ô Õ ü Ü Ú à Ò Ó Ù Ù ß ã æ Õ à ä Ý Ü ã Ü Ú ø Õ ß Ö Ù ã ß ø ã Ü ò ò Õ Ò ß Ö Ö Õ ã Õ à â á Ü æ é á ã à Ò Õ Ô æ ß ã ß ã ø Ü Ú á Ò Ü æ á ß Ú Ò ÷ñ Ü æ á ß Ú Ü × × Ý ü æ é Õ ê Ø ë á Ò Ò Ó Ù Ù ß ã æ Õ à Ü Ú à ß â Õ ã Ò Õ Õ Ú ä Ý æ é Õ ê ß Ó æ é ç Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ � ß Ü ã à Ö ß ã � Ú ø × Ü Ú à Ü Ú à ï Ü × Õ Ò ü Ü Ú ß Ú î à Õ Ù Ü ã æ ò Õ Ú æ Ü × Ù Ó ä × á Ô ä ß à ÝÒ Ù ß Ú Ò ß ã Õ à ä Ý æ é Õ � á Ú á Ò æ ã Ý ß Ö ç Ó Ò æ á Ô Õ ÷ þ ß Ô Ü × × Ý ü æ é Õ ê Ø ë Ô ß Ú æ á Ú Ó Õ Ò æ ß ä Õ Ù ß Ò á æ á ß Ú Õ à Þ á æ é æ é Õ � Ü ã ò Ü Ú à � ù Ù × ß á æ Ü æ á ß Ú ä ã Ü Ú Ô é ß Ö í é á × à ã Õ ÚÜ Ú à � Ü ò á × á Õ Ò ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò ÷ ÿ æ á Ò ß â Õ ã Ò Õ Õ Ú ä Ý æ é Õ è ê Ø ë è Ü ã æ Ú Õ ã Ò é á Ù � Ü Ú Ü ø Õ ò Õ Ú æ � ß Ü ã à Þ é á Ô é á Ò Ô é Ü á ã Õ à ä Ý æ é Õ þ ß Ô Ü × ý Ó Ù Õ ã ÿ Ú æ Õ Ú à Ü Ú æÜ Ú à ò Õ Õ æ Ò ß Ú Ü 
 Ó Ü ã æ Õ ã × Ý ä Ü Ò á Ò ü Ô ß Ú Ò á Ò æ á Ú ø ß Ö ã Õ Ù ã Õ Ò Õ Ú æ Ü æ á â Õ Ò Ö ã ß ò æ é Õ � Ò æ Ü æ Ó æ ß ã Ý Ü ø Õ Ú Ô á Õ Ò ü í é á × à ã Õ Ú û Ò ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò � á Ú Ô × Ó à á Ú ø� à Ó Ô Ü æ á ß Ú � ü � Ü ò Ù Ò é á ã Õ í ß Ú Ò æ Ü ä Ó × Ü ã Ý ü ñ Ü æ á ß Ú Ü × è ã ß ä Ü æ á ß Ú ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ü Ú à � Õ Ü × æ é ÷ Ñ ã Õ Ù ã Õ Ò Õ Ú æ Ü æ á â Õ ß Ö � Õ ã � Ü ú Õ Ò æ Ý û Ò í ß Ó ã æ Ò Ü Ú àë ã á ä Ó Ú Ü × ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò Ü Ú à æ é Õ × Õ Ü à � Õ ò ä Õ ã Ö ß ã í é á × à ã Õ Ú û Ò ý Õ ã â á Ô Õ Ò Ü ã Õ Ü à à á æ á ß Ú Ü × Ô ß ã Õ ò Õ ò ä Õ ã Ò ÷ ë é Õ × ß Ô Ü × � ß Ü ã à é ß × à Ò æ é Õ ê Ø ë æ ßÜ Ô Ô ß Ó Ú æ ä Ý ò ß Ú á æ ß ã á Ú ø Ù Õ ã Ö ß ã ò Ü Ú Ô Õ Ü ø Ü á Ú Ò æ ä ß æ é Ú Ü æ á ß Ú Ü × Ü Ú à × ß Ô Ü × á Ú à á Ô Ü æ ß ã Ò ü ã Õ Ù ß ã æ Õ à ß Ú Ü 
 Ó Ü ã æ Õ ã × Ý ä Ü Ò á Ò â á Ü æ é Õ ê Ø ë ý Õ ã â á Ô Õþ Õ Ü à Õ ã ü Ü Ú à Õ Ú Ò Ó ã á Ú ø æ é Ü æ á æ ò Ü á Ú æ Ü á Ú Ò Ô ß ò Ù × á Ü Ú Ô Õ Þ á æ é æ é Õ æ Õ ã ò Ò Ü Ú à Ô ß Ú à á æ á ß Ú Ò ß Ö ê ç � � ã Ü Ú æ ÷

Page 75



�

� � �  ! � " # $ % & !  � ' "  ( ) $ * + ! * , -  & -  � ( . - / � ) 0 $ � 1 $ ( % /   " ' � 2 1 / ' 3 "   " 4 $ " 5 ! ' 3 ' - � ! 4 ! $ 2 ! 6 2 " ! � � ) " � $ . " - , ( / 6 . $ ( ( $ - ' 7 8 - 5 " 4 "  9� ) " 8 " ! 3 - , 8 !  . ! ' 3 : ; * 2 - $ � ! � $ - ' ! � � " ' 3 ( � ) " � ! , "  & -  � ( . - / � ) & !  � ' "  ( ) $ * < � & & = 9 ! ' 3 $ ( " . 6 " 3 3 " 3 5 $ � ) $ ' � ) " 5 $ 3 "  0 ) $ 2 3  " '! ' 3 > ! . $ 2 $ " ( � " ' $ -  + ! ' ! # " . " ' � ? " ! . 9  " * -  � $ ' # � - � ) " @ " * / � 1 @ $  " % � -  , -  0 ) $ 2 3  " ' A ( � "  4 $ % " ( 7 ? ) " � "  4 $ % " B " ! 3 "  ) ! (. ! $ ' � ! $ ' " 3 2 $ ' C ( 5 $ � ) $ ' � ) " * ! ' D 8 ! . * ( ) $  " !  " ! 9 ! ' 3 3 " 4 " 2 - * " 3 # - - 3 5 -  C $ ' #  " 2 ! � $ - ' ( ) $ * ( . -  " 2 - % ! 2 2 1 $ ' & -  � ( . - / � ) ( $ ' % "% - . $ ' # $ ' � - * - ( � $ ' + !  % ) E F G H 7 I J ? ? " ! . B " ! 3 "  ( !  " 5 " 2 2 D " ( � ! 6 2 $ ( ) " 3 9 ! ' 3 ) ! 4 " 2 $ ' C ( � - C " 1 - * "  ! � $ - ' ! 2 , / ' % � $ - ' ( 3 " 2 $ 4 "  " 3! %  - ( ( � ) " 0 $ � 1 9 $ ' % 2 / 3 $ ' # K " ( - /  % " & ! ' " 2 9 � / * * -  � " 3 8 - / ( $ ' # & ! ' " 2 9 � ) " L - $ ' � @ " % $ ( $ - ' + ! C $ ' # & ! ' " 2 ! ' 3 2 - % ! 2 0 - /  � ( 7K " 2 ! � $ 4 " ( � ! 6 $ 2 $ � 1 $ ' ( � ! , , $ ' # ) ! ( 6 " " ' ! % ) $ " 4 " 3 ! , � "  ! ' / . 6 "  - , ( � ! , , % ) ! ' # " ( $ ' E F G M N G H ! ' 3 � ) " % /   " ' � � " ! . ( �  / % � /  " $ ( - / � 2 $ ' " 3$ ' � * * " ' 3 $ ; � 7 J , ' - � " 9 $ ' � " * � " . 6 "  E F G H 9 � ) " � " ! . 5 " 2 % - . " 3 ! ' " 5 � * " " % ) ! ' 3 B ! ' # / ! # " ? ) "  ! * $ ( � < � � B ? = * - ( � , -  O 7 O ) - /  (* "  5 " " C 7 � ( / % % " ( ( , / 2 6 $ 3 , -  ) " ! 2 � ) , / ' 3 $ ' # 5 $ 2 2 ' - 5 " ; � " ' 3 � ) $ ( *  - 4 $ ( $ - ' $ ' � - E F G P N E F ! ' 3 $ ' %  " ! ( " $ � � - F 7 Q * - ( � 7 R '  " ( * " % � - ,4 - 2 / ' � " "  ( 9 � ) " K " , "   ! 2 ! ' 3 S - 2 / ' � " "  0 - D J  3 $ ' ! � -  ) ! ( 5 -  C " 3 � - $ ' %  " ! ( " � ) " ' / . 6 "  ! 4 ! $ 2 ! 6 2 " � - ( / * * -  � � ) " I J ? $ ' $ � ( 5 -  C! ' 3 ! � � ) " � $ . " - , 5  $ � $ ' # G G 5 "  " , / 2 2 1 �  ! $ ' " 3 ! ' 3 ! 4 ! $ 2 ! 6 2 " 9 5 $ � ) ! , /  � ) "  T ! 5 ! $ � $ ' # �  ! $ ' $ ' #  " U / $  " 3 � - % - . . " ' % " � ) " $   - 2 " 7V W X Y Z [ \ ] ^ Y Z _ ` a b _ c \ Y d [ ] e [ ` Y f? ) " & I J ? ? " ! . � �  / % � /  " $ ( *  - 4 $ 3 " 3 $ ' � * * " ' 3 $ ; � 7 ? ) " , -  " % ! ( � E F G P N E F 6 / 3 # " � $ ( - / � 2 $ ' " 3 6 " 2 - 5 9 ! 2 - ' # ( $ 3 " ! 2 2 * !  � ' "  % - ' �  $ 6 / � $ - ' (  " , 2 " % � " 3 ! ( g - , � ) " - 4 "  ! 2 2 I J ? 6 / 3 # " � 7 h i j k j l j m jn o j
o i j h jp q r q s t u v w w x q y z { | } t y~ � � � � � � ~ � � � ~ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

Page 76



�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � � � ¡ ¦ � � � ¦ � ¦ ¡ � � § § � � � � � ¨ � � � � ¦ � � � ¡ � � © ¡ � � � � � � � ª § � � � � � � � ¡ « ¬   � © � � � � � ­ � � ® © � � � � �¯ ° ± ² ³ ± ´ � © � � � � § � � © � � � � § � � © � � � µ � ­ � µ ¡ � � �   µ � � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � � �   � © � µ � ­ � � � © � ¡ � � ¨ � � � � © ¢   � � � � ¦ � � � � � � � � � � � ¢ � � © � � � � � � � � � ® � � � � �� © © � � � � � � µ § � � © � � � ¡ � � � � ¦ ¡ � ­ � � µ �   µ � § � � � � � � � � � � �   � © � � � « � � � ¶ � � µ © � � � � � © · � ¦ � µ � � ¡ ¸ � � ­ � � � ¡ � � � � � �   � � � � � ® � ¡ � �   � ¡ � © � �   � � � � �� � § µ � � � � � � � � µ ¡ � ¦ ¡ � � � ­ � © � © � � © � ¡ � � �   � � � � ¡ � � � � � � �   � � � � � « ¬ © © � � � � � � µ § � � © � � � � � ¡   � � � ¡ � � � � � © § � � � � � ¸ ¬ ¹ � � � ¡ � º § � � ¯ ° ± ´ ³ ¯ ° » ¢  � � � µ µ � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � ¦ � � � � ¡ � � � ª ® � � � § � � � � � � � � ­ � � � ¡ ª � � � � � � � § µ � � � ¡ ¦ � µ µ � � © � � � � � � « ¼ � � � � ¦ ¡ � § ® � © � � � � � � � �   � � � � � ½
· ¾ ¿ ¶ � ¡ © � � � � � � � ­ � © � � � ¡ � � � � � À Á � � © � � � � � �   � � � � � ¡ « ¾ � ® � ­ � � ¢ � � � ª � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � © � � � � � ¤ ¥ � Â � � � © � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � ­ � � � µ µ© � � � ¡ � � � ¦ � Á � � � � � ­ � � � � � � � � µ � � � µ � � Á ¡ � � ª � � � � Ã � ¡ � � � � «
·

¼ � À Á � � © � � � � � �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � ­ � © § � � ¦ £ � µ � � � ¢ £ � �   � � � � � � � © ¾ � � µ � � � � � � � ¦ � § ¡ � � § § � � � º ® � � � £ � �   � � � � � � µ ¡ � � � � ­ � © � � � � ¡ ¦ � µ µ� � ¡ � ¡ � ¦ » « Ä � © � � ¦ � � � � � ¦ � � � � � � ­ � ¡ � � � ¢ � � © � � � ¦ � ¡ � ¡ ³ ¡ � � � � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � ¡ ¢ � � � � � � ­ � © � © � � � � � ¤ ¥ � � � � � � ¦ � � � µ   � ¡ � ¡ «
· Å � � � � § � � © � � � § � � ¦ � � � ¥ £ ¶ ¶ º � � � § � � ¦ � © � � � � µ ¿ � � � � ¯ ° ¯ ° » © � � � � � µ ª § � � © ¡ £ ¤ ¥ � Æ ¡ Ç � § � � � � µ ¥ � © � � � � © È � µ � � � � � � ¶ � À ¥ � © � � � � � �� � ¡ � � � © � � � � � �   � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � © ¸ � � ­ � � � ¹ � � © � � � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � µ ª ¡ � ¡ � � © ¡ � � � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � «
·

¶ � ¡ � � � � � � �   � � � � � § � � ¦ £ �   µ � � ¾ � � µ � � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ © � µ � ­ � � ª � § ¸ �   ¡ � � � � � ¿ � ¡ � ¡ � ¡ � � ­ � � � ¡ ® � � � � � � �   � � � � � ¡ ¡ � ©   ª � � � ¤ ¥ � ¢§ � � ¦ ¶ ¶ Å § � � � � � ¤ ¥ � ¶ ¬ ¿ ¾ ¸ É � � ¡ � � � © § � � © � � � ­ � � ¾ � � µ � � � � © Ê � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � � ¦ ¡ © � � � � � µ ª § � � © ¡ ¸ ¬ ¹ � � � � ­ � ¡ � � � «
·

� � � ¤ Ê Â Ë § § � � � � ­ � £ � � � � � � � Å � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � © � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � © � ­ � µ � � ¦ � � � � § � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � ¢ � � � � ¡ ¡ � � � � � � � § ¡ � � § § � � µ � ¡� � © � � � Ã � � � ¡ ® � � � � � � � � � � � ¦ « � � � ¡ � � ¡   � � � � � © � � � © ¡ µ � � � � µ ª § � � ¯ ° ± ´ ³ ¯ ° � � © � � � � � § � � � © � � ¡ � � � � � § µ � � � � � ª � � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � �� � ¡ � ¡ � � � � � � � © � � � ª � � � � � ª � � �   � ¡ � ¡ º � « � « ¡ � µ � � ª � � � � � ¦ � � � ¡ »
·

Ç � ¡ � � ­ � ¡ § � � ¦ � � � Ç � ¦ � � © Å � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � © � � � ¤ ¥ � Æ ¡ �   � µ � � ª � � ¦ � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � § ® � � Á � � ¯ ° ± ² ³ ± ´ � ¡© � ¦ � � © � � � ¡ � � � � � � � © � Ì � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � « � � � � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � ¡ � � ®   � � � ¡ � � � � ¢ � � © ® � � � � Ç � ¦ � � © Å � � � � ® � � � � � � � ­ � © � ¡ µ � ¡ ¡� � � � ± ° Í � § µ � ¡ � ª � � � Æ ¡ � � ¡ � ¡ � � � ¡ � ¡ � � � � � � � § ¡ � � � � § � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � «
·

� � � ¤ Ê Â Ê � � � � � ¬ � � � � © � � � � ¶ � � � � � º Ê ¬ ¶ » Å � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � © � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � �   µ � ­ � � � � � � © ¡ � � § § � � � µ � ­ � µ ¡ � � � � �   µ � Ê ¬ ¶ © � µ � ­ � � ª «¼ � ¯ ° ± ² ³ ± ´ ¢ � � � ¡ � � � µ � © � © � � � � � � � © µ � ­ � µ ¡ � § � ­ � � ¡ � � � � � � � � ­ � � ® � � � � � � � © � µ � ­ � � ª � � © � � � ¡ ® � µ µ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¯ ° ± ´ ³ ¯ ° «¥ ­ � � � µ µ ¢ � � � ¤ ¥ �   � © � � � ¡ º � � � � � � µ � � ª » ® � µ µ � § § � � © © � µ � ­ � � ª � § � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � § � � � � � ¡ ª � � � « ¾ � ® � ­ � � ¢ � § � � ª § � � � � � � � � © � � � � � � ¡ ® � � � � �   �� � � � � � � � © ¢ � � � � � ® � � µ © µ � Á � µ ª   � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � ­ � � ® ¡ � � § § � � � µ � ­ � µ ¡ � � © ³ � � ¡ � � ­ � � � © � µ � ­ � � ª � ¡ � � � ¡ � � ® � � � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ � � � ¦ � Ã � � � � ª� § � � � ¤ ¥ �   � © � � � « Å � ­ � � � � � ¡ ¡ � � � ¡ � µ � � � © ª � © � � � � § � � © ¢ � � © � � � � � � � � � § � ¦ � � � ­ � ¦ � � � ® � � Á   � � � � © � µ � ­ � � � © ¢ � � � Á � � � Á � � � ¦ � � � �� § � � � � ® � � µ ©   � § � � � � � ¤ ¥ � � � � � ­ � � � � � � � � � ¡   � � � � � � © � � � � � � ¨ � � µ � � ª � � © ³ � � � � � � � � � ª � § � � � ¡ � � ­ � � � � � � � � ­ � © � ¡ «

Page 77



Î

Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ó × Ø Ù Ú Ò Ó Ó Ò Õ Û Ö Ü Ö Õ Ô ×Ý Þ ß à Þ á â ã ä å à ß Þ æ á ß ç è ã å ç à ß á é ê Þ ë ã æ á ì ã æ Ý á ä Þ ã é æ í î ï ã æ à æ ä ã à ë ä é æ Þ ß ã ð ê Þ ã é æ ç à ß á é ê Þ ë ã æ á ì ã æ Ý á ä Þ ã é æ ñ îò ó ó ô ç à õ ð ã Þ ã é æ Þ é ð á à ô ö á ç Þ é ß à Þ ã ÷ á ó ã Þ ø ô è à ç ä é æ Þ ã æ ê á ì ù à æ ì ß á ç Þ é ß à Þ ã ÷ á å ß à ä Þ ã ä á ã ç ì á ë ã ÷ á ß á ì à ä ß é ç ç Þ è á ú é ß û é ü ó è ã ë ì ß á æ à æ ìï à õ ã ë ã á ç Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á ç î ö é ë á ç à æ ì ß á ç å é æ ç ã ð ã ë ã Þ ã á ç ú ã Þ è ã æ Þ è á ý à ß õ à æ ì þ ÿ å ë é ã Þ à Þ ã é æ ð ß à æ ä è é ü ó è ã ë ì ß á æ à æ ì ï à õ ã ë ø Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á ç à ß á æ é úá ç Þ à ð ë ã ç è á ì ú ã Þ è á ÿ å ë é ß à Þ ã é æ é ü é ÷ á ß ë à å à æ ì é å å é ß Þ ê æ ã Þ ã á ç ü é ß � é ã æ Þ ú é ß û ã æ â ê æ ì á ß Þ à û á æ î � è ã ç ú ã ë ë ð á á ÿ å ë é ß á ì ü ê ß Þ è á ß ã æ � � � � îò � � � ä é æ Þ ã æ ê á ç Þ é ð á ð à ç á ì à Þ Þ è á ó ã ÷ ã ä � ü ü ã ä á ç ù ú é ß û ã æ â à Þ ÷ á æ ê á ç à ä ß é ç ç Þ è á ó ã Þ ø � á î â î ü é ß ß á å à ß à Þ ã é æ à æ ì ö á ü á ß ß à ë � ß ì á ß å à æ á ë ç 	 î� è á Þ á à õ ã ç ä é 
 ë é ä à Þ á ì ú ã Þ è ò é ß Þ ç õ é ê Þ è � � Ý ý à æ ì Ý é ê Þ è 
 é ä à ë ã Þ ø ó è ã ë ì ß á æ ô ç Ý é ä ã à ë ó à ß á � á à õ ù ä ë é ç á Þ é Þ è á � è ß é ê â è ó à ß á � á à õà æ ì Ý á æ ã é ß � à æ à â á ß ç ü é ß Þ è á ú ã ì á ß ç á ß ÷ ã ä á î ý à ß õ à æ ì þ ÿ å ë é ã Þ à Þ ã é æ ç á ß ÷ ã ä á ç à ß á ë é ä à Þ á ì é æ à æ é Þ è á ß ü ë é é ß ú ã Þ è ã æ Þ è á ç à õ á ð ê ã ë ì ã æ âà æ ì ß á ë á ÷ à æ Þ õ à æ à â á ß ç õ á á Þ é æ à õ é æ Þ è ë ø ð à ç ã ç Þ é ü à ä ã ë ã Þ à Þ á â ß é ú ã æ â ë ã æ û ç î ò é ë ã ä á ù ý á à ë Þ è ù þ ì ê ä à Þ ã é æ à æ ì ý é ê ç ã æ â ß á å ß á ç á æ Þ à Þ ã ÷ á çà ß á à ë ç é ð à ç á ì ú ã Þ è ã æ Þ è á ó ã ÷ ã ä ð ê ã ë ì ã æ â à æ ì ó é ê ß Þ ç ç á ß ÷ ã ä á ç à ß á ú ã Þ è ã æ ú à ë û ã æ â ì ã ç Þ à æ ä á é ü Þ è á é ü ü ã ä á î � è á ë é ä à ë ò é ë ã ä á ä ê ç Þ é ì ø ç ê ã Þ áú ã ë ë õ é ÷ á ü ß é õ ã Þ ç ä á æ Þ ß à ë ë é ä à Þ ã é æ ì ê ß ã æ â � � � � � � � î� è á � � � � à æ à â á õ á æ Þ � á à õ ç Þ ã ë ë ä é õ å ß ã ç á ç å ß é ü á ç ç ã é æ à ë ç ü ß é õ ò ß é ð à Þ ã é æ ù Ý é ä ã à ë � é ß û à æ ì þ ì ê ä à Þ ã é æ ð à ä û â ß é ê æ ì ç ù å ß é ÷ ã ì ã æ â àâ é é ì õ ã ÿ é ü û æ é ú ë á ì â á à æ ì á ÿ å á ß Þ ã ç á à æ ì ç á ä é æ ì õ á æ Þ ç ü ß é õ é Þ è á ß à â á æ ä ã á ç ß á õ à ã æ ã æ å ë à ä á ü é ß ß á ë á ÷ à æ Þ ç Þ à ü ü î ó è à æ â á ç è à ÷ á ð á á æõ à ì á Þ é ë é ä à ë ì á ë ã ÷ á ß ø é ü ç ê ð ç Þ à æ ä á õ ã ç ê ç á ç á ß ÷ ã ä á ç Þ é á ÿ Þ á æ ì à ÷ à ã ë à ð ã ë ã Þ ø ù à æ ì Þ è á � � � æ é ú è à ç ã Þ ç é ú æ ô Ý ê ð ç Þ à æ ä á � ã ç ê ç áó è à õ å ã é æ ô Þ é ç ê å å é ß Þ å ß à ä Þ ã ä á ú ã Þ è ã æ Þ è á Þ á à õ î� å å ß é å ß ã à Þ á � ì ê ë Þ ç á ß ÷ ã ä á ç à ß á ç Þ ã ë ë ì á ë ã ÷ á ß á ì ÷ ã à � è á � å å ß é å ß ã à Þ á � ì ê ë Þ Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á � � � � Ý 	 ê æ ì á ß ä é æ Þ ß à ä Þ è á ë ì ð á Þ ú á á æ Þ è á õ ùý à õ å ç è ã ß á ó é æ ç Þ à ð ê ë à ß ø à æ ì Þ è á ñ å à æ 
 ý à õ å ç è ã ß á � � � ç � ñ � � � 
 ò é ß Þ ç õ é ê Þ è ù Ý é ê Þ è à õ å Þ é æ ù ý à õ å ç è ã ß á à æ ì � ç ë á é ü � ã â è Þ 	 î � è áò é ß Þ ç õ é ê Þ è � ê æ ã é ß � Þ Þ á æ ì à æ ä á ó á æ Þ ß á � � � ó 	 ã ç é å á æ Þ é ñ � � � ß á ü á ß ß à ë ç â ã ÷ á æ ë é ä à ë â á é â ß à å è ã ä à ë ð é ê æ ì à ß ã á ç î � ß ß à æ â á õ á æ Þ ç ü é ßÝ à Þ ê ß ì à ø � � à æ û ý é ë ã ì à ø ó é ê ß Þ � ü ü ã ä á ß ä é ÷ á ß à ß á à ë ç é ç è à ß á ì ú ã Þ è ý à õ å ç è ã ß á � � � ü é ß Þ è á ç à õ á ß á à ç é æ ù ú ã Þ è à ì á ì ã ä à Þ á ì ò � � �õ à æ à â á ß à ÷ à ã ë à ð ë á á à ä è Þ ã õ á î� á Þ ú á á æ Þ è á ñ � � � ç ù ß á å ß á ç á æ Þ à Þ ã é æ Þ é ç é õ á å à æ 
 ý à õ å ç è ã ß á ü é ß ê õ ç ã ç ç è à ß á ì � Þ è á ò � � � Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á 
 á à ì á ß à Þ Þ á æ ì ç Þ è á � � ò ò �� á ë ã ÷ á ß ø Ý ê ð 
 � ß é ê å à æ ì � ò ó ó ý à Þ á ó ß ã õ á � é ß û ã æ â � ß é ê å é æ ð á è à ë ü é ü ñ � � � õ à æ à â á ß ç î ï é ß ò � � � ù Þ è á Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á 
 á à ì á ß à Þ Þ á æ ì çå à æ 
 ý à õ å ç è ã ß á õ á á Þ ã æ â ç � 
 ã à ã ç é æ à æ ì � ã ÷ á ß ç ã é æ Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á � ý 
 � Ý 	 ù ó é æ ä é ß ì à Þ é æ ó è ã ë ì ß á æ ã æ ó ê ç Þ é ì ø ù � � � Ý ó é æ Þ ß à ä Þ ö á ÷ ã á úõ á á Þ ã æ â ç à ç ú á ë ë à ç � � � � á á Þ ã æ â ç à æ ì Þ è á � å á ß à Þ ã é æ à ë � þ � â ß é ê å î ï é ß ß á ç Þ é ß à Þ ã ÷ á � ê ç Þ ã ä á � ö � 	 ù à å à æ 
 ý à õ å ç è ã ß á å ß à ä Þ ã Þ ã é æ á ßæ á Þ ú é ß û è à ç ð á á æ ì á ÷ á ë é å á ì à æ ì ã ç à Þ Þ á æ ì á ì ð ø ò � � � ö � ç Þ à ü ü î� é ß á ë é ä à ë ë ø ù Þ è á � � � ã ç ë ã æ û á ì Þ é ó è ã ë ì ß á æ ô ç Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á ç Ý á æ ã é ß � à æ à â á õ á æ Þ � á à õ � Ý � � 	 ÷ ã à Þ è á ý á à ì é ü ý à ß õ à æ ì þ ÿ å ë é ã Þ à Þ ã é æ ù î� è á � � � Ý á ß ÷ ã ä á 
 á à ì á ß à Þ Þ á æ ì ç ß á â ê ë à ß ô � ë ë � à æ à â á ß ç ô � á á Þ ã æ â ç ù à æ ì ß á å é ß Þ ç Þ é Ý � � é æ à � õ é æ Þ è ë ø ð à ç ã ç î � æ à æ æ ê à ë ß á å é ß Þ ã çà ë ç é ç ê ð õ ã Þ Þ á ì Þ é Þ è á ò é ß Þ ç õ é ê Þ è Ý à ü á â ê à ß ì ã æ â ó è ã ë ì ß á æ ô ç � é à ß ì î � � � � á à õ 
 á à ì á ß ç à ß á ë ã æ û á ì Þ é ë é ä à ë ü é ß ê õ ç ù à æ ì à Þ Þ á æ ì ó é ê ß Þ� ç á ß � ß é ê å ç ü é ß Þ è á à ß á à é æ à õ ã æ ã õ ê õ à æ æ ê à ë ð à ç ã ç î

Page 78



�

� � � � � � �  � ! " # � $ % " # & � ' � ( ) * + , * - . / � 0 1 � � # " � 2 ' $ 3 � ' 4 '  $ 5 6 7 . 8 5 9:  � 5 6 0  2 � ; $ 6 � ' $ 6 5 < = > ? @ A B = C D
· E F G H > I = C J = H = H = ? K L A B M N O K I P > Q =H = L = B I @ R A B L H = > C = ? S
· T U V F W X > B Y < > Z [ C P A H = \ ] > B > M = H C > H =J ^ H _ A B M J A I P < > Z [ C P A H = X ^ @ A L = L ^ @ @ = > M K = C` a b c d e f g ` h c d i a f j e k f e h f l g e g h c d m b `[ @ > B C A B [ @ > L = I ^ > ? ? H = C C I P = Z S

n ^ H _ L ^ Z [ @ = I = ? A B I P A C > H = > o p q r s q � D
· t B > @ R C A C ^ u I P = E F G L ^ P ^ H I N I ^ A ? = B I A u R _ = R I H = B ? C > B ? H = L ^ Z Z = B ? > I A ^ B C I ^ C K [ [ ^ H I^ B M ^ A B M H = ? K L I A ^ B W J P A L P J A @ @ O = H = [ = > I = ? A B o p q � s o p \
· v = Q = @ ^ [ Z = B I ^ u Z ^ B A I ^ H A B M Z = > C K H = C u ^ H X U V F F H A > M = X > B = @
· w Z [ @ = Z = B I > I A ^ B ^ u V K I ^ u x ^ K H I v A C [ ^ C > @ W V V x v \ x @ A B A L C N > B ? > C C ^ L A > I = ?[ H ^ L = C C = C N u ^ @ @ ^ J A B M H = L ^ Z Z = B ? > I A ^ B C Z > ? = A B I P = < ] w X F P = Z > I A L ^ B V V x v S
· w B L H = > C = ? @ A B _ C J A I P G > H @ R < = @ [ > B ? X H = Q = B I A ^ B C = H Q A L = C N A B L @ K ? A B M ? = Q = @ ^ [ Z = B I^ u > y z A C _ ^ u t B I A { ^ L A > @ | = P > Q A ^ K H > B ? V u u = B ? A B M y W z t { | V \ C L H = = B A B M I ^ ^ @ S
· z = Q A = J ^ u U ^ K I P x ^ Z Z K B A I R z = C ^ @ K I A ^ B W U x z \ ? = @ A Q = H R N A B L @ K ? A B M B = J C R C I = Z Cu ^ H C L H = = B A B M > B ? C A M B [ ^ C I A B M S

n ^ H _ [ @ > B B = ? ^ H o p q r s q � D
· G B P > B L = y = > H @ R A ? = B I A u A L > I A ^ B y > L H ^ C C I P =X U V F [ > H I B = H C P A [ ^ u I P ^ C = > I H A C _ ^ ua } } e c d l c ~ � e � ~ � b g e a } � k � � � � �
· w B L H = > C = @ A B _ C J A I P G > H @ R < = @ [ > B ?X H = Q = B I A ^ B > B ? I P A H ? C = L I ^ H I ^ C K [ [ ^ H I[ H = Q = B I A ^ B > B ? ? A Q = H C A ^ B S
· x ^ B I A B K = I ^ ? = Q = @ ^ [ U V F A B I = H Q = B I A ^ B C
· � a f � � l ` � m h c � � h c ` g � � � j a � � e h ~ b e g ` aY w B L H = > C = C L H K I A B R ^ u R ^ K I P V V x vY z = ? K L = E F G H > I = CY G C I > O @ A C P [ ^ A B I Y ^ u Y > H H = C I ? A Q = H C A ^ BC L P = Z = W > C H = � K A H = ? O R � > I A ^ B > @{ I > B ? > H ? C o p q � \

Page 79



� �

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡
· ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¥ £ ¦ § ¨ ¦ © ª « ¬ £ ­ ® « ¯ £ ° ¤ ¦ ¬ ¨ ¦ ± £ § ¬ ¤ª ¨ ­ £ ²
· ³ ¤ ª ´ ± ¦ § £ ª ¬ « ´ £ ¦ ¨ ¦ µ � � ¶ · � ¸ ¹ ¨ º º ¦ ¤ ¬» ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Ç È Æ Ä ½ Ç Â Ä Â É Â Ê Ë

Ì � Í Î � � Ï Ð � � Ñ � � � � Ñ Ò �   � Í � � Ó Ô Õ Ö × Õ Ø Ù
· Ú £ ­ ¬ ¨ ¦ © ¤ ¥ ¬ ® £ ª £ ¤ ¥ ¥ £ ¦ § ¨ ¦ © ¬ ª « ° ´ ¨ ¦ © ¬ ¤ ¤ º ¬ ¤ ­ ± Û Û ¤ ª ¬ ¨ ¬ ­ ± ­ £ ²
· Ü ¦ « º Ý ­ ¨ ­ ¤ ¥ ª £ ¤ ¥ ¥ £ ¦ § ¨ ¦ © ª « ¬ £ ­ ¬ ¤ ¨ § £ ¦ ¬ ¨ ¥ Ý ´ £ Ý ¬ ª £ ¦ § ­ « ¦ § ª £ ° ¤ Þ Þ £ ¦ § « ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ ­ ¬ ¤ ­ ± Û Û ¤ ª ¬¤ ¦ © ¤ ¨ ¦ © ª £ § ± ° ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ « ¦ § § £ ¯ £ º ¤ Û Þ £ ¦ ¬ ¤ ¥ ß à « ­ £ º ¤ « § á ª ¤ ¥ ¨ º £ ß ¬ ¤ ¨ ¦ ¥ ¤ ª Þ ­ £ ª ¯ ¨ ° £ § £ º ¨ ¯ £ ª Ý ²
· â Æ À ½ Ç Æ É É ¿ ã Ê ½ ä Ä ¼ Æ å æ ¿ ½ æ ¿ Ä Å ç ½ È ã Ê å Æ æ » ½ ã è å ç å é ê Ã ¼ Æ À Æ è ¾ ¼ ¿ Ã ¼ ¾ ¿ É É ë Æ ½ ã Ê ½ ¿ ã Ê ¿ ãµ � � ¸ · µ � ì « ¦ § ª £ ¦ £ ¹ £ § ¥ ¤ ° ± ­ ¤ ¦ Ü ­ ­ £ ­ ­ Þ £ ¦ ¬ í á º « ¦ ¦ ¨ ¦ © í î ¦ ¬ £ ª ¯ £ ¦ ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ « ¦ § ¢ £ ¯ ¨ £ ¹ ²
· ï ¤ ° ± ­ ­ £ § ¹ ¤ ª ´ ¬ ¤ ª £ § ± ° £ ° ª ¨ Þ ¨ ¦ « º ¨ ­ « ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ ¤ ¥ ð ¤ ¤ ´ £ § Ü ¥ ¬ £ ª à ® ¨ º § ª £ ¦ ²
· ñ £ ¯ £ º ¤ Û Þ £ ¦ ¬ ¤ ¥ « ª « ¦ © £ ¤ ¥ ¨ ¦ ¬ £ ª ¯ £ ¦ ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ Û ª ¤ © ª « Þ Þ £ ­ í ò « ­ £ § ¤ ¦ £ ¥ ¥ £ ° ¬ ¨ ¯ £ Û ª « ° ¬ ¨ ° £Û ª ¨ ¦ ° ¨ Û º £ ­ « ¦ § © ¤ ¤ § Û ª « ° ¬ ¨ ° £ £ ó « Þ Û º £ ­ í « ¦ § ª £ ¯ ¨ £ ¹ ¤ ¥ ô Ü à § £ º ¨ ¯ £ ª Ý ²
· ñ £ ¯ £ º ¤ Û Þ £ ¦ ¬ ¤ ¥ õ £ ª ¯ ¨ ° £ ö ­ £ ª ï £ £ § ò « ° ´ « ¦ § ÷ ± « º ¨ ¬ Ý Ü ­ ­ ± ª « ¦ ° £ Þ £ ° ® « ¦ ¨ ­ Þ ­

Ì � Í Î Ð � � � � � � � Í Ó Ô Õ Ø × Ó Ô ¡
· ø ¦ ® « ¦ ° £ ° « Û « ° ¨ ¬ Ý ¥ ¤ ª « ¦ « º Ý ­ ¨ ­ ¹ ¨ ¬ ® ¨ ¦£ ó ¨ ­ ¬ ¨ ¦ © ª £ ­ ¤ ± ª ° £ ¬ ¤ ¨ ¦ ¥ ¤ ª Þ Û « ª ¬ ¦ £ ª ­ ® ¨ ÛÛ º « ¦ ¦ ¨ ¦ © ²
· ù ½ ã ¿ Ä ½ æ ú ½ ä ä Æ ã Ã Æ Ä ½ ½ È Ä Ã ½ À Æ ú Ä ¿ À Æ É ¿ ã Æ » » Ë
· à ¤ ¦ ¬ ¨ ¦ ± £ û µ Ü § £ º ¨ ¯ £ ª Ý « ¦ § § £ ¯ £ º ¤ Û­ ¨ Þ ¨ º « ª ¥ ¤ ª ° ± ­ ¬ ¤ § Ý ° « ­ £ ­ « ¦ § ð Ü à « ¦ §ü ¥ ¥ £ ¦ § ¨ ¦ © ý ¤ ¨ ¦ ¬ þ ¹ ¤ ª ´ ¨ ¦ © ¹ ¨ ¬ ® á ¤ º ¨ ° £ « ¦ §õ ¤ ° ¨ « º à « ª £ ²
· ø ¦ ® « ¦ ° £ « ¦ § £ ¯ « º ± « ¬ £ á ª ¨ ¤ ª ¨ ¬ Ý û ¤ ± ¦ ©å Æ æ » ½ ã » Ã ¼ Æ À Æ Ë
· ø Þ ò £ § Û £ ª ¥ ¤ ª Þ « ¦ ° £ « ¦ § ÷ Ü ¥ ª « Þ £ ¹ ¤ ª ´ ­¬ ¤ ¨ Þ Û ª ¤ ¯ £ ¬ ¨ Þ £ º ¨ ¦ £ ­ ­ « ¦ § ÿ ± « º ¨ ¬ Ý ¤ ¥« ­ ­ £ ­ ­ Þ £ ¦ ¬ í Û º « ¦ ¦ ¨ ¦ © « ¦ § § £ º ¨ ¯ £ ª Ý ²
· ø ¦ ­ ± ª £ ­ £ ª ¯ ¨ ° £ § £ º ¨ ¯ £ ª Ý ¨ ­ ¨ ¦ ¥ ¤ ª Þ £ § « ¦ §¨ ¦ ¥ º ± £ ¦ ° £ § ò Ý ¥ £ £ § ò « ° ´ « ¦ § £ ¯ « º ± « ¬ ¨ ¤ ¦ ²

Page 80



� �

� � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 � 
 � � � � �

� � � � � 
 
 � 
 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � 
 �
· � � � � � �  � ! � " # $ % � & � � ' �  � � � � � �  ( ( #) � "  � � " � * � ) + , � - . � / 0
· 1 ' % ( # � 2 � 3 2 ( ( & � ) � 4 � % ! � " ! � �  4 4 � ) !5 6 7 8 9 : 7 7 : ; 6 < 8 = > ? @

A � � B � � � C � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � D E F G H F I �
· 1 ' % ( # � 2 � � � �  � ! � " # ) % ! � � ! � 2 " � ' ! 2 � # J � # ! ) � ' " � % ' " ) � � � K K � ' " % ! 2 � ' � ! � �  4 4 � ) !� ' L � 2 ' L ) � "  � ! 2 � ' M % ' " % " " 2 ! 2 � ' % ( � N 4 ( � ) % ! 2 � ' � � 2 ' � ) � % � � 2 ' ) � K % ' " � � � ! � O 0
· P % 2 ' ! % 2 ' � " " � ( 2 * � ) # � � * 2 � 2 ! � % ' " � � ' ! % � ! � � � ) ) � ( � * % ' ! � % � � � 0
· Q : R > ; : S S = ? T > 5 8 9 : U 7 = > 7 = 8 V W > 6 ? T U : 7 X > ? Y U W U Z [ < 9 : R : Y \ 9 = < 9 \ = S S ] : > ? T > = ? T = ?+ , � / . + , O % ' " ) � ' � 3 � " � � �  � � ' 1 � � � � � K � ' ! ^ _ ( % ' ' 2 ' L ^ ` ' ! � ) * � ' ! 2 � ' % ' " a � * 2 � 3 0
· b � * � ( � 4 K � ' ! � � % ) % ' L � � � 2 ' ! � ) * � ' ! 2 � ' 4 ) � L ) % K K � � ^ & % � � " � ' � � � � � ! 2 * � 4 ) 2 ' � 2 4 ( � �
· ` ' ! ) � "  � ! 2 � ' � � % ' � 3 c ) � � � ! ! ( � K � ' ! � $ � � J ( 2 � ! c & % � � " � ' � � ' � ! )  � ! 2 * � ) � � � ! ! ( � K � ' !4 ) 2 ' � 2 4 ( � � 0

A � � B C � � � � � � � � D E F I H D E �
· a � * 2 � 3 a � 4 � ) ! d ) 2 ! 2 ' L % ' " e % ! � J � � 4 2 ' Le  2 " % ' � � ! � � ' $ % ' � � f  % ( 2 ! # � � _ g a �
· a � * 2 � 3 � % � $ �  � ! � " 2 % ( � � ' ! � ' � � � � )( � % ) ' 2 ' L 0
· b � * � ( � 4 4 % ) ! ' � ) � $ 2 4 % 4 4 ) � % � $ � � % ' "� ! ) % ! � L 2 � � ! � ^ 4 % ) ! 2 �  ( % ) ( # 2 ' ) � ( % ! 2 � ' ! �� � ) 2 �  � # �  ! $ * 2 � ( � ' � � M g h i O 0
· j N 4 ( � ) � ! $ � 2 ' � 2 " � ' � � � � g h i % ' "� N 4 ( � 2 ! % ! 2 � ' 3 2 ! $ 2 ' ! $ � h k l � � $ � ) ! ! �2 " � ' ! 2 � # K � % �  ) � � ) � f  2 ) � " ! � ) � "  � � 2 ! 0
· j ' $ % ' � � ) � � � ! ! ( � K � ' ! 4 ( % ' ' 2 ' L 4 ) � � � � � � �3 2 ! $ 4 % ) ! ' � ) � ^ & % � � " � ' � � ' � ! )  � ! 2 * �) � � � ! ! ( � K � ' ! 4 ) 2 ' � 2 4 ( � � % ' "  � � � � ! $ � ' � 3) � � � ! ! ( � K � ' ! � $ � � J ( 2 � ! 0

Page 81



m n

o p q r s t u v w u x r s y z x { t y | u x r s x } {~ � � t u v w u x � � y z x { �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � �� � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¢ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �£ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � ¥ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¦ � � � � � � � � ¡ � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � § � � � � � � � � � � ¨ � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � © � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � § � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � t u v w u x � � x } { �¢ � � � ª � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � « ¬ ­ ® � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � ¯ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �© � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � « ¬ ­ ° ± « ¬ � ² � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � © � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � � � � ¢ � � � � � � ³ � � � £ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �² � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � � � � � � ¡ ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � ¢ � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � « ¬ ­ ° ± « ¬ ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � © � � � � � ¢ � � � ª ´ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � ¢ � � � � � � � � « ¬ ­ ° � � � � � � � �

Page 82



¶ ·

¸ ¹ º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À Á ¾ Á Â Ã Ä Ã Å » Æ Ã Â Ç È É È » Ê ¼ ¾ ¾ Ë Ã Ç ¿ Á ¾ Ë Ì Á ¼ ¾ » Í Ã ¿ Á ¾ Í ¿ Î Ã Î Ã È ¼ Á Â Ã ¼ ÏÐ Ñ Ò Ó Ò Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù Ú Ò Û Ü Ô Ü Ý Þ ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â ã ä ã Ñ å Ò Ô â Õ Ü Ô æ ç Ü Ò Ô Ñ è Þ Õ Ü Ô è Õ é Þ é Þ ã Ò Ü Ý Þ Ò ã Ý Þ Ñ å æ Þ Ý Þ å Ô ê Ñ Ô æ Ñ å Ý Þ ß Ü è Ñ å ä ã å ß ë Õ Ý Ò æ Õ Ý Ô ì Ô Þ Ý é è Õ å Ô Ý Ñ í Ü Ô Ñ Õ å ÒÛ Ý Õ é Ò Õ é Þ Õ Û Ñ Ô Ò î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò ï ê æ Ñ è æ Ñ å æ Ñ í Ñ Ô Þ Û Û Þ è Ô Ñ á Þ ï à Õ å ä Ô Þ Ý é î à ã å å Ñ å ä ð ñ Ü ß ä Þ Ô ã Ý â î Ý Þ Ò Ò Ü Ý Þ Ò ã Ý Þ Þ ò î Þ Ý Ñ Þ å è Þ ß ã è Ý Õ Ò Ò Ô æ Þ î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò æ Ñ î ïÔ æ Õ Ü ä æ è Õ é é Ñ Ô é Þ å Ô Ý Þ é ã Ñ å Ò Ô Õ Þ å Ò Ü Ý Þ â Õ Ü Ô æ ç Ü Ò Ô Ñ è Þ Ò Þ Ý á Ñ è Þ Ò ã Ý Þ ã ß Þ ó Ü ã Ô Þ à â Ò Ü î î Õ Ý Ô Þ ß ã å ß ã î î Ý Õ î Ý Ñ ã Ô Þ à â Ý Þ Ò Õ Ü Ý è Þ ß ð ô å Ý Þ à ã Ô Ñ Õ å Ô ÕÖ × Ø Ù Ú Ò ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â ã ä ã Ñ å Ò Ô â Õ Ü Ô æ ç Ü Ò Ô Ñ è Þ Õ Ü Ô è Õ é Þ é Þ ã Ò Ü Ý Þ Ò ï Ó Þ â Ñ ß Þ å Ô Ñ Û Ñ Þ ß Ý Ñ Ò Ó Ò õ ã å ß ã è Ô Ñ Õ å Ò Ñ å Ô Þ å ß Þ ß Ô Õ é Ñ Ô Ñ ä ã Ô Þ ö ã Ý Þ ã Ò Û Õ à à Õ ê Ò ÷À » Â ¼ ¾ ø » Î Ãù Ê ¾ Â È Ê ¾ ¼ ú Ã Ç º » ¼ ½ ¼ û » ¾ » É È ¾ » ¿ Ê ü ý Ê ¾ Ã Ê þ Ã þ ÿ Í ¾ » ¿ Ê ¼� æ ã å ä Þ Ò Õ Ü Ô Ò Ñ ß Þ Ô æ Þ Ò Þ Ý á Ñ è Þ õ Þ ð ä ð Ö Õ à Ñ è Þ î Ý ã è Ô Ñ è Þ Õ ÝÝ Þ ß Ü è Ô Ñ Õ å Õ Û î Ý Þ á Þ å Ô Ñ Õ å Ò Þ Ý á Ñ è Þ Ò ö Ñ é î ã è Ô Ñ å ä Õ å � Ù �Ý ã Ô Þ Ò ð� Þ Ý Ñ Õ Ü Ò å Þ Ò Ò Õ Û Õ Û Û Þ å ß Ñ å ä ã å ß ë Õ Ý Õ Û Û Þ å è Þ ß Þ å Ñ ã àÝ Þ ß Ü è Ñ å ä Õ î î Õ Ý Ô Ü å Ñ Ô â Û Õ Ý à Õ ê Þ Ý à Þ á Þ à ß Ñ Ò î Õ Ò ã à Ò ð � Õ å Ô Ñ å Ü Þ ß Þ ò î à Õ Ý ã Ô Ñ Õ å ê Ñ Ô æ î ã å ì � ã é î Ò æ Ñ Ý Þ × Ø Ù à Þ ã ß Þ Ý Òã å ß � Õ å Ò Ô ã í Ü à ã Ý â è Õ à à Þ ã ä Ü Þ Ò ð� Ô Ý Þ å ä Ô æ Þ å ê Õ Ý Ó í â ê Ñ ß Þ Ý î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò õ Þ ð ä ð � ã Ý à â � Þ à î ã å ßÖ Ý Þ á Þ å Ô Ñ Õ å ö Ô Õ Ñ ß Þ å Ô Ñ Û â ã å ß Ý Þ ß Ü è Þ è Ý Ñ é Ñ å Õ ä Þ å Ñ è å Þ Þ ß ã ÔÔ æ Þ Þ ã Ý à Ñ Þ Ò Ô Õ î î Õ Ý Ô Ü å Ñ Ô â ã å ß Ò Õ à Ñ è Ñ Ô Õ Ý Ò Ý Þ ÷ å Õ è Õ é é Þ å ÔÑ å Ô Þ Ý á Ñ Þ ê Ò ðº Ã ¿ � � Ã Ê þ » Ê É ú Ã Ç º » ¼ ½ ¼ û » ¾ » É È ¾ » ¿ Ê ü ý Ê ¾ Ã Ê þ Ã þ ÿ Í ¾ » ¿ Ê ¼Ð Þ ß Ü è Ñ å ä î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò æ Ñ î Ý Þ Ò Õ Ü Ý è Þ Ý Þ Ò Ü à Ô Ñ å ä Ñ å Ü å é Þ Ôå Þ Þ ß ã å ß ë Õ Ý ã í Ñ à Ñ Ô â Ô Õ Ý Þ Ò î Õ å ß ðÙ Ñ é Þ à Ñ å Þ Ò Ò ã å ß ó Ü ã à Ñ Ô â Õ Û ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â õ Ñ å è à Ü ß Ñ å äÞ å ä ã ä Þ é Þ å Ô Ò Ô Ý ã Ô Þ ä Ñ Þ Ò ö Ñ å æ Ñ í Ñ Ô Ñ å ä ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â Õ ÛÞ Û Û Þ è Ô Ñ á Þ Ñ å Ô Þ Ý á Þ å Ô Ñ Õ å Ò ð � Õ å Ô Ñ å Ü Þ ß î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò æ Ñ î ê Õ Ý Ó Ñ å ä ã å ß Ò Õ Ü Ý è Ñ å ä Õ Ûã à Ô Þ Ý å ã Ô Ñ á Þ ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â õ Þ ð ä ð á Õ à Ü å Ô ã Ý â Ò Þ è Ô Õ Ý ö ï î ã Ý Ô Ñ è Ü à ã Ý à â Ñ åÝ Þ à ã Ô Ñ Õ å Ô Õ Ý Ñ Ò Ó Õ Û Þ ò î à Õ Ñ Ô ã Ô Ñ Õ å ð� Õ è Ü Ò Õ å ß Þ à Ñ á Þ Ý â Õ Û é ã å ã ä Þ é Þ å Ô Õ á Þ Ý Ò Ñ ä æ Ô ã å ß ó Ü ã à Ñ Ô âã Ò Ò Ü Ý ã å è Þ Û Ý ã é Þ ê Õ Ý Ó Ò ê Ñ Ô æ Ñ å × Ø Ù ï ã Ò ê Þ à à Õ Û Û Þ å è Þ Ô ÕÕ Ü Ô è Õ é Þ Ô Ñ é Þ à Ñ å Þ Ò Ò Ñ å è Õ å ç Ü å è Ô Ñ Õ å ê Ñ Ô æ î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò ð� ¼ Ã ¿ �� Á ¼ ¾ ¿ þ Ç ú Ã Ç º » ¼ ½ ¼ û » ¾ » É È ¾ » ¿ Ê ü ý Ê ¾ Ã Ê þ Ã þ ÿ Í ¾ » ¿ Ê ¼ô å è Ý Þ ã Ò Þ Ñ å è Ü Ò Ô Õ ß Ñ ã à Ò Þ å Ô Þ å è Ñ å ä ß Ü Þ Ô Õ Ý Þ î Þ ã ÔÕ Û Û Þ å ß Ñ å ä ï ã å ß ë Õ Ý Ò Þ Ý Ñ Õ Ü Ò â Õ Ü Ô æ á Ñ Õ à Þ å è Þ ðÐ Þ Ò Þ Ô Ô à Þ é Þ å Ô Ò Ô Ý ã Ô Þ ä Ñ Þ Ò Ñ é î ã è Ô Þ ß í â Þ ò Ô Þ Ý å ã à Û ã è Ô Õ Ý Ò � Õ å Ô Ñ å Ü Þ ß î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò æ Ñ î ê Õ Ý Ó Ñ å ä ã å ß ß Þ á Þ à Õ î é Þ å Ô Õ ÛÒ Ô Ý ã Ô Þ ä Ñ Þ Ò õ Þ ð ä ð Ö × Ö ö ã å ß Ñ å Ô Þ Ý á Þ å Ô Ñ Õ å Ò õ Þ ð ä ð � å Ñ Û Þ� Ý Ñ é Þ 	 ê ã Ý Þ å Þ Ò Ò ö	 ê ã Ý Þ å Þ Ò Ò ã å ß ß Þ á Þ à Õ î é Þ å Ô Õ Û è Õ å Ò Ô Ý Ü è Ô Ñ á ÞÝ Þ Ò Þ Ô Ô à Þ é Þ å Ô ã è Ý Õ Ò Ò Ô æ Þ î ã Ý Ô å Þ Ý Ò æ Ñ î ð

Page 83




 �

� 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �  ! " # � $ � % & ' � ( � � & � & � ' $ ) * & �  & ' �  $ +  & , ) � $ ' % ' ) - % � & , & $ � ) & � $ . � � � % � $ � / � � � � � � � � �  + & � 0 + � � ' . & , 1 % ' )  % � 2 $ 3 � ' � �$ � 2 $ ) & � � $ , / * & �  & ' �  $ 4 % � � % ' ) 5 6 ( , � & � % � & � ' 2 � % ' .  & ' , & 3  � � / �  $ � 7 $ � , % ( 2 $ � * $ $ ' � / / $ ' ) & ' 3 % ' ) $ 6 ( , � & � % � & � ' 8 - � , , � * & ' 3 % � $ , / 9% � � $ � � � $ ' � & ' $ % � , 0 : ; 
 < = 
 > 1 �  $ ! " #  % � � � . . $ � � / � , , 0 ) $ , & 7 $ � $ ) % ? $ � 7 & . $ @ $ 7 $ , � ( � $ ' � � , % ' � � $ '  % ' . $ % ' ) & � ( � � 7 $ & � � ) $ , & 7 $ � 0� 7 $ � �  $ ( % � � 
 : � � ' �  � 8 " ' 3 � & ' 3 A % ' ) ' $ * B % . � & � ' � * & , , 2 $ & ' . � � ( � � % � $ ) * & �  & ' ? � � % � $ 3 & . % ' ) " ( $ � % � & � ' % , � , % ' � / � � : ; 
 > = : ; 1$ ' % 2 , & ' 3 �  $ � � � 2 $ & ' . � � ( � � % � $ ) * & �  & ' C 2 � � & ' $ � � % � � � � % , C % ' ) . � ' � � , & ) % � $ � � $ ( � � % D $ ' � � ) % � $ 8 � $ � / � � � % ' . $ � $ ( � � � & ' 3  % � % , � �2 $ $ ' � $ 7 & � $ ) 1 % ' ) % ' % , 0 � & � � ' D $ 0 % � $ % � � ' ) $ � � % D $ ' 1 � � $ ' � � � $ �  $ , � . % , � % � � ' $ � �  & ( ! " # E � % � ) & � & ' / � � � $ ) 2 0 ( � � ( $ � $ 7 % , � % � & � '� / , � . % , & � � � $ � 1 % ' ) � � 2 � $ F � $ ' � � $ . � � � $ ' ) % � & � ' � 8#  & � ? � � % � $ 3 & . ! � � �  G � � � & . $ � , % ' * & , , ( � � 7 & ) $ % ' � 7 $ � 9 % � .  & ' 3 / � % � $ * � � D � ' ) $ � *  & .  �  % � ( , % ' . % ' 2 $ ) $ , & 7 $ � $ ) 1 % ' ) . , $ % � , 0 � � � , & ' $ � $ % ) , & ' $ % . � & 7 & � & $ � � � 2 $ . � � ( , $ � $ ) � 7 $ � : ; 
 > = : ; 8 H � * & , , 2 $ � � ( ( � � � $ ) 2 0 % ' " ( $ � % � & � ' % , # $ % � � , % ' 1 � � . � 7 $ � �  $ � % � $ ( $ � & � ) 8� � � 3 � $ � � % 3 % & ' � � � � � . � � $ � $ % � � � $ � * & , , 2 $ � � 2 I $ . � � � & ' � $ � ' % , � $ 7 & $ * & ' @ $ . $ � 2 $ � : ; 
 > 1 * & �  / � , , 0 $ % � � ( ) % � $ � ( � � 7 & ) $ ) 7 & % � ! " # C �? � � % � $ 3 & . ! � � �  G � � � & . $ � , % ' � � 2 $ � � 2 � & � � $ ) / � � : ; : ; = : 
 8

Page 84



J K

L M N O P Q R P S T U V W T X W P Y Y Z X Z R [ Y \ ] ^ _ ` ] W R T W R \ R P Y a M L b c L d e f \ W Z \ P X R g ^ T h \ i j h Y \ R g P ] k Z [_ h \ g T l P f P W Q R g P m g \ R Q R \ n ` Z W X P \ c f h g g P Y Yo P Z Y h W P p T l l P [ \ Z W n T [ V W T X W P Y Yq r s t u v w x t y v z { t y v z| y w v } ~ � w � u � } ~ � w � u �t � � � u � � } � � t � � v } � � � � �� } v z } � u � w t y u ~ �� � � } � � � � � � � ~ u t w w v z �� � u v � � u w z } � � � � u � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � ¡ ¢ £ ¤¥ ¦ ¡ ¤ § � � � � � �  ¨ � � � � � � � � � � � � � © ª ¨ «¬ � � � � � ­ � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � ¤� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ® � � �   ª ¨ « � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� © © � � � � � � � ® � � � � � �¬ � � � � � � � ¯ ° ± ² ­ ± ³   ¥ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ´ ¢ ¡ µ � � � ´ ¡ ¡ ¶ � � · � � �£ ¸ � � � � � � � � � � ¢ � � � � � � �  ´ ª ¨ « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � �¯ ° ± ² ­ ± ³   ¦ � � � � � � � © � � � � � � � � ­ � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � · � � � � � � � �¨ � � � ¬ � � ¯ ° ± ² ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¹ � � � � � ® ¯ ° ± ³ � � � � © � � · ¬ � � � � �� � � � � � � � © � � ¯ ° ± ³ ­ ¯ °  � º ª ¨ « � · ¬ � � � � � � � � � � �» ¶ � � · � � � £ ¸ � � � � � � � � � � »¬ � � � � � � © ¡ ¼ ½ ¢ � � � � � � � ª ¨ « � � � � � � � � �» � � � � � � � � � · »� � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � ® � � � � ® � � � �   ¥ � � � � � · ¬ � � � � � � � ¢ � � � � � � ¥ � � � � � � � � � �   ¨ � � � � � � � � � � � ® ¤� � � � � � · � � � � © � � � � � © ¡ ¢ £ � ¸ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ ¡ £ ¬ ® � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¹ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ® � ©� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¾ �   �   � � � �£ � � � � © ¡ � � � � � � � � � � º  ¬ º ¿ � � � � � © ª ¨ «À � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �¾ � � � � � � � � � ¿ ¹ � � � ¹ ¦ ¡ ºÁ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Â� � � � © � � � � � � · � � � � Á� � � � � � � © � � � � � � � � � � � � � ª ¨ « � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � · · � � � � © � � � �� � � � ­ � � � � � � �� © © � � � � � � � � � © � � � � ©ª ¨ « � � � � � � ¦ � � � ® � � � � � · � � � � � � © � � ½ « £ ­ ¿ � � © © � � � � � � ­ ¡ � � � � � ® ­ £ � � � � � � � �� � � ¥ ¦ ¡   ¡ � � � � � � � ´ � � © � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � © Ã � � � � � � � ®´ � � © � � · � � � � ¿ � � � � �   ¿ � � � � © ¦ � � � ¢ � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � � �¨ © © � � � � � � ¾ ¿ ¦ ¢ µ ¨ º � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¹ ¦ ¡ � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¿ � � � � � © � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � · · � � � � � � � � � � �   ¢ ¦ ¥ « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �   ¿ � � � � � � � � © � � � � © � � � � � © � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � · � � � �� � � � � � © � � �  � º ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � ® � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � ©� � � � � � ® � � �� � � � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � ® � · � � � � � � � � � � � © � � · � � � � � � � � � � � � Ä ¿ � © � � � � � � � � �« � � � � � � � Ä � � � � � � © � � � � � Å � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¿ � � �¦ � � � � � · � � � � � � § � � � � � · � � � � � � � � �   Ã � � � � � ® ¦ � � � � � � � �· � � � � � � � · � � � � � � � � � � � � · � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � � � � � � ¬ �� · � � � · � � � � � � � � � � � ¯ ° ± ³ ­ ¯ °  

Page 85



Æ Ç

È É Ê Ë Ì Í Î Ï Î Ð Ñ Ò Ë Î Ó Ë Ê Ò Ñ Ò Ê Ô Õ Ö Ð × Î Ê Ø Ï É Ë Ë Î Ù ÙÚ Î Ö Ù É Ð Î Û Ì Í Í Î Ü Ê Ö Ð Ô Ì Ü Ý Ð Ì × Ð Î Ù ÙÞ ß à á à â ã ä å æ ç ß å è é ê ë â éì ä í î ï å ß ð ñ ã ò ó å ó ß ô õ ô î è è í ä ö ô î ô ö ã ó ÷ ã ï å ßø ù ã ÷ á ßú û ü ý þ ÿ ý � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	� � � � ý � ÿ � 
 � þ � ÿ � � 
� � 
 � 	 	 � 	 � � ÿ � � �� � � � � � � � � þ þ � � � � ì � ß ä � í ä ò ã ÷ ø ßã ÷ ð � � ñ ä ã ò ß � í ä � ö í ó ð ß ÷ ö ó � æ� ß æ ã ä ß ã ô ã ÷ ð ö ä ß ÷ ð ô ö í ó ÷ � í ä òô ß ä � ó ø ß ð ß å ó � ß ä æ ã ÷ ðø í ÷ ö ó ÷ î í î ô ð ß � ß å í è ò ß ÷ ö �ß ÷ ô î ä ó ÷ á ä í å ß ô ã ÷ ðä ß ô è í ÷ ô ó ï ó å ó ö ó ß ô � ó ö ù ó ÷ ö ù ó ô ã ä ßî ÷ ð ß ä ô ö í í ð ã ÷ ð ø í ÷ ô ó ô ö ß ÷ ö å æã è è å ó ß ð à
� ð ù ß ä ß ÷ ø ß ö í � � ìë ß ä � ó ø ß ß � ß å í è ò ß ÷ ö � å ã ÷ë ö ä ß ÷ á ö ù ß ÷ ß ðè ß ä � í ä ò ã ÷ ø ß� ä ã ò ß � í ä � ó ÷ è å ã ø ßö í ó ÷ � í ä ò ð ß ø ó ô ó í ÷ò ã � ó ÷ á ï æ � � ì! í ã ä ð à

� ß ä � í ä ò ã ÷ ø ß ñ ä ã ò ß � í ä � ß ÷ ù ã ÷ ø ß ð ã ÷ ð ß " è ã ÷ ð ß ð � ó ã� î ã ä ö ß ä å æ # ß è í ä ö ö í ! í ã ä ð à ë ß ä � ó ø ß  ß � ß å í è ò ß ÷ ö � å ã ÷ó ò è å ß ò ß ÷ ö ß ð ã ÷ ð ò ß ã ô î ä ß ð é ã å í ÷ á ô ó ð ß ë ö ä ã ö ß á ó ø ã ÷ ð� è ß ä ã ö ó í ÷ ã å � å ã ÷ ô à � ä í á ä ß ô ô ò ã è è ß ð ã ö $ î ã ä ö ß ä å æ ! í ã ä ðò ß ß ö ó ÷ á ô é ã ÷ ð ó ÷ % ù í î ô ß � í ä � ô ù í è ô � ó ö ù ô ö ã � � àì ó ò ß å ó ÷ ß ô ô ö ä ã ø � ß ä ö ä ó ã å å ß ð ã ÷ ð ä ß � ó ô ß ð � í ä î ô ß � ó ö ù ó ÷ ö ß ã ò à& ÷ ö ß ä % � � ì # ß � ó ß � ø í ò è å ß ö ß ð � ó ö ù ë í î ö ù ã ò è ö í ÷ � � ë ó ÷� ø ö í ï ß ä ' ( ) * ã ÷ ð & ÷ ö ß ä ÷ ã å � î ð ó ö ó ÷ + ã ä ø ù , � è ä ó å ' ( ) - à ì ß ã ò� � ã æ  ã æ ù ß å ð ) ( à ( . à ) - ö í ï î ó å ð í ÷ � í ä � ð í ÷ ß ö í ð ã ö ß ã ÷ ð ô ß öí î ö ø å ß ã ä ã ø ø í î ÷ ö ã ï ó å ó ö ó ß ô á í ó ÷ á � í ä � ã ä ð à / ß � $ î ã å ó ö æ ã ô ô î ä ã ÷ ø ßò ß ø ù ã ÷ ó ô ò ô ð ß � ß å í è ß ð ã ÷ ð å ã î ÷ ø ù ß ð ã ö � � ã æ  ã æ àã õ â ÷ á ã á ß ò ß ÷ ö ã ÷ ð ß � ã å î ã ö ó í ÷ò ß ø ù ã ÷ ó ô ò ô ó ÷ è å ã ø ß ö í ó ÷ � í ä òô ß ä � ó ø ß ð ß å ó � ß ä æ + ß ø ù ã ÷ ó ô ò ô ó ÷è å ã ø ß ã ÷ ð è ä í %ã ø ö ó � ß å æ ß � ã å î ã ö ß ðÞ ó ÷ ø å î ð ó ÷ á ã ÷ ÷ î ã åä ß è í ä ö ö í � � ì! í ã ä ð õ â ÷ á ã á ß Þ � í ô ö % ! ä ß ã ø ù õ � ä í á ä ã ò ò ß ð ß � ß å í è ß ð à â ÷ á ã á ß ò ß ÷ öò ß ø ù ã ÷ ó ô ò ô ä ß � ó ß � ß ð � ó ã ë � 0 ì è ä ã ø ö ó ö ó í ÷ ß ä ë ß è ö ß ò ï ß ä ' ( ) * %+ ã ä ø ù ' ( ) - à / ß � â ÷ á ã á ß ò ß ÷ ö é â ÷ ã ï å ó ÷ á ê í ò è å ó ã ÷ ø ß ã ÷ ðâ ÷ � í ä ø ß ò ß ÷ ö � í å ó ø æ ó ô ô î ß ð � è ä ó å ' ( ) - àë ß ä � ó ø ß 1 ô ß ä ñ ß ß ð ï ã ø � ë ö ä ã ö ß á æ å ã î ÷ ø ù ß ð ñ ß ï ä î ã ä æ ' ( ) - � ö íï ß ß " è ã ÷ ð ß ð ó ÷ ' ( ) - , ' ( àï õ ë ö ä ß ÷ á ö ù ß ÷ ß ð � î ã å ó ö æ� ô ô î ä ã ÷ ø ß è ä í ø ß ô ô ß ô ó ÷ è å ã ø ß à � � ñ ä ã ò ß � í ä � ó ÷è å ã ø ß é ó ÷ � í ä ò ó ÷ áô ß ä � ó ø ß ð ß å ó � ß ä æã ÷ ð ð ß ò í ÷ ô ö ä ã ö ó ÷ áá í í ð è ä ã ø ö ó ø ß ó ô ó ÷è å ã ø ß â " ó ô ö ó ÷ á � � ò ß ã ô î ä ß ô � ß ä ß ä ß � ó ß � ß ð ' ( ) * , ) - à / ß � � � ö í í å ô� ß ä ß ö ä ó ã å å ß ð ð î ä ó ÷ á & ÷ ö ß ä % � � ì # ß � ó ß � ó ÷ � ø ö í ï ß ä ' ( ) * ã ÷ ðù ã � ß ï ß ß ÷ ß ÷ ù ã ÷ ø ß ð é ã å í ÷ á ô ó ð ß ã ä ã ÷ á ß í � è ä ã ø ö ó ö ó í ÷ ß äø ù ß ø � å ó ô ö ô � ù ó ø ù � ó å å ô î è è í ä ö ð ß � ß å í è ò ß ÷ ö í � ä ß $ î ó ä ß ð è ä ã ø ö ó ø ß à2 í ó ÷ ö ã î ð ó ö ô � ó ö ù ê ù ó å ð ä ß ÷ 3 ô ë í ø ó ã å ê ã ä ß í ø ø î ä ß � ß ä æ í ö ù ß äò í ÷ ö ù ö í ß " è å í ä ß 0 � ê ã ÷ ð � � � ß ÷ ð ó ÷ á 4 í ó ÷ ö � í ä � ó ÷ á à / ß �

Page 86



5 6

7 8 9 : ; < = > = ? @ A : = B : 9 A @ A 9 C D E ? F = 9 G > 8 : : = H HI = E H 8 ? = J ; < < = K 9 E ? C ; K L ? ; F ? = H HM N O N P Q R Q O S T U Q V W X P Y S Z S V N S Q P [ \ ] ^ R _ ` Q S Q a M N V ] Y b c d e f g X ` `h Q a Q ` X U Q V Q a N O a Q R h Q a a Q a ^ U Q V b c d e i b c j
k l m n o p q r q s t u n q v n m u t u m w x y s z q m { r l n n q | |} q y | l s q ~ o p p q � m y s w o � � s o z s q | |� � � u s | m x u p q � � m s y � m |s y m q s q � l n q � � � T � � � � ] ^ Y ^ V S X W N O N ` [ W Q aN O a � O a Q V W S ^ ^ a � N O a V Q ` Q U N O S� N ] S ^ V W N a a V Q W W Q a S Y V ^ � P Yg ^ V � N ] V ^ W W S Y Q _ N V S O Q V W Y X _ j � Q a � ] S X ^ O X O � � �\ � � � � d � � � � � d � �� c c � � � � � c d f � � � N O N ` [ W X W g N W ] ^ R _ ` Q S Q a N O a W � h R X S S Q a S ^ ` ^ ] N ` � ^ N V aX O Z Q _ S Q R h Q V b c d � � N ` ^ O P g X S Y V Q ] ^ R R Q O a N S X ^ O W S ^ X O � ^ V RW S V N S Q P X ] N _ _ V ^ N ] Y j� Q N V Q O a V N S Q � � b c f� � � q o � � q � � u � z s y m qs q � l n q � � Q ^ � � Q O a X O P ] ^ Y ^ V S X W N O N ` [ W Q aN O a � O a Q V W S ^ ^ a � N O a V Q ` Q U N O S� N ] S ^ V W N a a V Q W W Q a S Y V ^ � P Yg ^ V � N ] V ^ W W S Y Q _ N V S O Q V W Y X _ � Q a � ] S X ^ O X OV Q ^ � � Q O a X O P V N S Q\ � � � � � � � � �� � j d � � e � � � �� � e � f � Q ^ � � Q O a X O P N O N ` [ W X W g N W ] ^ R _ ` Q S Q a N O a W � h R X S S Q a S ^ ` ^ ] N `� ^ N V a X O � N O � N V [ b c d e � N ` ^ O P g X S Y X O X S X N ` V Q ] ^ R R Q O a N S X ^ O WS ^ X O � ^ V R W S V N S Q P X ] N _ _ V ^ N ] Y j� � � Z ] Y Q R Q Y N W h Q Q O V Q R ^ a Q ` ` Q a N O a g X ` ` � O a Q V P ^] ^ O S X O � N ` V Q U X Q g X O b c d e i b c j   O S Q V U Q O S X ^ O _ N ] � N P Q W Y N U Qh Q Q O V Q U X Q g Q a N O a Q O Y N O ] Q a j� Q N V Q O a h X O N V [ V N S Q � ¡ ¡ j d �¢ � £ | q o � ~ l | m o � ws q � l n q � ¤ � W S ^ a [ ] ^ Y ^ V S X W N O N ` [ W Q aN O a � O a Q V W S ^ ^ a � N O a V Q ` Q U N O S� N ] S ^ V W N a a V Q W W Q a S Y V ^ � P Yg ^ V � N ] V ^ W W S Y Q _ N V S O Q V W Y X _ j � Q a � ] S X ^ O X O � W Q ^ �] � W S ^ a [ V N S Q\ � � � c j � � � � � c j � e �c j � ¡ � � � � c j � ¡ f ¤ � W S ^ a [ N O N ` [ W X W ] ^ R _ ` Q S Q a N O a W � h R X S S Q a S ^ ` ^ ] N ` � ^ N V a X O� � ` [ b c d � � N ` ^ O P g X S Y X O X S X N ` V Q ] ^ R R Q O a N S X ^ O W S ^ X O � ^ V RW S V N S Q P X ] N _ _ V ^ N ] Y j� � � Z ] Y Q R Q Y N W h Q Q O V Q R ^ a Q ` ` Q a N O a g X ` ` � O a Q V P ^] ^ O S X O � N ` V Q U X Q g X O b c d e i b c j   O S Q V U Q O S X ^ O _ N ] � N P Q W Y N U Qh Q Q O V Q U X Q g Q a N O a Q O Y N O ] Q a j

Page 87



¥ ¦

§ ¨ © ¨ ª ª « ¨ ¬ ¨ ­ ª ® ¯ ¯ ° ± ® ² ³ ¨ © ³ ® ´ ¨ µ ¨ ¨ ­ ° ¨ ´ ¶ ¨ · ¨ ¸ ¶ ­ « ¶ ¹ ³ ª ± º² ± ­ © ª ° » ² ª ¶ ´ ¨ ° ¨ © ¨ ª ª « ¨ ¬ ¨ ­ ª ¼ ® ­ ¸ ­ ¨ · ® ¯ ¯ ° ± ® ² ³ ¨ © µ ¨ ¶ ­ ¹¸ ¨ ´ ¨ « ± ¯ ¨ ¸ ª ± © » ¯ ¯ ± ° ª ª ³ ¶ © ½¾ ¨ ® ° ¨ ­ ¸ ° ® ª ¨ ¿ À ½ Á À ÂÃ Ã Ä Å Æ Ç È Å É Ê Ë É Ê Ì Ê Í Î Ï Ð Ã Ñ Ò Ï Ð Ó Ô Ì É Õ Ì Í Ö Ê × Æ Ë Ø Ì Ù Ú Ø Î Ì Ê × Í Å Û Õ ÜÇ Ø Ì × Ë Ý Í È Í Õ Ý Û Í Õ Þ Ë ß ß Ê × Í É Ô Í É à Ê × Í á × Ì Ê à Ê Ì â È Õ É Ö Í Ì Ò Ô Ø × × Í Î Îã Í Õ Î Ø É Í á × Ì Ê Ë Ü Îä å æ ç è é ê ë ç ì é í î ç ì é íï ì ê é ð ñ ò ê ò è ó ð ñ ò ê ô è òç õ õ ò è ò ö ð ÷ ÷ ç ó ô é ð ó ò ø ù úû ð é í ð ÷ è ò ê ç ì è ñ òô ó ô ð ø ô ü ø ò ú ô ñ è ç ê ê é í òý ô è é ÷ ò è ê í ð ýþ ÿ � � ³ ¶ © ¶ © ª ³ ¨ © ® ¬ ¨ ® ©� » ª ² ± ¬ ¨ � � À � � � � � ¼ µ » ª³ ® © µ ¨ ¨ ­ » ¯ ¸ ® ª ¨ ¸ ª ±° ¨ º « ¨ ² ª ­ ¨ · © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨® ² ª ¶ ´ ¶ ª ¶ ¨ © º ± ° � À � � � � À ½
� ³ ® ¶ ° ± º ¾ � �	 ® ° ª ­ ¨ ° © ³ ¶ ¯ ÿ ± ® ° ¸ ® ­ ¸¾ � � 
 ¨ ® ¸ ¨ ° © ³ ¶ ¯ � ¨ ® ¬ � ó ò è ô ø ø � � ­ ¹ ± ¶ ­ ¹ ° ¨ ´ ¶ ¨ · ± º¾ � � µ » ¸ ¹ ¨ ª ® ­ ¸ ² ± ­ ª ° ¶ µ » ª ¶ ± ­ © ¼® « ± ­ ¹ © ¶ ¸ ¨ ­ ¨ ¨ ¸ © ® ­ ® « 
 © ¶ © ½� ¨ ´ ¨ « ± ¯ ¬ ¨ ­ ª ± º ¯ ® ° ª ­ ¨ ° © ³ ¶ ¯· ± ° � ¶ ­ ¹ ª ± © » ¯ ¯ ± ° ª ª ³ ¨ ¾ � � � ©· ¶ ¸ ¨ ° © ª ° ® ª ¨ ¹ ¶ ² ¯ ° ¶ ± ° ¶ ª ¶ ¨ © ¼¶ ­ ² « » ¸ ¶ ­ ¹ � ± ¶ ­ ª µ ¶ ¸ © · ³ ¨ ° ¨® ¯ ¯ ° ± ¯ ° ¶ ® ª ¨ ½

¾ � � © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨ © ® ° ¨¸ ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° ¨ ¸¨ º º ¨ ² ª ¶ ´ ¨ « 
 · ¶ ª ³ ¶ ­µ » ¸ ¹ ¨ ª ¶ ­ � À � � � � À ½ � ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨ © · ¶ ª ³ ¶ ­ ® « « ± ² ® ª ¨ ¸µ » ¸ ¹ ¨ ª � À � � � � À ½ � ­ ¹ ± ¶ ­ ¹ ° ¨ ´ ¶ ¨ · ± º¨ º º ¨ ² ª ¶ ´ ¨ ­ ¨ © © ® ­ ¸ ¶ ¬ ¯ ® ² ª ± º © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨¸ ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° 
 ½ � ¯ ¯ ± ° ª » ­ ¶ ª ¶ ¨ © º ± ° ® ¸ ¸ ¶ ª ¶ ± ­ ® «º » ­ ¸ ¶ ­ ¹ ª ± µ ¨ ¨ � ¯ « ± ° ¨ ¸ ½® � � ¨ ´ ¨ « ± ¯ ¾ � � ¸ ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° 
· ¶ ª ³ � � ® ° ¬ ® ­ ¸� � ¯ « ± ¶ ª ® ª ¶ ± ­ � © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨ © � ± ¶ ­ ª ® ¯ ¯ ° ± ® ² ³ ¨ ©® ­ ¸ ¬ ± ¸ ¨ « © ± º¸ ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° 
 ® ° ¨ ¶ ­¯ « ® ² ¨ ½ � ¸ ¨ ­ ª ¶ º 
 © ² ± ¯ ¨ º ± ° � ± ¶ ­ ª ¸ ¨ « ¶ ´ ¨ ° 
 � ¨ ½ ¹ ½° ® ­ ¹ ¨ ± º · ± ° � © ³ ± ¯ © ® ­ ¸ � ± °¯ ° ¨ ´ ¨ ­ ª ® ª ¶ ´ ¨ ® ¯ ¯ ° ± ® ² ³ ¨ © � ½µ � � ­ ³ ® ­ ² ¨ ° ® ­ ¹ ¨ ± º ¾ � �� ­ ª ¨ ° ´ ¨ ­ ª ¶ ± ­ © ª ³ ° ± » ¹ ³¨ � ¯ ® ­ © ¶ ± ­ ± º ¾ � �¯ ° ± ¹ ° ® ¬ ¬ ¨ © ® ­ ¸¯ ® ° ª ­ ¨ ° © ³ ¶ ¯ · ± ° � ¶ ­ ¹ ½ ¾ � � ¶ ­ ª ¨ ° ´ ¨ ­ ª ¶ ± ­¯ ° ± ¹ ° ® ¬ ¬ ¨ ©² ± ­ ª ¶ ­ » ¨ ª ± ° ¨ º « ¨ ² ª° ¶ © � � ­ ¨ ¨ ¸ ® ­ ¸± º º ¨ ­ ¸ ¶ ­ ¹ ¯ ° ± º ¶ « ¨ ± º¾ � � ² ± ³ ± ° ª ½ � ¨ ´ ¨ « ± ¯ ° ® ­ ¹ ¨ ± º � ¶ ­ � ³ ± » © ¨ �¯ ° ± ¹ ° ® ¬ ¬ ¨ © ½ � » ¯ ¯ ± ° ª ± ª ³ ¨ ° © ¨ ° ´ ¶ ² ¨ ©ª ± ¸ ¨ ´ ¨ « ± ¯ © ® ¬ ¨ � ¶ ­ ° ¨ © ¯ ¨ ² ª ± º ° ¶ © � ± º± º º ¨ ­ ¸ ¶ ­ ¹ � ½ � ­ ² ° ¨ ® © ¨ © ¯ ¨ ² ¶ ® « ¶ © ª ¶ ­ ¯ » ª ©´ ¶ ® ¯ ® ° ª ­ ¨ ° © ³ ¶ ¯ · ± ° � ¶ ­ ¹ � ¨ ½ ¹ ½ � ¨ ¨ ¯ ¶ ­ ¹
 ± » ° © ¨ « º © ® º ¨ ¯ ° ± � ¨ ² ª © � ½

Page 88



� �

� � � �  ! " # " $ ! % " $ &  ' ' ( � " ) * " ) + ( � " , � � ( + ( � - # $ ) . " � / * � � � " 0 01 " $ 0 � ) " , � � (  2 03 4 5 6 7 8 9 6 7 : ; < 9 ; = 8 >? ; : < 9 3 ; @ ; A 9 < ; : B C 7 C 9 6 ? D? D : C D ; 7 9 3 C 9 E ? F G ; : < 9 3 ; @ ; A 9 < ; : B 9 ?> 9 D > 8 : H I : H 8 ? ; F J ; < 9 ; = : 8 A ; ? C 6 @ : ; ? H 8 6 ? 9 K 9 A 9 D 9 ; ?= 9 D L 9 6 D L ; D ; C E F M @ ; 6 D 9 > B 8 H H 8 : D I 6 9 D 9 ; ?D 8 @ ; < ; A 8 H F J ; < 9 ? ; C ? : ; N I 9 : ; @ FO P Q R S T U R V W X Y Z [ \ S T ] W^ _ _ [ V \ ` a R \ ` bc \ ` \ d R e R ` ]f U R V _ T d g ]h V \ e R i X V j _ _ [ k k X V ] _l d X X b l _ R V U T a Rb R S T U R V W m \ ` b X ` d X T ` dT e k V X U R e R ` ] T `b R S T U R V W X Y k V \ a ] T a R Pn o p q L 9 ? L C ? 3 L C 6 7 ; @ F5 I D 3 8 E ; r > 8 : r s t u v t w: ; > ; : : ; @ D 8 @ ; < ; A 8 H 9 6 7 C3 I A D I : ; 8 > H ; : > 8 : E C 6 3 ;C 6 @ C 3 3 8 I 6 D C K 9 A 9 D B F q L 9 ?= 9 A A 6 8 = H : 8 7 : ; ? ? D 8; 6 ? I : ; N I C A 9 D B @ ; A 9 < ; : B FF

x 5 q G ; : < 9 3 ; v q ; C Ey ; C @ ; : ? f U R V \ S S z M E H A ; E ; 6 D C D 9 8 6 8 >{ x 5 q | C 6 C 7 ; E ; 6 D 5 < ; : ? 9 7 L DG D : C D ; 7 B } 9 6 3 A I @ 9 6 7 ~ I C A 9 D B� ? ? I : C 6 3 ; E ; C ? I : ; ? F5 I D 3 8 E ; ? C 6 @ 9 E H C 3 D D 8 K ;; < 9 @ ; 6 3 ; @ 9 6 @ C B D 8 @ C B = 8 : �C 6 @ 3 8 6 D : 9 K I D ; D 8 = 9 @ ; :H A C 6 6 9 6 7 F ~ � 8 I D 3 8 E ; ?9 6 > 8 : E D L ; = 8 : � 8 >D L ; o 8 C : @ F � E K ; @ 6 ; = ? D : C D ; 7 9 ; ? C 6 @ I H @ C D ; @H 8 A 9 3 9 ; ? = 9 D L 9 6 D ; C E F | 8 6 9 D 8 : 6 ; =H : 8 3 ; ? ? ; ? C 6 @ 8 I D 3 8 E ; ? v 9 E H C 3 D F
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � C ? ; = 8 : �; < 9 @ ; 6 3 ; ? ; > > ; 3 D 9 < ;E C 6 C 7 ; E ; 6 D8 < ; : ? 9 7 L D F o I 9 A @ 8 6 : ; 3 ; 6 D @ ; < ; A 8 H E ; 6 D D 8; E K ; @ = 9 D L 9 6 H : C 3 D 9 3 ; F � 6 ? I : ; ? D ; H ?C : ; @ ; A 9 < ; : ; @ C ? : ; N I 9 : ; @ F � 8 E H A ; D ;C @ @ 9 D 9 8 6 C A 3 C ? ; v ? I H ; : < 9 ? 9 8 6 C I @ 9 D ? D 8C ? ? ; ? ? 9 E H A ; E ; 6 D C D 9 8 6 C 6 @ 9 E H C 3 D F� � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � �� � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � �� ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¢£ � ¤ � � � � � � � ¥ D ; : 6 C A C I @ 9 D ?? I H H 8 : D 8 6 7 8 9 6 79 E H : 8 < ; E ; 6 D M 6 D ; : 6 C A : ; < 9 ; = � H : 9 A p ¦ I 6 ; r s t w }C A 8 6 7 ? 9 @ ; § | M { p ? D B A ; C I @ 9 D FM 6 D ; : p x 5 q J ; < 9 ; = 5 3 D 8 K ; : r s t w F� � � � �   ¢ � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � ¨ � � � � � � � G ; A > p � ? ? ; ? ? E ; 6 D 9 ?3 8 E H A ; D ; @ C 6 @@ ; E 8 6 ? D : C D ; ? 7 8 8 @ G ; A > p � ? ? ; ? ? E ; 6 D D 8 K ; I 6 @ ; : D C � ; 6G ; H D ; E K ; : r s t w p | C : 3 L r s r s } C 6 @

Page 89



© ª

« ¬ ­ ® ¯ ° ± ² ± ³ ° ´ ± ³ µ ¯ ¶ ¶ · ® ± ¸ ¹ ± ¸ º · ® ± » ® ­ · º · ­ ¼ ² ³ ¸ ½ ± ­ ¾ ¹ ¬ ® ® ± ¿ ¿À ± ³ ¿ ¬ ¸ ± » ® ­ · ¯ Á ¿Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Ç Æ È © ª É Ê Ë ÅÇ Ì Í Ä Ã Ë Î Å Ã Î Î Ï Ì Ç Ä Ã Ë Î Å Ä ÍÄ Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Ä È Ï Ì Õ Ã È Ö × Ø Ù Ø × Ú ÛÜ Ú Ý Þ × ß à á Ü Ø â ã ä å Ý ß æ æ Ø ç æ Ú è é ê ë Þ ì ß × í î í î âï Ú × ß Ü ð ñ ò ë æ Ú å Ø ä Þ ç à æ Ø ç à ã ì Ø ó ä ß ì Ø ç â
ô õ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ú ü ù ý ú ü þ ø ÿ ÿ � ÷ ú � � ú � � � ÷ ú � ÷ ö � � � ö � û ü � � ú ö � � õ ÷ ÷ ú � �	 ú ü � õ � ú � ÷ ö � ø 
 �� � 
 � � � ö û � ù ú � 
 ö � ü 
 ö �� ü ö ú � ú þ õ ÷ ú þ è � � � Ø ì Ù ß Ü Ø � Ø à ç Ø ì ï è � � � � � Ü Ú � Ú ì æ ß ã à á à × ð ã Ø ç �ä á ç Ø ì ã æ Ú Ú ç à á ç ì Ø ç ä Ü Ø ç å ðà ç ç ì Ø ã ã à × Ú Û ì Ø × Ø Ù à á æ Û à Ü æ Ú ì ã Ù ß àÞ à ì æ á Ø ì ã � ß Þ � Ú ì � ß á � â � Ø ç ä Ü æ ß Ú á ß á � � �� � � � �  � ! " � �  # $# % % ! & � ' # %  ( ) Ú ì � � ß æ � * à Ý Þ ã � ß ì Ø ï Ú × ß Ü Ø à á ç Þ à á +* à Ý Þ ã � ß ì Ø è � � Ü Ú × × Ø à � ä Ø ã æ ÚØ , Þ × Ú ì Ø à á ç ì Ø ç ä Ü Ø æ ì Ø á ç ã à Ü ì Ú ã ã æ � ØÜ Ú ä á æ ð â � Ø Ù ß Ø � � � � à á à × ð ã ß ã æ Úß ç Ø á æ ß Û ð � Ø ð æ ì Ø á ç ã â - à Þ × Ú Ü à ×ã Ø ì Ù ß Ü Ø ã . à å ß × ß æ ð æ Ú ì Ø ã Þ Ú á ç à á çã ä Þ Þ Ú ì æ ç Ø Ù Ø × Ú Þ Ý Ø á æ Ú Û ì Ø ó ä ß ì Ø çì Ø ã Þ Ú á ã Ø ã æ Ú Ø á � à á Ü Ø × Ú Ü à ×Þ ì Ø Ù Ø á æ ß Ú á Ú Û Û Ø ì â/ � 0 ú ø ÿ ÿ ú 
 þ � 
 � � ü ö ú� ú þ õ ÷ ú þ è � � � Ø ì Ù ß Ü Ø � Ø à ç Ø ì � Ø Ú Û Û Ø á ç ß á � Ü Ú � Ú ì æ ß ã à á à × ð ã Ø çà á ç ä á ç Ø ì ã æ Ú Ú ç � à á ç ì Ø × Ø Ù à á æÛ à Ü æ Ú ì ã à ç ç ì Ø ã ã Ø ç æ � ì Ú ä � �� Ú ì � à Ü ì Ú ã ã æ � Ø Þ à ì æ á Ø ì ã � ß Þ � Ø ç ä Ü æ ß Ú á ß áì Ø Ú Û Û Ø á ç ß á � ì à æ Ø1 2 3 4 5 6 7 � ë 35 6 â 8 + 5 9 7 � � 3: 5 9 7 ; � á � à á Ü Ø à á à × ð ã ß ã à á ç ì Ø Ù ß Ø � â< Ú á æ ß á ä Ø æ Ú ç Ø Ù Ø × Ú Þ Ü à ã Ø × Ú à ç Þ ì Ú Û ß × Øà á ç Ü Ú ì ì Ø ã Þ Ú á ç ß á � ß á æ Ø ì Ù Ø á æ ß Ú á ã â- Ú á ß æ Ú ì ì Ø Ý Ú ç Ø × × ß á � Ú Û ï è ï à á çß ç Ø á æ ß Û ð Ú æ � Ø ì Þ ì Ú = Ø Ü æ ã å à ã Ø ç Ú áã � à ì Ø ç × Ø à ì á ß á � à Ü ì Ú ã ã æ � Ø ã Ø Ü æ Ú ì â

Page 90



> ?

@ A B C D E F G H C I E J KL D J H M D J N O P Q R S T U V R W R X Y R S Z [ \ ] ^ Y _ V ^ ` ^ S ] U \ X a X b _ \ R YX a Y [ a Y R S \ ] ^ ^ Y c X a Y S R b R T X a ]d X V ] ^ S \ X Y Y S R \ \ R Y ] ` S ^ [ e `f ^ S g X V S ^ \ \ ] ` R h X S ] a R S \ ` U h i j R Y [ V ] U ^ a U a [ \ R ^ dV [ \ ] ^ Y _ S X ] Rk l m n o i p q c r m o i p s to i u v c j m w o i u v x j R T U R f V [ \ ] ^ Y _ X a X b _ \ U \ X a YS R \ [ b ] U a e S R V ^ y y R a Y X ] U ^ a \ i j R T U \ RS R \ R ] ] b R y R a ] h X ] ` f X _ \ X a Y \ ^ [ S V R \^ d \ [ h h ^ S ] i Z b ^ \ R b _ y ^ a U ] ^ S S R y X a Yb R T R b \ X a Y Y R T R b ^ h S R y X a Y S R Y [ V ] U ^ a\ ] S X ] R e _ U d S R z [ U S R Y i{ A | } I ~ E � } � � I } � J } L J C� � � � D � � D J J D J � ~ I � ~ �� E L � E F � � � � } L I � D L C � ~ �� E } L J A Z ` X U S ^ d N O P� X S ] a R S \ ` U h � ^ X S YX a Y N O P W R X Y R S \ ` U hP R X y � Q r [ Y U ] ] ^ V ^ y h b R ] R Y Q R h ]� s t � X S V ` � o � o U a V b [ Y U a e e X hX a X b _ \ U \ ] ^ U a d ^ S y d [ ] [ S R\ ] S X ] R e U V h b X a a U a e i � Q r [ Y U ]V ^ y h b R ] R Y X aX V ] U ^ a h b X a X e S R R Yk U d a R V R \ \ X S _ x Q R b d t r [ Y U ] ] ^ � R V ^ y h b R ] R Y f U ] ` X b b� ^ X S Y � R y � R S \ � _ � R V R y � R S � o � s i� Q Z ` X y h U ^ a S ^ b R \ ] ^ � R U Y R a ] U d U R YX y ^ a e \ ] � ^ X S Y � R y � R S \ X a YV ^ a ] U a [ R U a ] ^ � o � o i� � � � � � � �   ¡ ¢ £ ¢ ¡ � ¡ ¤ ¥

Page 91



¦ ¦§ ¨ ¨ © ª « ¬ ­ § ® ¯ ° ± ² ³ ´ ° µ ² ¶ · ¸ ¹ º ² ± µ » ² µ ± © ¼ ³ ¼ ² ½ ¾ ¿ ½ À ¿ Á ½ ¾ Â

Ã Ä Ä Å Æ Ç È É Æ ÊË Ì Í Î Ï Ì Ð Ñ Ò Ó Î Ô Õ Î ÖÌ × Î Ø Ô Î Ö ÙÐ Ì Ø Ú Û Ð Ü Ì Ý Þ ß Ö Ëà ß Ö ß Ù Ì á Ì Ö Ôâ Ï Ì Ð Ø Î Ù Õ ÔØ Û ã ã Ú Ð Ô Ø ä Ù Ú Ú Ë äã Ð ß Ü Ô Î Ü Ìå Ê æ É Æ Ê ç è
é Ì Ë Û Ü Ì ê Î Ð Ø Ôë Î á Ì ì Ö Ô Ð ß Ö Ô Øé Ì Ë Û Ü Ìé Ì Ú í í Ì Ö Ë Î Ö Ù

é Ì Ë Û Ü Ì î Ø Ì Ú íï Û Ø Ô Ú Ë Ñ
ð ñòó ôõöó÷ øñöùúð ñûü ñýó÷ øñþ õöýó÷ ýñ ÿ ������ ����	
�����
�

� ´ 
 © « � ¼ ² ¬ ° ª ¼ � º ² ¼ ª « ¼ ± « ³ Á ½ ¾ Â

Page 92



� �

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Agenda item:  

 
Title of meeting: 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date of meeting: 
 
Subject: 
 

9 July 2019 
 
The Aquind Interconnector Project 

Report From: 
 

Chief Executive 
  

Report by: 
 

Paddy May, Strategy Unit 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 

1. Purpose of report 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with information about the 
proposal by Aquind Ltd to develop an electricity interconnector and to 
outline what some of the implications for Portsmouth might be. The report 
also seeks the advice of members on how we should respond to this 
proposal.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Cabinet is recommended to: 

2.1.1 Note that Aquind are seeking to develop an electricity Interconnector 
between the UK and France with a converter station in Lovedean. 
They are proposing to "land" the high voltage DC (HVDC) electricity 
cable at Eastney and run it up through Portsmouth to the converter 
station at Lovedean. 

2.1.2 Note that despite representations from Portsmouth City Council that 
the Aquind proposal should be determined by the relevant local 
planning authorities (including Portsmouth City Council), the 
Government has decided that the proposal was a 'Nationally 
Significant Infrastructure Project' that should be determined by the 
Secretary of State through the Development Consent Order process. 

2.1.3 Seek the support of Full Council to reinforce the Cabinet's objection 
to the route of the HVDC cable whilst also working constructively 
with Aquind and other stakeholders.  

2.1.4 Agree that the Council responds to this proposal in a coordinated 
way and where possible works with neighbouring councils on any 
common approaches. 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



 

 

2.1.5 Note that any additional external costs incurred in the current year 
associated with the need to make an informed and considered 
response to the proposal will be met from the Council's Corporate 
Contingency. 

3. Background 

3.1 Aquind Ltd is proposing to construct and operate an underground and 
marine electricity interconnector between the south coast of England and 
Normandy in France (the AQUIND Interconnector). This interconnector will 
have capacity to transmit up to 16 million MWh (or 16 TWh) of electricity 
annually or approximately 5% of Great Britain’s total electricity consumption 
and 3% of the French total electricity consumption. The technology used 
will allow the flow of electricity both ways. Aquind are proposing that the 
interconnector cable will come ashore at Eastney and that the cable will run 
up through Portsmouth to a converter station in Lovedean. This converter 
station will convert the electricity from direct current (DC) to alternating 
current (AC) and will feed the AC electricity into the National Grid (or will 
convert national grid power from AC to DC to transmit to the French 
converter station in Normandy). 

3.2 The diagram below is from the Aquind website and shows how the concept 
of the interconnector will work. 

 

 
 
3.3 Aquind have stated that in 2015 National Grid confirmed their substation at 

Lovedean, near Waterlooville, as the preferred substation which would 

Page 96



 

 

connect the interconnector to the national electricity network. In June 2016, 
AQUIND signed a grid connection offer with National Grid for connection to 
the existing Lovedean substation. AQUIND then considered their preferred 
options for the preferred locations for the converter station, the landfall 
point and the HVDC cable route. They identified their preferred landfall 
point as Eastney (their documentation refers to a car park near Fort 
Cumberland). Aquind stated that they looked at alternative landfall sites, 
including Hayling Island, but that they discounted this because of the 
difficulties in crossing Langstone Harbour and the use of the Hayling road 
bridge for the crossing. 

3.4 Whilst the exact route for the HVDC cable, once it has hit land, is yet to be 
finalised, documents from Aquind have stated that the route for the HVDC 
cable will follow built-up urban areas within Portsmouth including Eastney, 
Milton, Anchorage Park and Drayton. Their initial proposal was that the 
HVDC cable will be buried, along with a data cable, within hard standing 
areas of existing Portsmouth highways including the A288, the A2030 
(Eastern Road) and Farlington Avenue, before heading on to Lovedean via 
Purbrook and the A3. We are currently discussing with Aquind how 
disruption can be minimised and so, for example, we are exploring with 
them whether the cable could go between the Eastern Road and the 
coastal defences rather than along the Eastern Road. It should be noted 
that although a route up through Langstone Harbour would minimise 
disruption this would not be acceptable in planning terms because of 
international and national ecological designations relating to the harbour. 
The Council will also want to ensure that any construction will not materially 
impact on air quality and air pollution either directly or through any 
congestion caused. This is something that will need to be negotiated with 
Aquind.  

3.5 On 19 June 2018, Aquind sought a Direction from the Secretary of State for 
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy under section 35 of the Planning 
Act 2008 (the ‘PA 2008’) that their proposal be treated as development for 
which development consent under the PA 2008 is required. Leaders of the 
Local Authorities in the area wrote to oppose this proposal. However, on 30 
July 2018, the Secretary of State issued a Direction confirming that the 
development should be treated as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure 
Project. The Secretary of State decided this because: 

• The proposal is similar in size to a generating station that would 
qualify to be considered as nationally significant.  

• Following the process through the Planning Act 2008 development 
consent process, provides the certainty of a single, unified 
consenting process and fixed timescales.  

• It reduces the need to apply for separate consents from the Marine 
Management Organisation and local planning authorities.   

This means that Aquind must submit an application for a Development 
Consent Order ("DCO") to the Secretary of State to obtain the necessary 
consents for the construction and operation of the proposal. Because of 
this, Portsmouth and neighbouring authorities will not be the planning 
authority for the proposal, but will be a consultee and will be able to submit 

Page 97



 

 

evidence to the Planning Inspector who will be considering the application 
on behalf of the Secretary of State. The Inspectorate will subsequently 
make a recommendation to the relevant Secretary of State. Details of the 
application and supporting documents are on the following website:  

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-
east/aquind-interconnector/  

3.6 To summarise, Aquind have obtained agreement from the Secretary of 
State that their proposal is a project of national significance and that since it 
will be dealt with through the DCO process, the relevant Secretary of State 
will make a decision having received a recommendation from a Planning 
Inspector. The Council will be able to make representations to the Inspector 
but will not be making the decision.   

4. Timeline 

4.1 Aquind undertook consultation on its proposals between 27/2/19 and 
29/4/19. The consultation documents are still available to view and 
download on their consultation website at www.aquindconsultation.co.uk. 
The City Council had concerns about the consultation process but not 
withstanding this, the Director of Regeneration at Portsmouth City Council 
provided a detailed response to their consultation document. This is 
attached as Appendix 1 and is summarised in Section 5 below.  

4.2 Aquind have stated that they expect to submit their DCO application in 
quarter 3 2019. After receipt of the application, there will be 28 days for the 
Planning Inspectorate to review the application and decide whether or not 
to accept it for examination. If the timeframe is met, and the proposal is 
accepted for examination, the public and other consultees will be able to 
give their written views on the proposal before the public examination 
starts. It is expected that the public examination would take place in Spring 
2020 and could last up to 6 months. The Planning Inspectorate will make a 
recommendation to the Secretary of State (within three months of the close 
of the public examination). The Secretary of State will have a further three 
months to make the final decision. 

4.3 Aquind have stated that if they obtain a DCO that they expect to start 
construction works in early 2021 with the interconnector becoming 
operational by 2023. 

5. Implications for Portsmouth 

5.1 Whilst Portsmouth will not be making the planning decision on this 
proposal, it is important that we continue to fully engage with the process to 
ensure that if Aquind are given permission to proceed with their proposal 
that we are able to represent the interests of Portsmouth and the residents 
of the City. A range of different services are engaged with the proposal 
including planning, highways, parks and property. If the proposal goes 
ahead we will also have an important issue of helping to communicate to 
our residents.  

5.2 As stated above the Director of Regeneration responded to the Aquind 
consultation (see Appendix 1). This consultation response made the 
following key points in the summary: 

Page 98

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-east/aquind-interconnector/
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-east/aquind-interconnector/
http://www.aquindconsultation.co.uk/


 

 

• Alternative options for connecting to the national grid not properly 
explored 

• Alternative options for landfall not properly explored with 
inconsistent application of factors e.g. the constraints for Hayling 
Island about Langstone Harbour and the road bridge also apply to 
the Portsmouth proposal 

• Insufficient consideration of the disruption to Portsmouth of the 
construction works and insufficient account taken of the 
environmental, social and economic effects of the proposal and 
different options 

• Insufficient promotion of the consultation and concerns about the 
quality of the consultation process 

• The need to consider the cumulative impact of this with other 
development proposed such as the flood defence work 

• Guarantees that appropriate mitigation will be in place to counter 
the disruption caused during the development phase 

• The establishment of a "fund for community" to benefit the 
communities affected by hosting the development 

The response also looked in detail at traffic and transportation issues, air 
quality issues, impact of coastal flood defences, archaeology issues and 
impacts on socio-economics / human health.  

5.3 If Aquind are successful in their DCO application it is worth noting that they 
will be seeking Compulsory Purchase Powers to acquire land or interests in 
land to implement their proposals. As a recognised Statutory Provider they 
do have certain rights to undertake works but they have stated they will be 
seeking CPO Powers in addition to these rights. They have advised that  
these powers would not be used on any residential properties within 
Portsmouth but this process could affect interests held by the Council.  

5.4 Members are asked to consider whether they wish to maintain the Council's 
approach that we should object to the route of the HVDC and that it should 
not be laid in Portsmouth. It is suggested that the views of Full Council are 
sought to confirm whether this is the view of the Council.  

5.5 However, whilst the City Council may wish to object to the proposal, or 
aspects of the proposal, it is important that we maintain a positive working 
relationship with Aquind. We have a Duty to Cooperate with Aquind as they 
develop their proposal and we have already worked jointly with them on a 
number of studies. We are in the process of signing a planning 
performance agreement with them which will enable further joint work to be 
undertaken. We need to work with Aquind to make sure that if the project 
goes ahead the people of Portsmouth are not disadvantaged by the project. 
This would mean, for example, that if community facilities are lost during or 
because of the construction, that replacement facilities are available or 
reinstated to at least as good a standard.  

5.6 With a complex project such as this, it is important that we respond as one 
organisation. Processes have been put in place to help facilitate this and 
officers are looking to strengthen this with arrangements to log all 

Page 99



 

 

engagements with Aquind. Regular meetings are also taking place to 
ensure that everyone is aware of what is happening on the Aquind project. 
The Aquind proposal will also impact on neighbouring authorities (including 
Hampshire County Council as the Highways authority and Havant BC, East 
Hants DC and Winchester CC as planning authorities). Whilst our interests 
might not always align, it is important that where possible we seek to 
promote a common line on common issues. Officers are working with their 
colleagues in neighbouring councils to try to ensure that this happens but 
we still need to make sure that all decisions are within the overall PCC 
approach that is agreed.  

5.7 Whilst the planning performance agreement will help fund posts / backfill 
and a number of the joint studies and work needed on the Aquind proposal, 
we may wish to commission some of our own studies as well. This will 
require resource and we may wish to instruct Counsel for the examination 
or for legal advice before the examination. If this can be done jointly with 
others it will reduce the cost, but officers will need to identify what potential 
costs may be needed to deal with the Aquind Project and come back to 
Members with further details. We will seek to recover costs, where 
possible, from Aquind in terms of the time that is being spent on this 
project. Officers will also need to develop a detailed project plan of what 
needs to be done in line with the key milestones detailed in Section 4.  

6. Reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Aquind project has potential significant implications for the City and so 
it is important that Members are aware of the proposal and what the 
implications might be. As a Council we need to be aware that there may be 
resource implications for us to deal with the Aquind project and that we will 
need to respond in a positive and coordinated way. 

7. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 

7.1 With this project being an Aquind Project dealt with through the Secretary 
of State it will be for them to ensure that the appropriate impact 
assessments, including the equalities assessment, are fully completed.  

8. Legal Implications/City Solicitor comments  

8.1 Legal comments are made throughout the report in as far as they relate to 
the procedural steps involved in a DCO application.  

8.2 The Council is considering whether to enter into a planning performance 
agreement with Aquind to recover associated costs to the planning 
department in undertaking the additional work that will be required of the 
department as a consultee to a DCO application.  

8.3 The Council is highly likely to instruct Counsel at the inquiry stage to 
present its position on the scheme as a consultee.   

9. Director of Finance and Information Services comments 

9.1 If the Council maintains its position of objecting to the route of the HVDC 
cable then it may need to incur significant expenditure. The exact amount 
of expenditure is at this time unknown. For any necessary additional 
expenditure in 2019/20, required to make an informed and considered, the 

Page 100



 

 

Council will need to release funding from the Corporate Contingency. Any 
necessary additional expenditure beyond the current financial year will 
need to be reviewed as the challenge develops and factored into the 
forthcoming budget process. Any expenditure that the Council incurs is 
spent at risk. 

9.2 As well as incurring external expenditure the Council will also need to 
dedicate internal staff resources to this project and re-prioritise resources 
accordingly. 

9.3 Should the HVDC be laid on land, the Council will need to work closely with 
Aquind to ensure that as a minimum is in a no worse financial position. 

 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - PCC Consultation Response to Aquind Ltd 
 
 
Signed by: 
 
 
 
……………………… 
DAVID WILLIAMS 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ 
deferred/ rejected by ……………………………… on ………………………………  
  
  
    
  
……………………………………………… Signed by:   
 

Page 101



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
ortsmouth City Council 

Page 102



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 103



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 104



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 105



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 106



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 107



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 108



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 

Page 109



APPENDIX 1 
PCC CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO AQUIND 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Agenda item:  

 
Title of meeting: 
 

 
Cabinet  

Date of meeting: 
 
Subject: 
 

9th July 2019 
 
Health & Care Portsmouth Operating Model : Next steps  

Report From: 
 

Chief Executive, Portsmouth City Council and Chief 
Clinical Officer & Clinical Leader, NHS Portsmouth CCG 
 

Report by: 
 

Innes Richens, Chief of Health and Care Portsmouth and 
Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager 
 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 Portsmouth City Council (PCC) and NHS Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning 

Group (PCCG) have continued to develop and deliver successful integrated 
working across health and care for the City, as described by the shared Health & 
Care Portsmouth programme of work. During 2018/19 the two organisations took 
significant steps to integrate key statutory functions, establishing a single operating 
model for the planning and delivery of Health & Care Portsmouth.  
 

1.2 The purpose of this paper is to update on progress of this Health & Care 
Portsmouth operating model since proposals were adopted by the PCCG’s 
Governing Body and the Portsmouth Health and Wellbeing Board in November 
and approved by PCC's Cabinet in February 2019. 

 
1.3 Based on the learning gained from implementing the operating model and in 

response to the call from the Cabinet and Governing Body to seek further 
opportunities for deeper integration, this paper also sets out the benefits case and 
options to achieve this.  

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. The Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

a. Note the progress so far on the integration of PCC and PCCG functions in 
support of the Health and Care Portsmouth operating model 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

b. Agree the proposals for further integration set out at section 13 of this 
report, including the preferred option for integrating of PCCG Accountable 
Officer and PCC Chief Executive functions.  

 

3. Background 
 
3.1 Portsmouth is a city where chief executives, accountable officers and senior   

executives have been working together for some years to develop the right 
responses to the challenges facing health and care in the city.  In 2015, 
representatives of the five main players in the local health and care system (PCC, 
PCCG, Solent NHS Trust, Portsmouth Hospitals Trust and the Portsmouth GP 
Alliance) jointly published a Blueprint for Health and Care in Portsmouth.  

 
3.2 The Blueprint sets out the high level vision for health and care in the city, and also 

includes aspirations for the future of care in the city: 
 

 The delivery of a Blueprint for Adults Social Care that will drive transformational 

change in these services to ensure that more people are able to live the lives 

that they want to live 

 Implementation of a Stronger Futures Programme to support vulnerable 

children and families that will ensure high-quality, sustainable services and 

improved outcomes  

 Continuing to discharge a strategy for supporting special educational need and 

disability to ensure an inclusive city  

3.3 This Blueprint provided a foundation for the city to start developing shared 
solutions and responses to improve local efficiency, effectiveness and 
responsiveness in the delivery of health and care services.  The joint working and 
core principles of the Blueprint have endured in the context of Sustainability and 
Transformation Plans, and the development of new models and structures.  The 
Blueprint has provided a local vehicle to remove issues caused by working as 
separate organisations and to join up the commissioning and delivery of services 
around the care of individuals.   

 
4. Delivery of the Blueprint 

 
4.1 Since its inception in 2015, there have been significant achievements delivered 

through the Blueprint and the associated mechanisms, for example: 
 

 Launch of the Acute Visiting Service that provides a dedicated GP home visiting 
service on behalf of practices to registered patients requiring an urgent visit in 
their own home 
 

 Development of the GP Enhanced Access Service, delivering urgent primary 
care appointments 

 

Page 112



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 An innovative social prescribing service has been launched, linked to the 
voluntary, community & social enterprise (VCSE) sector 
 

 Completion of over 2000 personalised care and support plans and 
establishment of 500 integrated care budgets as part of the Integrated Personal 
Commissioning programme 
 

 Bringing together health and social care services into an integrated Early Help 
and Prevention Service for children and families 
 

 Implementation of an Enhanced Care Home Team, to provide clinical input to 
care homes in the city to reduce emergency calls and conveyances to hospital.  

 
4.2 A more detailed report against the commitments in the original Blueprint is attached 

at Appendix 1.  
 
5. Further development of Health & Care Portsmouth 

 
5.1 The city continues to have ambitious aims for the services provided to residents. 

These aims are centred around the people in the city, not the organisations 
providing the services. Significantly, in Portsmouth we are taking a wider view on 
the extent to which other services traditionally outside of the "health and care" 
umbrella are integral to the health and wellbeing of residents, very specifically in 
relation to housing, but also looking at work around tackling poverty, linking with 
the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector, and considering the 
approach to community development.  This is in line with the broader consideration 
being given to a number of the "wicked issues" confronting society that need a 
multi-disciplinary approach such as serious violence, suicide prevention, alcohol 
and substance misuse and domestic abuse (to name a few).   

 
5.2 Therefore, in Portsmouth we have been integrating commissioning and delivery 

across organisations, so residents do not experience fragmentation of care and 
support, or unnecessary barriers to access – this is being achieved by the 
development and implementation of a Health & Care Portsmouth operating model, 
a unified leadership and delivery structure between PCC and PCCG. 

 
6. The first phase of the Health & Care operating model 

 
6.1 During 2018, the first phase of the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model has 

established combined, joint roles between PCCG and PCC for: 
 

 PCCG and PCC  responsibilities for adults health and social care, including the 

broader CCG commissioning responsibilities  

 

 PCCG and PCC  responsibilities for children & families, including the broader 

functions of PCC for education 

 

 PCCG and PCC  responsibilities for public health and well being 

Page 113



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

6.2 Work to implement the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model since its 
acceptance in November and February has made the following progress: 

 
a) Children & Families: 

 

 A S113 Agreement is in place for the Director of Children & Families (DCS) 

in PCC to deliver the commissioning duties of PCCG specific to the 

commissioning of children & families services. The DCS is now a member of 

PCCG Governing Body. 

 

 The DCS and Chief of Health & Care Portsmouth, with HR expertise, have 

agreed a single, underpinning staffing structure that unifies PCC and PCCG 

commissioning capacity; the appropriate HR consultations, engagement and 

processes are being followed in order to transition to this structure. 

 
b) Adult Services: 

 

 A Blueprint for Adult Social Care in Portsmouth has been launched, with a 

cross-organisation programme board to ensure its delivery. 

 

 A Section 113 Agreement has been in place between PCCG and PCC since 

2016 for the Chief of Health & Care Portsmouth to deliver the statutory duties 

of PCC specific to adult social care. 

 

c) Health & Care Portsmouth Commissioning Committee: 
 

 Terms of Reference for this PCCG/PCC have been agreed by the Portsmouth 

Health & Wellbeing Board (March 2019) 

 

 The Committee held its first development meeting in April to receive the 

Terms of Reference and agree operating procedures and priorities, including: 

 
- The identification of total health & care financial resource available and 

committed to adults, children and public health & care for the City 

- The scope of the Health & Care Portsmouth work programme – and 

consideration of connections required to other key factors of City life and 

the emerging City Plan 

- Consideration of how to use JSNA and business intelligence (BI) to 

inform decisions 

 

 The Committee will hold its formal meetings in public, with the first meeting 

occurring on (June ’19) 

  

Page 114



 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

d) Commissioner and Provider Integration: 
 

 Health & Care Portsmouth goes beyond PCCG and PCC functions, the 
ambition includes reducing duplication and increasing integration between all 
organisations planning and delivering health & care in the City. Since the 
approval of the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model PCCG, PCC and 
Solent NHS Trust are reviewing capacity and functions where there are 
potential overlaps or benefits for a more formal integrated arrangement. This 
specifically focuses on our individual capacity for significant service change 
management (also referred to as ‘transformation capacity’) and quality 
improvement. The intent is to work to bring together our respective 
transformation expertise and people around the main Health & Care 
Portsmouth programmes of work. 
 

 In addition PCCG and Solent NHS Trust have agreed and implemented a 
joint role for the senior leadership of mental health commissioning and 
operational service delivery for Portsmouth. 
 

e) Health & Care Portsmouth Communication, Engagement and Branding: 
 

 An important enabling programme for Health & Care Portsmouth is the work 
we do in the City to engage with residents, staff and partners and how we 
communicate our plans and successes. A joint Health & Care Portsmouth 
communications & engagement team has been operating for the past year, 
comprised of the respective communication & engagement leads from 
PCCG, PCC and Solent NHS Trust. This team has developed and delivered 
a joint Health & Care Portsmouth communications & engagement 
programme of work, initially focused on the work delivered around services 
for adults but now working to include existing and new work on children & 
families as well as public health. 
 

 As part of this, the increasing use of the Health & Care Portsmouth branding 
and logo is occurring in the City when any of the partners talk about work on 
health & care, with a subsequent increase in use of the Health & Care 
Portsmouth website 
(https://healthandcare.portsmouth.gov.uk/).  

 
7. Context to the next phase 

 
7.1 The NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, sets a broad direction for 

the future of the NHS and indicates that the way NHS providers, commissioners 
and Local Authorities work together to plan and deliver health & care is changing. 
It confirms the continued progression of existing Sustainability & Transformation 
Partnerships (STPs) into Integrated Care Systems (ICS) which are expected to 
cover the whole country by April 2021. ICSs are intended to create a shared 
leadership and achieve a key ambition of the Long Term Plan, the ‘triple 
integration’ of primary & acute care, physical & mental health care and health & 
local government. 

Page 115

https://healthandcare.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

7.2 The emerging ICS for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight (HIOW) is based on the 
previous HIOW STP. Proposals for the evolution of the STP into an ICS were 
developed during 2018. Whilst these proposals in many respects helpfully pre-
empted the expectations of the NHS Long Term Plan, effective models for 
achieving the third ambition of the ‘triple integration’ – health & local government 
– were challenging given the diversity of the large HIOW geography and the 
differential local government/health integration already in play. Particularly 
challenging was how to achieve a model of working that achieved tangible 
subsidiarity, respecting and recognising the strength of local accountability and 
local government alongside the need and benefits of working at larger scale on 
key and shared NHS priorities. The Health & Care Portsmouth operating model 
potentially offers a way forward on this third aspect of triple integration. 

 
7.3 The NHS Long Term Plan also announced the development of Primary Care 

Networks (PCN), enabling GP practices to work together based on populations 
of between 30,000 to 50,000, to deliver shared services, allow flexible use of 
workforce across practices, and enable more proactive care and create locally-
based health & care services. This aligns significantly with the existing Health & 
Care Portsmouth principle that the foundation of effective healthcare is strong 
local primary care (and this was reflected in our Portsmouth Blueprint for Health 
& Care, 2015). It also recognises the requirement for subsidiarity in the delivery 
and utilisation of resources to provide local healthcare, with significant resource 
flowing direct to PCNs alongside the corresponding powers to make decisions 
about how services are best configured to deliver the care needed by their local 
population. Though very early in their development, PCNs in Portsmouth are 
considering how best to align and situate themselves within the existing City 
community & care services, in particular the well-established Portsmouth 
Multispecialty Community Provider (MCP) partnership that has successfully 
delivered services for residents and is a key element of Health & Care 
Portsmouth. 

 
8. NHS Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body,   

November 2018 
 

8.1 PCCG’s Governing Body, in supporting the Health & Care Portsmouth operating 
model at its meeting in November 2018, commented on the need to broaden the 
scope of the model to consider the connection between health, social care and 
public health with other key priorities for the City including education & schools, 
looked after children & families, special education needs, sexual health services 
and the work PCC delivers in neighbourhoods and communities. 

 
9. Portsmouth Health & Wellbeing Board, November 2018 

 
9.1 The Health & Wellbeing Board considered and endorsed the Health & Care 

Portsmouth operating model and strongly supported the direction of travel.  
 
9.2 The Board noted the expectation that Health and Wellbeing Boards are integral 

to the development of effective Integrated Care Systems as set out in the NHS 
Long Term Plan (2018). The Portsmouth Health and Wellbeing Board has 

Page 116



 

7 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

strongly advocated for wider system reform and has broadly supported 
throughout the vision for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight system that has been 
articulated. However, the Board has also recognised that in trying to capture the 
very complex set of functions, relationships and dependencies, there are some 
tensions between the wider system and the local system. These are not 
considered to be insurmountable and fundamentally amount to three main 
concerns: 

  

 Geographies - there are indisputably a number of functions best delivered at 

the level of a larger (2m+) population, but community and primary healthcare 

are interdependent on a whole range of community resources, including social 

care, schools, housing, leisure provision and the local network of voluntary and 

community sector provision.  A wider formula for the HIOW system needs to 

allow the flexibility for local circumstances to be mapped across where this is 

appropriate.   

 Local accountability - developing tailored approaches to local needs requires 

local place leaders working together in local systems, particularly as the 

interface with social care services and early help and prevention is critical.  

 Equity in how communities are understood - to respond to need 

appropriately in different areas, flexibility is needed to do things differently 

when a granular understanding supports the view that it is the right thing to do 

- this is achieved by allowing resources to be directed as flexibly as possible 

at the lowest level of geography.  

10. PCC Cabinet, February 2019 
 

10.1 The Health & Care Portsmouth operating model was considered and endorsed 
by PCC Cabinet in February 2019. Further, the Cabinet requested that: 

 

 the respective Accountable/Chief Executive Officers, working within their 

scheme of delegations and constitutional powers, review the management and 

staffing structures currently in place in order to align this capacity with the new 

Health & Care Portsmouth operating model and for this to include cost-share 

arrangements and; 

 

 agreed that the Chief Executive of PCC should work with the accountable 

officer of PCCG to consider further opportunities for integration, consistent with 

the NHS long term plan, and present such proposals to the health and 

wellbeing board at the earliest opportunity 

 
11. Benefits of further Local Government and NHS integration 

 
(i) Why ‘Place’ Matters to Local Government 

11.1 In the current discussions about NHS reform and the Long Term Plan, the term 
‘place’ is routinely used to describe a geography based on Local Authority 

Page 117



 

8 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

boundaries. This in itself is problematic given the diversity of Local Authorities in 
the Hampshire & Isle of Wight area: 

 

 Hampshire County Council and Boroughs/Districts: mixed rural and urban 

 Portsmouth: densely populated urban 

 Southampton: urban 

 Isle of Wight: largely rural and an island 

11.2 In many respects, ‘place’ can be used to describe a range of entities, from a local 
community within a ward in a city, to an island, to a county. Local Authorities are 
uniquely experienced in working with multiple communities and ‘places’ and could 
bring this to the planning and delivery of health & care for local residents. 

 
11.3 ‘Place’ – whether this be based on geography, communities or individuals – is 

important to local government because it is the basis upon which residents 
experience the majority of services on a daily basis. In fulfilling their statutory 
functions, Local Authorities ensure a connection with the reality of residents – 
housing, environment, relationships, education, work, leisure, culture, parking 
and transport; health and care is one aspect of this wider reality of ‘place’. 

 
11.4 This variety of experience of ‘place’ gives rise to a variation of need. Whilst 

population, community and individual needs will share many common features, 
many needs are unique to ‘place’. A City’s transport issues will not be the same 
as a rural community’s, an Island’s economic development challenge will not be 
the same as deprived urban ward etc. This variation in need will inevitably result 
in a variation of health & care need and this requires an equivalent variation in 
planning and provision. 

 
11.5 The importance of ‘place’ is written into the statutory functions of Local 

Authorities; figure 1 below summarises the key statutory functions of Local 
Authorities that have the most direct impact on health & care. 

  

Page 118



 

9 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Fig 1:The Statutory Functions of Local Authorities in relation to Health & Care 

 
 
11.6 The current direction towards the further development of the Health & Care 

Portsmouth operating model has already identified how integration can 
strengthen the discharge of these functions, and by doing so, contribute to 
improved health outcomes and system management.  Further developments of 
the model will consider the wider range of opportunities available - for example, 
around the economic development agenda, around housing, education or around 
environmental quality.  

 
(ii) Connecting local delivery and local accountability for that delivery – 

and the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

11.7 The Health and Wellbeing Board has a strong cross-section of local 
representation that can ensure that local delivery is absolutely representative of 
local need and requirement.  The model proposed will ensure a strong connection 
between the understanding of local need, gathered from a wide-variety of sources 
and considered over a range of dimension, and the commissioning and delivery 
of services in response to this need.  

 
(iii) Strengthen leadership & governance for health and care in 

Portsmouth 

11.8 Linked to the point above, the bringing together of the responsibility for 
commissioning healthcare in the city will ensure that there is a strong leadership 
and a clear, unified leadership voice for Portsmouth.  The arrangements will 
facilitate clarity in governance at an executive, clinical and political level.   

 
(iv) Make best use of combined resource (skills, expertise and money) 

and reduce waste through avoiding duplication of functions;  

Page 119



 

10 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

11.9 The local system will begin to consider the impact of the "Portsmouth £" in the 
city, ensuring it is targeted to the right responses and services and available to 
the people who need it. Health & Care Portsmouth can apply resource to those 
areas where there is a distinctive city character to the underlying cause or 
response  

 
(v) Achieve a better focus on health and care outcomes for people in the 

city;  

11.10 Health & Care Portsmouth ensures that form follows function so that the models 
of commissioning and delivery are those most likely to secure improved 
outcomes. 

 
12. Criteria that the next phase of the operating model needs to meet 

 
12.1 In delivering the operating model there are a series of principles and criteria that 

need to be met, that have regard to the wider system reform and the achievement 
of local ambition. 

 
Principles  Specific criteria 

HCP must play an 
active role in enabling 
and promoting the 
wider Hampshire and 
IoW system reforms, 
including the 
development of ICS 
models 

Enables delivery of the ‘triple integration’ of the NHS LTP: primary + 
specialist (acute) care, physical + mental health and health + local 
government. 
 
Enables and progresses Primary Care Networks and providers 
working together as Integrated Care Partnerships or Providers (ICPs) 
with social care and other Local Authority provider services to deliver 
health & care for populations; enables and accelerates the 
establishment of ICPs. 
 

All ways of working 
must be focused on 
the achievement of 
best outcomes within 
the available 
resource 

Allows decision-making for health & care to be directly linked to the 
combined resources available to the Local Authority and the NHS; sets 
priorities and allocates resources available for the local population (at 
‘place’ level) in line with these priorities; aligns NHS budgets and 
expenditure with those of Local Authority, across all of it functions and 
responsibilities. 
 
Establishes an arrangement where there are fewer people around the 
table to provide clearer, more effective leadership and decision-making 
– at all tiers of planning and delivery. Creates clearer, single 
governance (both during transition and in the end state). 
 
Achieves a reduction in the back office costs (and drives  a focus on 
delivery of quality, performance and value for money. Delivers 
management efficiencies and other efficiencies by bringing together 
and aligning NHS and Local Authority contract management (including 
procurement where required). 
 

Resource needs to 
be applied with an 
understanding of the 
whole person and 
whole place  

Greater integration of health & care planning and decision-making 
based on the City geography (PCC and PCCG boundaries); 
significantly deepens the integration of health and local government 
planning and delivery, and enables a greater whole person and whole 
population focus to planning and decision-making for health & care – 
with a strong emphasis on early intervention, prevention and the wider 
determinants of health. 

Page 120



 

11 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Creates a way of making decisions about and delivering services that 
goes beyond just health services and social care and incorporates key 
domains such as environment, housing, community, employment. 
Joined up planning with a whole person, whole life, whole population 
focus. 
 

Integration must 
support quality, 
safety, resilience  and 
continuous 
improvement of 
services  

Maintains and improves arrangements for continuous quality 
improvement, managing variations in performance and creates a way 
of making decisions that is agile enough to respond to operational 
pressures and risks to resilience (for example, during high demand 
periods). Maintains a strong focus on delivery of both operational 
services and improvement (transformation). 
 
Is aligned to the expectations of regulators and other stakeholders 
(health and care partners and beyond).  
 
Provides a clear direction and positive future for health & care staff and 
reduces risk of loss of talent 
 

HCP must ensure 
that democratic 
accountability and 
clinical leadership is 
retained in the city, to 
foster community 
engagement.  

Recognises primary care (and Primary Care Networks and Alliances) 
as the foundation of the healthcare system and enables the joining up 
of primary and community care (including social care) 
 
Strengthens the democratic accountability of the Portsmouth Health & 
Wellbeing Board to the residents of Portsmouth. Strengthens the 
public accountability of the NHS, the Local Authority and locally, 
democratically elected political and clinical leadership for health & 
care services planned and delivered for Portsmouth people.  
 
Is able to achieve a greater understanding of local population needs 
and hear the voice of local people through continuous engagement and 
demonstrate how this informs decisions and delivery of local health & 
care 
 

 
13. Options for next phase of the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model 

 
13.1 Considering the progress achieved on the Health & Care Portsmouth operating 

model and the direction of the NHS as set out in the Long Term Plan, Health & 
Care Portsmouth continues to represent a strong viable way of achieving effective 
integration of NHS and local government functions in order to deliver continual 
improvement of health & care for residents whilst reducing duplication and cost 
of multiple management infrastructures. The first phase of the operating model 
bringing together key functions for adults, children & families and public health 
move the City towards a more unified leadership and, in considering the request 
from both PCCG Governing Body and PCC Cabinet to move towards deeper 
integration, three proposals can be described. For each proposal there will be 
differing options for implementation which needs to be considered against the 
criteria/benefits defined previously. 

 
13.2 The three proposals for deeper integration between PCCG and PCC are: 

 

Page 121



 

12 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

a) Extend and consolidate the leadership team to include the 

Accountable Officer (AO) functions of PCCG to achieve unified and 

single health & care leadership for the City 

 
The options to achieve this are: 
 

i. ‘Job share’ AO role between PCCG and PCC 

ii. PCCG AO functions incorporated into PCC CEO role; Clinical Leader of 

PCCG retained and confirmed (working with political leadership of PCC, 

representing the CCG membership) 

iii. PCCG AO functions incorporated into another role reporting to PCC CEO 

iv. Do nothing, retain current arrangements 

v. AO Functions for PCCG incorporated into HIOW ICS  

vi. AO functions delivered by the system convenor for the Portsmouth and 

South East Hampshire Integrated Care Partnership 

vii. Establish a single CCG AO function between Portsmouth & Southampton 

 
13.3 A detailed options appraisal has been undertaken on this and is summarised as 

Appendix 2. It is recommended that support is given for the accountable officer 
functions of PCCG to be incorporated into the role of the PCC Chief Executive.  
This will be achieved by way of established s75 and s113 mechanisms. It is 
important to note that any changes to the CCGs Accountable Officer 
arrangements are subject to approval by the Secretary of State for health via a 
process through NHS England. 

 
13.4 It is important that the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model strongly 

embraces the benefits of having a triumvirate approach to its leadership 
arrangements. This means utilising the well-established arrangements in place 
already for: 

 

 Clinical leadership – utilising the Chair, Clinical leader, Clinical Executives of 

PCCG Governing Board and their clinical leaders in member practice in 

primary care as well as their networks with clinicians in community, mental 

health and hospital settings 

 

 Political leadership – embracing PCCs elected member model, its 

constitutional arrangements, leadership of PCC and supporting arrangements 

such as the cabinet and portfolio holders 

 

 Executive leadership – executive officers with responsibilities for health and 

care, delivering responsibilities for both PCCG and PCC under the direction of 

a single Accountable Officer 

 
13.5 Together they can drive forward the delivery of our vision for Health and Care 

Portsmouth. This could be illustrated as: 

Page 122



 

13 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 

    
13.6 This operating structure will also enable all health & care leaders from the City, 

to act as the ‘voice of the City’ in other system settings including the Portsmouth 
and South East Hampshire Integrated Care Partnership and the proposed 
Integrated Care System across Hampshire and Isle of Wight. 

 
b) Delegate defined functions and decisions to the Health & Care 

Portsmouth Commissioning Committee from both PCCG and PCC 
 

 The Health & Care Portsmouth Commissioning Committee, as defined 

by its current Terms of Reference, has a scope limited to the delegated 

authorities of its respective individual members. This can achieve a 

great deal, however it does not automatically create greater 

transparency about how priorities are agreed, nor how the respective 

organisations allocate their financial and other resources. 

 

 Pursuing this proposal will require further clarity about the scheme of 

delegations between this Committee and the Cabinet and respective 

Portfolio Holders. It would also require consideration of the ongoing 

role of the CCG Governing Body in light of any agreed delegations 

from it to this Committee. 

 
c) Create a joint finance role between PCCG and PCC in order to ensure 

strong financial leadership and governance as part of a unified Health 
& Care Portsmouth leadership 

 

 Although proposed in the first phase of the Health & Care Portsmouth 

operating model, little progress has been achieved to assess the 

` 

Chief 
Executive 

Chief of Health 
& Care  

Director of 
Children 

Director of 
Public Health 

Enabling and supporting functions to H&CP 

Other 
Executives tbd  

Finance 
Executive
   

Political Clinical Executive 
Political  Executive   Clinical 

Page 123



 

14 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

benefits, risks and options available to PCCG and PCC for integration 

of the key finance functions aligned the integrated functions for adults, 

children & families and public health. Options include: 

 
- Create a Deputy Chief Finance Officer (CFO) for Health & Care 

Portsmouth reporting to the respective CFOs for PCCG and PCC 

utilising current capacity gaps or vacancies in each organisation 

to create the role and in order to reduce management & running 

costs 

 

- Identify within each finance team in both PCCG and PCC roles 

that could be redefined with joint responsibilities, using existing 

roles to create joint capacity 

 

14. The Health & Care Portsmouth Roadmap 
 

14.1 The development of Health & Care Portsmouth is defined across 6 dimensions: 
 

 Leadership and governance 

 Strategy and planning  

 Managing collective resources  

 Care redesign  

 Workforce and organisational development  

 Accountability and performance management 

14.2 The roadmap at Appendix 3 sets out the plan to deliver on the next phase of the 
Health & Care Portsmouth operating model.  

 
14.3 This clearly represents a significant programme of change, and an outline risk 

assessment is also included as Appendix 4.  
  
15. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 

 
15.1 A preliminary EIA has been completed, indicating that there is no requirement for 

a full EIA at this stage. 
 
16. City Solicitor comments 
 
16.1 The proposals recognise the legal basis for integration via the refreshment of 

current section 75 and 113 agreements along with new agreements to reflect what 
is proposed. Within the scope of this process there would by definition need to be 
a consideration of the basis upon which staff and colleagues are aligned within the 
context of the employer/employee relationship to the extent that there are potential 
TUPE issues (with all the usual issues of contractual parity between organisations) 
along with potential loses of employment stemming from a redundancy process. 
Whilst the exact nature of the effect of the proposals are yet to be scoped the 
comments made here are likely to require adequate financial modelling to occur to 
mitigate against immediate cost and potential future risk. 

Page 124



 

15 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
17. Head of finance’s comments 
 
17.1 The further development of the Health & Care Portsmouth operating model needs 

to be achieved within existing available resources for each organisation. The 
model focuses on utilising existing roles within both PCC and PCCG to consolidate 
functions, reduce duplication and form a single leadership. If the proposals in the 
paper are supported then work will need to be undertaken to model the cost of the 
revised arrangements and agree cost share arrangements for the unified executive 
arrangements described to ensure that they do not add to the costs for each 
organisation.   

 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signed by:  
David Williams, Chief Executive, Portsmouth City Council  
Dr Linda Collie, Chief Clinical Officer & Clinical Leader, NHS Portsmouth Clinical 
Commissioning Group  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1: Delivery on Blueprint Commitment  
Appendix 2: Next steps options appraisal  
Appendix 3: Health & Care Portsmouth Roadmap 
Appendix 4: Health & Care Portsmouth outline risk assessment  
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of 
document 

Location 

Blueprint for 
Health & 
Care in 
Portsmouth  

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s8694/Proposal%20for 
%20Portsmouth%20Blueprint-%20Appendix%20A.pdf 
 

 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 

Page 125

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s8694/Proposal%20for


 

16 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Name and Title 
 

Page 126



 

17 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Delivery against the commitments in the Blueprint for Health & Care in Portsmouth (September 2015) 
 

Commitment one: We will build our health and care service on the foundation of primary and community care, recognising that 
people have consistently told us they value primary care as generalists and preferred point of care co-ordination; we will improve 
access to primary care services when people require it on an urgent basis.” 
 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

There has been significant investment primary and community care 
services supporting improved access to primary care. An Acute 
Visiting Service (AVS) has been commissioned which provides a 
dedicated GP home visiting service on behalf of practices to registered 
patients requiring an urgent visit in their own home. This increase 
capacity enables patients to be seen quicker and helps to increase 
capacity within general practice and is delivering an additional 6,000 
on the day home visits per annum. 
 
In addition, the GP Enhanced Access service is delivering urgent 
primary care appointments on Saturdays 08:00-18:00 and on weekday 
evenings from 18:30-20:00. The provision of routine appointments on 
Saturdays has also recently commenced, improving access to primary 
care services. 
 
To help enable GPs to focus their time on seeing patients who require 
their generalist expertise, a pilot has been established to deliver 
Musculoskeletal (MSK) triage in general practice. This service 
enables patients contacting their GP practice with an urgent MSK issue 
to access a physiotherapist the same day. Currently half the population 
of Portsmouth are benefiting from this service. 
 
 
  

From June 2018 PCCG has commissioned an Integrated 
Primary Care Service incorporating the provision of three 
interconnected services: Out of Hours (OOHs), the AVS, and 
GP Enhanced Access. Integrated provision of the three 
interdependent services will ensure safe, effective delivery of 
primary medical care services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, and 
improve access to primary care services by increasing capacity 
outside of core general practice operating times. 
 
In addition to this we will be exploring (through the development 
of robust business cases) further rollout of the MSK triage in 
general practice across the city. 
 
Ongoing work with practices to look at opportunities to increase 
capacity and capability within the practice to improve access, 
such as use of care navigator roles, e-consult and on-line 
booking options 
 
 

P
age 127



 

18 
 

Commitment 2 - We will underpin this with a programme of work that aims to empower the individual to maintain good health and 
prevent ill health, strengthening assets in the community, building resilience and social capital.” 
 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

A collaborative approach has been taken to include the VCS as 
an equal partner in the provision of health and care to 
Portsmouth residents. Through the signposting service, an 
easy access route for GPs has been available to access non-
medical support from the VCS for their patients.   
 
The creation of Project Bridge where representatives from a 
range of VCS organisations and the PCC and PCCG have met 
to discuss known problems and identify solutions which can be 
jointly developed.  Through the Project Bridge umbrella, a 
proposal for a ‘sitting service’ is being developed.   
 
A jointly agreed a commissioning plan for the development of 
social prescribing within the City.  Existing contracts have been 
reviewed, with joint commitment for the development of a 
replacement integrated social prescribing service.  Due to start 
in June 2018.    
 
Adult Social Care strategy development has led to 
establishing its Principles for Transformation which will enable 
‘Nothing for us without us ‘embedded in service design, 
monitoring and evaluation; and Core Outcomes agreed across 
ASC (at individual, operational and strategic levels) of good 
health, independent lives, meaningful days and employment, 
social inclusion.  
 
Through the Integrated Personalised Commissioning 
Programme (IPC) we have seen the completion of over 2000 
personalised care and support plans and the establishment of 

It is envisaged that both the sitting service and the integrated social 
prescribing service will be co-located and operated through a 
Single Point of Contact (SPOC) for access to VCS within the City.  
This will enable a more personalised and tailor made service for carers 
and their families to be made available through a strengthened VCS 
resource, offering economies of scale and establishing a strong 
presence within the City.   
 
ASC will be developing outcome-based commissioning across ASC that 
includes options for extending use of personal budgets, ISFs, micro 
enterprise etc. This work will be aligned with, supported by and build 
upon IPC pilot work which will include personal health budgets too. 
 
The development of a Long Term Condition (LTC) Hub in the city 
which would pool existing primary, community, and secondary care 
professionals into a single team, ensuring patients receive consistent, 
high-quality care. The LTC Hub will predominantly focus on empowering 
individuals to maintain good health by equipping them with education, 
skills, and knowledge leading to lasting self-management techniques 
and behavioural change.    
 
 
The current well-being service,  which offers support lifestyle support 
to help people manage their weight, alcohol consumption and quit 
smoking, has been through a systems thinking intervention, leading to 
a re-design of provision, which in the long term will improve the offer 
and enable greater integration with the long term conditions hub. 
 

P
age 128



 

19 
 

500 integrated budgets which meet the criteria of personal 
health budgets, with a small number converting into direct 
payments. 
 
The relationship with the VCS and those with 'lived experience' 
is also particularly strong within the integrated mental health 
services. The role of peer support workers in community 
mental health services is now well established. 
 
In relation to children's services, HIOW is one of only four 
areas in the country where the STP includes a clear 
workstream for children's services.  There are credible plans, 
partly delivered, in relation to supporting primary care around 
urgent and emergency care avoidance and family health literacy.   
 
Future in Mind Mental Health Transformation programme 
includes work in schools and support for the roll-out of consistent 
restorative practice across the city - seen by NHS England as a 
strong basis for further integration.  
 

Through the Mental Health Transformation programme, the concept of 
a 'Well-Being House' is being developed to increase support offered 
for people with low level mental health needs; enabling them to access 
VCS and community support to help them in a more person centred way 
and offer community based alternatives to the traditional service offering 
in order to improve health outcomes. 

The local delivery system is continuing to develop more effective whole 
system approaches to children's mental health. 

Promotion of the Portsmouth Children's Trust Physical Health 
Strategy, to tackle obesity, smoking, drugs and alcohol as well as self-
help in lower level health needs.  

A more radical, effective and sustainable approach to care, support and 
education provision for children with autism.  

Commitment 3 - We will bring together important functions that allow our organisations to deliver more effective community based 
front-line services and preventative strategies; this includes functions such as HR, Estates, IT and other technical support services 
 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

Considerable progress has been made towards utilising a single 
clinical record across providers to: improve communication 
between healthcare professionals; enable improved quality of 
care; and deliver safe, consistent provision. All GP practices 
within the city (bar two) and Solent NHS Trust use TPP 
SystmOne as their primary clinical system. From the 
remaining two GP practices not on the system, one is scheduled 
to go-live from April 18, and the other is in discussion with PCCG 
about transferring to SystmOne. 

Adult social care have been operating on SystmOne since April 
2019,leading to the creation of a truly joint health and care record.  A 
request by social prescribing to be able to utilise SystmOne for ease of 
feedback to health and care professionals has also been made – this 
will require further investigation in terms of IG issues, appropriateness 
and cost. 
 
In recognition of the inconsistencies with existing healthcare estate 
within the city (in terms of condition, statutory compliance, functional 

P
age 129



 

20 
 

 
The Communications and engagement teams have embarked 
on a programme of joint working and support and have 
developed a shared communications and engagement 
programme to support HCP. 
 
Working with partners across primary, community, secondary 
care, and the local authority, PCCG has utilised monies received 
from the national Estate and Technology Transformation Fund 
(ETTF) to undertake feasibility studies and options appraisals to 
assess estate potential in the city and progress the development 
of physical Hubs within the North and Central localities.  
 
Children's teams have already been co-located as part of three 
geographically focused multi-agency teams, working to deliver 
the integrated strategic programme "Stronger Futures", 
bringing together public health, mental health and social 
care/early help services.    
 

suitability, quality, and accessibility), and the fact there is NHS and Local 
Authority owned buildings in the city that are not fully utilised, creating 
void space which incurs avoidable cost to the system, a project team 
has been created to devise and implement a strategic estates plan for 
the city, including primary, community, and local authority partners. This 
team will implement the projects commenced under the ETTF and 
continue to develop suitable and sustainable estate solutions for the 
city. 
 
Strengthening of integration of support for children with SEND to 
provide more inclusive, affordable care and education, including the 
potential creation of a Portsmouth specialist SEND hub. 
  
 
 

Commitment 4 - We will establish a new constitutional way of working to enable statutory functions of public bodies in the City to act 
as one. This would include establishing a single commissioning function at the level of the current Health & Wellbeing Board with 
delegated authority for the totality of health (NHS) and social care budgets 
 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

Partnership working between PCCG and PCC has increased, 
leading to the appointment of a Joint LA Director of Adults 
Services role and CCG Chief Operating Officer role. This has led 
to the creation of the Health & Care Directorate including and 
team approach across commissioning, transformation adult 
social care, quality and safeguarding.  
 

Continuing to develop as a single adults health and care directorate, as 
well as strengthening integrated commissioning function. 
 
Continued discussions across PCCG and PCC as to how we can 
explore further joint and pooled funding arrangements.  
 

P
age 130



 

21 
 

The BCF pooled fund arrangements have been increased to £27 
million and now include additional services such as carers, and 
community beds for both health and care and OT services.  
 
Developing model of joint working across PCCG and Solent 
NHS Trust with combined senior commissioning and Operations 
Manager post.  
 
The integrated Early Help and Prevention service has 
operated under one Head of Service since March 2017.  This 
has supported the development of a new targeted health visiting 
offer, and a modernised delivery of universal support.   
 

Commitment 5 - We will establish a single or lead provider for the delivery of health and social care services for the City. This 
would involve looking at organisational options for bringing together health and social care services into a single organisation, under single 
leadership with staff co-located. The scope of this would include mental health, well-being and community teams, children’s teams, 
substance misuse services and learning disabilities. In time, it could also include other services currently residing in the acute sector 
or primary care 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

A partnership arrangement has been agreed between PCCG, 
Solent NHS Trust, PCC, and the PPCA (a GP federation 
representing general practice), effectively creating a ‘virtual 
Multi-speciality Community Provider (MCP)’ in the city. The 
MCP programme includes a suite of transformational change 
projects for health and care services in the city working to 
provide more effective, efficient, and integrated care; that will 
delivered the plans for the community model (outlined in section 
5), that has been developed jointly by the MCP programme 
team. 
 
A prime example of the partnership working, without boundaries, 
to date, has been the implementation of the Portsmouth 
Enhanced Care Home Team Pilot.  This has provided 5 of the 

PCCG is seeking to progress the ‘virtual MCP’ arrangements further by 
exploring risk/gain share arrangements and Integration Agreements 
between the community provider and GP practices for suitable projects 
within the MCP programme. This work will enable PCCG to better 
understand the requirements of commissioning a further integrated 
MCP arrangement, through a formal procurement process at some 
stage in the future. 
 
Discussions are required to explore the potential of Portsmouth 
Hospital  Trust (PHT) and the VCS becoming represented in the 
partnership arrangement. For the VCS, this could be through the 
development of a VCS collaboration, in a similar way to which a GP 
federation represents general practice.  This will enable a much broader 
range of community services to become integrated. 

P
age 131



 

22 
 

27 Portsmouth Care Homes with regular clinical input from a 
nurse led Care Home Team.  A further 2 Care Homes have 
received a full weekly Multi-Disciplinary Team meeting 
comprising of a GP, Physical and Mental Health Nurses, 
Pharmacists and Care Home Team staff.  This team has direct 
access to Physio and Occupational Therapy support. The 
outcomes for these homes over a 3 month period have seen a 
reduction in 999 calls made by 32% and reduction in 
conveyances to hospital by 27%. 
 
At the ACS level a PSEH Mental health transformation 
programme has been established. This has led to partnership 
working between the two mental health providers to better 
manage acute in-patient mental health beds leading to a 
reduction in out of area placements for South East Hampshire 
patients, savings and improved utilisation of City acute in-patient 
beds. 
 

 
Enhanced support to Care Homes is also a system wide priority and 
commissioners from Fareham and Gosport, South East Hampshire and 
Portsmouth CCGs are working with clinicians to produce the case for a 
Care Home Team model that will reduce utilisation of urgent care at 
scale.     
 
 

Commitment 6 - We will simplify the current configuration of urgent and emergency and out of hours services, making what is 
offered out of hours and weekends consistent with the service offered in-hours on weekdays so that people have clear choices regardless 
of the day or time 
 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

PCCG has issued to the market its intentions to work with 
existing system partners over a three year period to implement 
the national requirements of Integrated Urgent Care (IUC), 
which seeks to simplify and integrate the current configuration of 
urgent and emergency services. 
 
Alongside this, the St Mary's Treatment centre has been 
designated as a wave one 'Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC),' 
again as part of a national initiative to simplify the urgent care 
offering across the country. 

As part of the development of the Integrated Primary Care Service, from 
June 2018 and linking with plans to implement IUC, UTC requirements, 
the CCG intends to amalgamate the existing and complex urgent care 
landscape into a simplified point of access for patients, which delivers 
consistent and integrated urgent and emergency care. This includes 
linking the Integrated Primary Care Service with the Urgent 
Treatment Centre, Urgent Care Centre (GP Streaming at ED), a 
Clinical Assessment Service, and overnight community provision, 
to provide a compelling alternative to ED available within 2018- 
2019. 

P
age 132



 

23 
 

Partnership working across PSEH to strengthen the Urgent Care 
Centre and GP streaming within ED to better enable people to 
receive the most appropriate care. 
 
In addition, mental health crisis services have been reviewed 
and implementation plans in plan for improvement. 
 

 
Plans are also underway to establish a PSEH mental health 
assessment unit, to provide better support within ED and general acute 
inpatient services to people with mental health conditions; which it is 
envisaged will lead to a reduction in emergency admission or reduced 
length of stay  
 

Commitment 7 - We will focus on building capacity and resources within defined localities within the City to enable them to commission 
and deliver services at a locality level within a framework set by the city-wide 

Achieved so far 
 

In progress 

A Good Neighbours network has also been established within 
the City. This promotes community help and wellbeing, with 
volunteer led groups developing in three initial areas within the 
City to offer health and social transport, befriending and social 
activities, informal care and help with tasks. 
 

The neighbourhood team model, which is at the heart of the delivery 
of the new Portsmouth Community model incorporating primary, 
community, and social care within an integrated team, is due to be 
piloted shortly. 
 
Testing of this was conducted fromMay 18 and saw individuals that 
require additional support provided by the team either after they have 
left hospital in order to return them to independence or to wrap care 
and support around them when they are at risk of being admitted to 
hospital. The model is currently being rolled out to one initial locality 
with plans to extend to the 2nd and 3rd. 
 
We will then need to ensure private provider services are 
commissioned and develop in a way that best works with the new 
model of care.  Social Care will soon be carrying out a systems 
intervention on Domiciliary Care which will inform this.  Solent are 
partnering with a domiciliary care organisation to test a new way of 
working with care providers.  We will take this learning and establish a 
care offer that is able to respond how people needs it to whilst is more 
robust and sustainable against market influences experienced 
nationally (work force issues generally). 
 

P
age 133



 

24 
 

Residential and Nursing care services in private homes will be 
reviewed in the context of Therapy Led Units (TLU) and the benefits of 
working in a different way to reduce DToC, MFFD and to reduce long 
term care placements. 
 
Linked to the current developments with VCS partners, we are also 
actively promoting opportunities for the asset development within 
communities, enabling communities to increase control over their own 
health and wellbeing.  Community centre approaches offer a stronger 
way to use local resources and to reshape them to meet local needs.  
Coproduction will be integral to ensure that local needs are understood. 
An approach to ensure robust engagement for service development 
plans will be put in place. 
 

 
  

P
age 134



 

25 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Health & Care Portsmouth: The Next Phase For Integration: Option Appraisal 
 

Criteria Options 

 ‘Job 
share’ AO 

CCG AO 
functions 
incorporated 
into PCC 
CEO role 

CCG AO 
functions 
incorporated 
into role 
reporting to 
PCC CEO 

Do 
nothing 

AO 
Functions 
for CCG 
incorporated 
into HIOW 
ICS 

AO 
functions 
by PSEH 
system 
convenor 

Two 
Cities 
CCG AO 
function 

Delegate 
defined 
functions & 
decisions to 
the HCPCC 

Create a 
joint 
finance 
role  

HCP must play an 
active role in enabling 
and promoting the wider 
HIOW system reforms, 
including the 
development of ICS 
models  

         

All ways of working 
must be focused on the 
achievement of best 
outcomes with the 
available resource  

    ? ?    

Resource needs to be 
applied with an 
understanding of the 
whole person and place 

   ?   ? ?  

Integration must support 
quality, safety, 
resilience and 
continuous 
improvement of 
services 

?         

HCP must ensure that 
democratic 
accountability and 
clinical leadership is 
retained in the city, to 
foster community 
engagement  

         

P
age 135



 

26 
 

 
Ranking: 
 

1. CCG AO incorporated into PCC CEO 

2. CCG AO into another role reporting to PCC CEO 

3. Joint finance role 

4. Delegation to HCP Committee 

5. Job share AO/PCC CEO 

6. Share CCG AO function across two cities 

7. Do nothing 

8. AO functions incorporated into PSEH convenor role 

9. AO functions incorporated into HIOW ICS role 

P
age 136



 

27 
 

Appendix 3 
Health & Care Portsmouth Roadmap (DRAFT – JUNE 2019) 
 

 
HCP aspiration Lead Current progress 

Health and wellbeing 
board with oversight  

Consider the breadth of issues 
across the life course, and the 
opportunities for working together 
around these 

Joint HWB chairs  Agreed revised terms of reference and 
membership, March 2019. First meeting in 
reconfigured forma, June 2019 

Strategically direct resource at the 
priorities identified from this way of 
working. 
 

Joint HWB chairs  Establishment of a commissioning sub-board 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board - terms of 
reference agreed in March 2019 and currently 
in development to look at programme for 
presentation June 2019 

Accountable officer  Strengthen leadership for health and 
care in Portsmouth 
 

David Williams/  
Tracy Sanders/  
Dr Linda Collie 

Consideration of options for the PCCG 
accountable officer role in the context of HCP - 
presentation to HWB, PCC Cabinet and PCCG 
Governing Board. Seek approval from member 
practices and formal approval from NHS 
England  

Clinical leadership  Tracy Sanders/  
Dr Linda Collie 

Reviewing future clinical leadership 
arrangements in light of possible impact and 
opportunities of PCNs (to include existing 
PCCG clinical leadership and GP Alliance).  

Executive structure  Make best use of combined 
resource (skills, expertise and 
money and reduce waste through 
avoiding duplication of management 
and functions 
 

David Williams/ 
Tracy Sanders/ 
Rochelle Kneller  

Development of clear role descriptions and 
associated staffing structures to enable 
discharge of HCP functions in blended 
structures; put in place relevant s 113 
agreements for core roles 
DCS to become member of CCG Governing 
Board 

P
age 137



 

28 
 

 
HCP aspiration Lead Current progress 

Programme Boards  Deliver ambitions for the health and 
care system locally  

Innes Richens/ 
Alison Jeffery/ 
Jason Horsley  

Adult Social Care strategy board in place; 
Stronger Futures and SEND Boards in place. 
MCP Board. 

Wider determinants 
of health  

Give consideration to the other 
influential delivery functions. 
 

HCP leadership and 
HWB  

Broadened membership of HWB and 
associated sub-groups will support wider 
conversations around services that are 
influential on the wider determinants of health  

Use of data and 
intelligence to 
improve the health & 
care offer 

There is a need to strengthen the 
intelligence functions to allow better 
assessment of local need to inform 
commissioning decisions. 

HCP leadership - 
Jason Horsley  

Integrating our skills on the collection and 
presentation of data locally would have benefits 
in more informed commissioning and service 
design. An appointment to Strategic Intelligence 
lead is underway and this postholder will have a 
wider-ranging remit to progress this area.  

S75 and s113 
mechanisms  

Revise section 75 agreements to 
reflect revised operating model 
including overarching s75 if 
appropriate  

David Williams/ 
Tracy Sanders 

Underway, including development of s75 
arrangement for delivery of healthy child 
programme.  

Portsmouth £ Understand totality of HCP 
resources  

Michelle Spandley/ 
Chris Ward  

Early work is underway to scope resource and 
understand where there are opportunities to 
more closely align financial planning.  Early 
presentation for June 2019. 
 
Further consideration will be given to options 
around strategic financial planning approaches 
and roles; and recommendations will be 
formulated taking into account respective legal 
and governance processes 

Develop a single 
approach to strategic 
financial planning to 
underpin Health & 
Care Portsmouth 

Consider opportunities for shared 
financial planning (including shared 
role and function) 

Michelle Spandley/ 
Chris Ward 

Increase efficiency of 
local system  

Clear and transparent financial 
reporting of integrated 
commissioning functions leading to 

Michelle Spandley/ 
Chris Ward 

Review financial contributions for PCC and 
PCCG into the HCP operating model to ensure 
explicit and affordable within the context of 

P
age 138



 

29 
 

 
HCP aspiration Lead Current progress 

increased efficiency and identified 
savings  

running costs and other savings requirements 
for both organisations  

Transparency of total 
resource  

Review model for distribution of 
public health grant  

Jason Horsley/ 
Chris Ward  

Identification of public health spending in 
support of HCP activity to improve health  

Local estate  Maximise use of the local estate for 
health and care delivery 

Michelle Spandley/ 
James Hill/ 
One Public Estate 
Programme  

Identification of immediate opportunities to 
move forward issues of interest to the local 
estate forum have been identified. 
 
The One Public Estate programme potentially 
provides an opportunity to take forward some 
strategic scale issues and this is to be explored 
with a view to submitting a bid to the next 
phase of the programme.  
 
In the short term, options for co-location of 
HCP staff can be considered.  

Adult Social Care 
Strategy  

To Follow 

Stronger Futures 
Programme  

SEND strategy  

Maternity services 

Sexual health 
commissioning 
arrangements  

Substance misuse 
commissioning 
approach  

Mental health 
commissioning 
approach  

P
age 139



 

30 
 

 
HCP aspiration Lead Current progress 

MCP 

Core underlying 
principles 

A broad set of principles that 
describe our approach to integration 
and ensure these are widely 
communicated 

David Williams/ 
Innes Richens/ 
Lucy Elliott  

HCP communications plan in development 
alongside plans for website as a tool for staff 
and professionals - HCP branding to be rolled 
out on all communication material.  

Change management 
processes 

Clear and transparent briefing 
material for staff affected by 
changes, in line with usual change 
management processes and 
practice  

Rochelle Kneller/ 
Tracy Sanders/ 
Lucy Elliott  

Regular staff briefings ongoing.  Work 
underway to understand current distribution of 
work and how this will be carried out in future, 
including where there will be change to roles 
and responsibilities.  

Organisational 
development  

Establish programme of work 
around culture change and new 
ways of working to underpin 
structural and functional changes  

HCP leadership  Identified need to support staff and 
stakeholders in recognising HCP as an entity, 
and identifying with its vision, values and ways 
of working alongside identifying with host 
organisations and professions. Programme to 
be developed over the Summer.  

Performance 
management 
arrangements  

It is expected that through the 
Performance Management Group 
arrangements around delivery 
agreements, health providers will 
also be full partners to these 
discussions and debates.  

HCP leadership   

Performance 
management, 
planning and 
business/governance 
services 

In support of the Health & Care 
Portsmouth Executive and its 
programme of work must be 
explored to find the most effective 
operating models.  

Tracy Sanders/ 
David Williams 

 

P
age 140



 

31 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Health & Care Portsmouth - Risk Assessment  
 
Risk owner Risk Area Risk 

Likelihood 
Risk 

impact 
Current Risk 

Status 
Potential outcomes Mitigation/commentary 

David Williams/  
Dr Linda Collie  

Failure to fully support the 
wider system 
transformation  

Low High Medium 

Diversion between local and 
national agendas challenges 
delivery at both levels  

PCCG and PCC have been active 
and engaged members of system 
transformation.  The local Blueprint 
for Health and Care has been 
identified as an area of strength in the 
region and has been a vehicle for 
engaging wider sector partners and 
stakeholders including political 
leadership, and the voluntary and 
community sector.  Key mitigation is 
to ensure that the objectives of the 
local blueprint and the wider STP 
align.  

David Williams/ 
Dr Linda Collie  

Failure to fully achieve city 
ambitions as set out in the 
Blueprint for HCP and 
associated delivery 
strategies  

Low High Medium 

David Williams/  
Dr Linda Collie  

Changes to operating 
model create confusion 
regarding governance and 
blurred accountability  

medium High Medium 

Poor or invalid decision-
making leading to risks of 
challenge, financial loss and 
failed objectives  

The proposals include a clear 
delineation between executive, 
political and clinical leadership and 
clarity about the respective decision-
making and the fora for bringing 
these together.  All associated bodies 
have clear constitutions and terms of 
reference.  There is an associated 
communications programme.  

David Williams/ 
Dr Linda Collie 

Changes to operating 
model crate confusion 
regarding financial 
planning and 
accountability  

Medium High Medium 

Poor or invalid decision-
making leading to risks of 
challenge, financial loss and 
failed objectives 

Discussions are underway about the 
appropriate mechanisms for joint 
financial planning and the potential 
for a single function.  

David Williams/ 
Dr Linda Collie/ 
Cllr Gerald 
Vernon-Jackson  

Changes to roles mean 
that capacity of key 
individuals is stretched  

Medium Medium Medium 

Key work does not progress 
due to "bottlenecks"  

Ongoing dialogue across leadership 
triumvirate supported by rigorous 
processes for holding to account.  

P
age 141



 

32 
 

Risk owner Risk Area Risk 
Likelihood 

Risk 
impact 

Current Risk 
Status 

Potential outcomes Mitigation/commentary 

David Williams/ 
Dr Linda Collie 

There is a lack of public 
buy-in of understanding of 
the local proposals  Medium Medium Medium 

Opposition to change based 
on misunderstanding  

The basis for the proposals is the 
need to retain local and democratic 
accountability. The associated 
communication programme will be 
vital.  

David Williams/ 
Dr Linda Collie 

Change process detracts 
from delivery  

Medium High Medium 

Staff concerns about positions 
or lack of understanding 
undermines delivery  

Both organisations have strong 
change management processes to 
support staff in change . The 
associated communication 
programme will be vital. 

 

P
age 142


	Agenda
	3 Record of Previous Decision Meetings - 11 and  17 June 2019
	Cabinet appointments to outside bodies 11 June 2019
	Cabinet record 17 June 2019

	4 Additional appointments to Outside Bodies
	5 City of Sanctuary
	Portsmouth City of Sanctuary (Prelim EIA)

	6 Southsea Coastal Scheme
	7 Merger of Coroner Areas in Hampshire
	The Council's business case - IoW
	Business Case - Hants County Council

	8 Youth Offending Team Strategic Youth Justice Plan
	9 The City Council's Response to the Aquind Proposal
	10 Health and Care Operating Model

